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Chapter 1. Letter to Shareholders

In light of continuous collaboration with cross-Strait first tier manufacturers in game
development, and film and television license, the Company’s well-known IPs of “Sword and
Fairy” and “Xuan Yuan Sword” have been successfully released in China, Taiwan, and other
foreign countries. In addition to continued revenue contribution from “Xuan Yuan Sword:
Dragon Dances in Clouds and Mountains (Mobile)" and “Richman 10 Single Player Game
on Mobile” (Steam platform), “Xuan Yuan Sword: Source of Sword (Mobile)” and “Xuan
Yuan Sword 7 Single Player Game” were released in 2020 as well. The mobile games of
Legend of Sword series, Xuan Yuan Sword series, and Richman series as well as their film
and television licenses are part of the revenue. In the future, the Company will strengthen the
IP operations of "Sword and Fairy,” "Xuan Yuan Sword,” "Richman," "Stardom," "Tun
Town," and "Empire of Angels" through the development and operations of mobile games,
single player games, and online games, and invest in the fields of audiovisual and cultural
creativity. Through licensing to and cooperation with first-tier large-scale companies from
Taiwan and mainland China, the Company may ensure that the products of Softstar will never
miss out on opportunities in any field or platform, and it will maintain its high investment and
quality standards while gaining support from markets and players.

The Company is leading the Chinese gaming market in Mainland China, Taiwan, and Hong
Kong. It has established a solid foundation in product development, marketing channels,
game operations and IP licensing, and is actively entering the digital content market. Details
of 2020 operating performance and 2021 operation prospects are as follows:

I.  Business results for 2020
() Implementation achievements of the 2020 Business Plan:
The Company's 2020 consolidated operating income was NT$ 545,369 thousand.
(I1) Budget execution and revenue & expenditure:

Unit: Thousand NT$

Item 2020 Actual Amount

Operating revenue 545,369
Operating costs (89,939)
Gross profit (loss) 455,430
Operating expenses (317,326)
Operating income 138,104
Non-Operating revenue and expenditures (44,337)
Pre-tax net profits 93,767
Income tax expenses (37,355)
Net profits of the period 56,412
Net profit (loss) Owners of the Parent 56.896
attributable to: Company —

' Non-controlling interests (484)

1




(1) Profitability analysis:

Item 2020
Return on total assets 4.77%
Return on total stockholder's equity 6.73%
Operating income to capital 21.90%
Pretax income to capital 14.87%
Net income to sales 10.34%
Earnings per share after tax (NT$) 0.91

(IV) Research and Development:

The Company is committed to the continual development of self-made products,
including mobile games, standalone games, and online game development for
"Sword and Fairy”, "Xuan Yuan Sword”, " Stardom”, "Richman”, "Empire of
Angels”, and "Tun Town”. In 2020, a total of NT$ 166,552 thousand was invested in
research and development, accounting for 52% of the Company's operating expenses.

I1.  Overview of 2020 Business Plan
(I)  Operation guidelines
© Research and development of games
* Single player games:

Due to the innovation of its operations and its sales model, the Company's
single player game created a historical sales record of over one million sets
across the Strait when "Sword and Fairy 5" was launched in 2011. The
Company continued to invest in the development of single player games. In
2013, "Sword and Fairy 5: Prequel" and "Xuan Yuan Sword 6" were released.
In 2015, "Xuan Yuan Sword: the Gate of Firmament" and "Sword and Fairy 6"
were released. In 2016, "Empire of Angels 4,” was released. In 2017, " Xuan
Yuan Sword: the Gate of Firmament PS4 and BOX Edition" (global) were
released, and in 2019, "Empire of Angels 4 PS4 Edition" (global) and
“Richman 10” were released. In 2017, we invested in the development of the
new generation "Sword and Fairy 7" and "Xuan Yuan Sword 7" single player
games. At present, "Sword and Fairy 7" and "Xuan Yuan Sword 7" have been
at the later stage of research and development. In 2021, "Empire of Angels 4
switch andPS4 Edition", "Xuan Yuan Sword 7 PS4 and XBOX Edition"
(Europe and America), “Richman 10 switch, PS and XBOX Edition” (Asia)
and “Paladin's Inn 2 Single Player Game” will be released.

* Mobile games:

In 2020, " Sword and Fairy: Nine Wilds (Mobile) " was released. In addition,
“Stardom: Bright Love (Mobile)” has been at the later stage of research and



development. The Company will continue to devote to research and
development, establish cooperation with other developers by licensing in terms
of mobile game development, and expand cooperation with various platforms
to increase revenue and profit.

© IP licensing and pan-entertainment authorization cooperation

Develop new games, TV shows, movies, internet dramas, stage plays, animations,
and distribute novels or comics through licensing or collaboration. In 2020, the
main product released was "Xuan Yuan Sword: Dragon Dances in Clouds and
Mountains" mobile game, ““Sword and Fairy Mobile Edition” developed by
Kunlun, and “Xuan Yuan Sword: Source of Sword (Mobile)” developed by
CMGE. The Company's IP brand will work with more cross-disciplinary

companies to create more revenue and profit.
© Gaming operation

Operate single player games, client games, web games, online games and mobile
games in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macau. At present, the main products are
“Xuan Yuan Sword: Source of Sword (Mobile)”, Yuan Sword: Dragon Dances in
Clouds and Mountains (Mobile)" and "Yakuza."

(I1)  Projected sales

It is expected to launch several mobile games and single player games in 2021, as
well as increase the licensing revenue which can assist in the Company's revenue this

year.

(1) Major operations & sales policies

© Actively expand the Mainland China and overseas markets, and seek licensing
partners to grow market share and revenue.

© Maintain high-quality products for the right market image.

© Continue to expand the channel and actively penetrate the network virtual channel
and operation platform.

© Strengthen cooperation in film and television IP licensing, digital content and
cultural and creative industries.

I11. Future development strategies of the Company

The Company’s future development will be focused on IP licensing. In addition to gaming
products, we will also work with leading companies in various fields, and plan to invest in
crafts, book publishing, film television, cultural creativity, digital content, and popular



music. The multi-disciplinary industry of music and content will rapidly enhance the brand
value of SOFTSTAR and IP. In addition to improving the self-developed R&D capabilities,
the product strategy will be increasing the number and quality of products on the market
through cooperation, licensing, outsourcing and other product development models. In
terms of market strategy, besides the standalone games and online game MMORPGSs in the
original Chinese and Asian markets, the Company has also focused on the mobile game
industry in recent years. Multi-language, multi-theme and multi-platform operational
expansion will extend SOFTSTAR’s products to international markets around the world.

IV. Impacts of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment, and overall
business environment:

Due to the limited growth of the online game market in Taiwan, there are many competitors
in the market. In recent years, with the rapid rise of web games and mobile games, the trend
and structure of the game industry have also changed. The Company is one of the few
companies in Taiwan that specializes in game research and development and has a well-
known IP series. With a close watch on the market, the Company will continue to invest in
self-developed products of various platforms and licensing cooperation with international
gaming companies through and updated and more flexible business model, creating more
and better works. Also, the Company has not seen a significant impact on its financial
business due to changes in the domestic and international regulatory environment. The
Company’s management team will continue to pay attention to relevant regulations that
may affect its operations.

In the future, all my colleagues in the Company will keep up with the high expectation of
all shareholders, grow the business in a stable and balanced way, and work together to make
SUPERSOFT more successful. Finally, 1 hope that all shareholders will continue to give
us support and encouragement. Thank you!

Best wishes

to all shareholders
Chairman: Tu, Chun-Kuang
Manager: Tsay, Ming-Hong

Chief Accountant: Chuang, Jen-
Chuan



Chapter 2. Company Profile

I. Date of Incorporation
The Company was founded on Aug. 3, 1998.

II. Company History

The Company, formerly known as Tianshuo Information Co., Ltd., was established on

August 3, 1998 and changed its name to Softstar Entertainment Inc. on October 15, 1998.

The Company has acquired the assets and liabilities generated from the main operations of

its predecessor (the former Softstar), undertaken its existing research and development

achievements and human resources, and continued its various operations.

Former Softstar was founded on April 1, 1988, and was deregistered on the base date

of Sept. 10, 1998. Its operating history and the business of the Company are closely linked.

The significant events of the Company for the latest year and as of the date of printing the

annual report are summarized below:

In February 2020, the "Tun Town: board game" was launched in Taiwan.

In March, the "Sword and Fairy: mobile game" was launched in China.

In April, the "Richman 10: single player version mobile game" was launched
globally (except for China).

In April, the "Xuan Yuan Sword: Source of Sword mobile game" was launched in
Mainland China.

In June, board of shareholders and directors was reselected and Mr. Tu, Chun-Kuang
remained Chairman.

In July, the "Sword and Fairy: Destiny mobile game" was launched in Taiwan.

In September, the "Xuan Yuan Sword: Source of Sword mobile game" was launched
in Taiwan.

In October, the "Xuan Yuan Sword: Kunlun cartoon" was launched in Taiwan and
Mainland China.

In October, the PC version steam of the "Xuan Yuan Sword: Jiu Ye" was launched
globally.

In October, the PC version steam of the "Xuan Yuan Sword VII" was launched
globally.

In October, the PS4 version of the "Xuan Yuan Sword VII" was launched in Asia.

In December, the PS4 version (Japanese voice version) of the "Xuan Yuan Sword
VII" was launched.

In February, 2021, the PC version steam of the "Xuan Yuan Sword II" was launched
globally.

In February, the PC version steam of the "Anecdotes of Xuan Yuan Sword: Maple
Dancing" was launched globally.

In February, the PC version steam of the "TWMJ: Generations 1-3" was launched
globally.

In March, the "Sword and Fairy: Jiu Ye mobile game" was launched in Taiwan and
Mainland China.



Chapter 3.Corporate Governance Report

I.  Organization
(I)  Organization structure April 30, 2021
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Shareholders' Meeting

Remuneration Committee

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Auditing Office
Chairman:
President
IP Business Division Finance Division Research & Development | Headquarters Cloud Technologies

Division

Administration Division




(IT) Functions of major departments

Department Major function
1. Development and research for new technologies
Research & . o
2. Product quality control and compatibility test for software/hardware.
Development . . -
. 3. Manufacture and progress control for main planning, art design,
Division . . . .
programming, audiovisual post-production, music, sound effect.
Fl.n ance Finance, accounting, and stock affairs.
Division
: 1. Negotiation on overseas licensing for game software and IP.
IP Business . . . .
Division 2. Promotg overseas marketing markets and strategic alliances with other
companies.
1. Legal affairs.
2. Management and maintenance of fixed assets and office administrative
Headquarters affairs
AF“?“.“ istration | 5 Management and maintenance of office information security, ERP system,
Division .
and computer equipment.
4. Related to Human Resources.
Carry out audits on the accuracy and validity for the implementation of the
Auditing internal control system, assist in reviewing and evaluating the operations and
Office operating statements of the Company, and provide improvement
recommendations.
1. Development and research for cloud technologies
Cloud ) . .
. 2. Cross-departmental information integration
Technologies . . .
3. Big data collection and analysis




II. Directors, Supervisors and Management Team

(I) Directors and supervisors

April 2, 2021
Unit: Share

Shares held by spouse | Holding shares in the Titles OtherAsuperwsory roles, director or Remark
Shares held upon elected Shares currently held . . . concurrently | supervisor held by spouse or second-
ionali Date elected Date firstl or minors name of another person | Primary experience held at th d lati (Note 1)
Title Na(tiwng 1tly Name Gender (of Tenure ale 1rz Y (academic Ce & Z cgree IO AUONS End of
. 1Y .
or domictie accession) electe Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Shareholdi | Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding experience) ompany an ) .. | the full
h i h i £ sh i £ sh i other Title Name | Relationship text
shares ratio shares ng ratio Of shares ratio Ol shares ratio companies
EMBA, New York
University, the US
EMBA, Peking
University
Managing Director Director
) The_ Three of Autian Group, Representativ | Hsieh , Relative-in-
Chairman: Republic of | TU, CHUN-KUANG | Male | 2020.06.09 2014.01.17 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% |Hong Kong Note 1 e of Fang- None
X Years X . Law
China Vice President of Corporate Shu
Golden Harvest Shareholder
Group, Hong Kong
Supervisor of VIE
SHOW CINEMAS
CO., LTD., Taiwan
. Angel Fund (Asia)
British Investments Limited Three
Cayman ves . - 2020.06.09 2014.01.17 7,798,562 15.83%| 9,973,503 15.82% _ _ _ _|INVA None None None None None
Islands Angel Fund (Asia) Years
Investments Limited
Mining and
Metallurgy
Director Department, Taipei
The Representative - Three Institute of
Republic of | YAO, CHUANG- | Male | 2020.06.09 Years 2017.06.30 7,199 0.01% 11,937 0.02% 0 0% 0 0% |Technology Note 2 None None None None
China HSIEN Manager of
Development
Department, Softstar
Entertainment Inc.
The ‘Br‘msh ) Three
Virgin Titan Stone Group - 2020.06.09 Years 2020.06.09 7,753 0.02% 9,924 0.02% _ _ _ _IN/A None None None None None
Islands
Lingdong Technical
pieter The Representative: Three (?fogi?:?)l?:%anmem U, Relative-in-
Republic of P  |Female| 2020.06.09 2020.06.09 20,000 0.04% 25,601 0.04% 0 0% 0 0% Y Note 3 Chairman: | CHUN- None
. Hsieh, Fang-Shu Years Employee of Law
China . KUANG
Chinatrust
Commercial Bank
Samoa |KAL Holdings Corp.| - | 2020.06.09 f(z;i: 2017.06.22 2,000 0% 2,560 0% _ B B _INA None None None None None
Department of
Electrical and
. Computer
Director The . : .
Republic of | Representative - KO |y 101 5020.06.00 | T | 2019.01.30 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%| 2,560 09 | hginecring, Duke Note 4 None | None | None | None
China AN LIN Years University, the US
Representative of
PARK HARVEST
CAPITAL INC.




Shares held by spouse | Holding shares in the Titles Other'supervlsory roles, director or Remark
Shares held upon elected Shares currently held . . . concurrently | supervisor held by spouse or second-
. . Date elected or minors name of another person | Primary experience . (Note 1)
. Nationality Date firstly . held at the degree relations
Title L. Name Gender (of Tenure (academic End of
or domicile . elected . . . . . Company and
accession) Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Shareholdi | Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding experience) h . . .| the full
hares ratio shares ng ratio |of shares ratio of shares ratio omer Title Name | Relationship text
S g companies
M.S. of Accounting,
National Chengchi
The University
Independent - Three o o o o, | Banking Officer,
Director Re;él:]bl::;: of | HUNG, PI-LIEN |Female| 2020.06.09 Years 2017.06.22 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% Taipei Exchange Note 5 None None None None
Supervisor of
LIWANLI
Innovation Co., Ltd.
Accounting Statistics
Department, Private
Independent The Three Tamsui Oxford
P Republic of [ TSAIL, CHENG-YUN| Male | 2020.06.09 2017.06.22 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% Note 6 None None None None
Director China Years College
Manager, CTBC
Bank Co., Ltd.
B.S., Mechanical Taiwan
Engineering, Deputy
The National Central President of
Independent . HSIEH, GUO- Three o o o ., |University Taiwan
Director Repul?llc of DONG Male | 2020.06.09 Years 2017.06.22 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% Business manager of | VMware None None None None
China .
IBM Information
Business director of | Technology
EMC LLC.

Note 1: If the chairman of the Company is the same person, spouse or relative of first degree as the general manager or the person holding equivalent position (top manager), he/she shall explain the reasons, rationality, necessity,
corresponding measures (such as increasing the number of Independent Directors, keeping more than half of the Directors not concurrently serving as employees or managers, etc.) and other related information :

Note 1: Director of SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC., SOFTSTAR GLOBAL INC. and SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED, Chairman of XINGYU INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC., Director of SOFTSTAR

INTERNATIONAL INC., director of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEIJING) CO., LTD., director of Double Edge Entertainment Corp. (legal representative of Softstar Entertainment), director of Gamebase Digital

Media Corporation (legal representative of Softstar Entertainment), director of Angel Fund (Asia) Investments Limited, director of Global Angel Investments Limited (legal representative), director of Oriental Golden

Richness LTD., director of Angel (Partners) Investments Limited, director of BACCHUS WINE GROUP CO., LTD. (legal representative), director of BACCHUS WINE GROUP CO., LTD., director of ANGEL WINE &
SPIRIT GROUP CO., LTD., director of MIGHTY BUILD VENTURES LIMITED, chairman of Hezheng Technology Co., Ltd., director of Kyle Irwin Wine International Co., Ltd., director of TIME VISION
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, director of BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, director of MIGHTY LEADER LIMITED,
Co., Ltd.).

Note 2: Director and President of Softstar Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

and chairman of LVZUO Co., Ltd. (legal representative of Uniplus Electronics

Note 3: Chairman of Lianhe Weima Co., Ltd., supervisor of XINGYU INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. (legal representative of Softstar Entertainment) and director of Hezheng Technology Co., Ltd. (legal
representative of Global Angel Investments Limited).
Note 4: Representative of PARK HARVEST CAPITAL INC. and responsible person of BAYONNE GROUP INTERNATIONAL LTD.

Note 5: Independent Director of Weirun Technology Co., Ltd.
Note 6: Independent Director of Chander Electronics Co., Ltd.
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Table 1: Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholders

April 2, 2021

Name of the corporate shareholder Substantial shareholders of corporate Shareholding
(Note 1) shareholder (Note 2) ratio (%)
Angel (Partners) Investments Limited 25%
Angel fund (Asia) Investments Future Kemy Limited 49%
Rocket Parade Investment Limited 26%
Giant Stone Capital Group Corp. Tu, Chun-Jung 100.00%
KAL Holdings Corp. KO AN LIN 100.00%

Note 1: Disclose the name of the corporate shareholder when the Director or Supervisor is the Representative of the corporate

sharecholder.

Note 2: Disclose the name of the substantial shareholder (with top ten shareholding ratio) of the corporate shareholder and its
shareholding ratio. When the substantial shareholder is a corporate, make disclosure in the following Table 2.
Note 3: For corporate shareholders who are not under the organization of the Company, the name and shareholding of the

shareholders shall be disclosed (i.e. name of the investor or donor and their investment or donation ratio).

Table 2: Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholders

April 2, 2021

Name of the corporate shareholder (Note 1)

Substantial shareholders of corporate

Shareholding

shareholder (Note 2) ratio (%)
Angel (Partners) Investments Limited TU, CHUN-KUANG 100.00%
Future Kemy Limited KO, CHIEH-YUAN 100.00%
Rocket Parade Investment Limited CMGE Technology Group limited 100.00%

Note 1: Disclose the name of the corporate when the substantial shareholder is a corporate as in Table 1 above.
Note 2: Disclose the name of the substantial sharecholder (with top ten shareholding ratio) of the corporate and its shareholding ratio.
Note 3: For corporate shareholders who are not under the organization of the Company, the name and shareholding of the

shareholders shall be disclosed (i.e. name of the investor or donor and their investment or donation ratio).
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Information about directors

April 2, 2021
Has more than five years of work experience Serves as
and the followin pZofessional qualigcations Independence (Note 1) Independent
Conditi Serve in lecturer |Currently Working Director for
ondition . . . .
roles or above in|serving asa  |experience other publicly-
public or private |judge, sin listed
college prosecutor,  |business companies
institutions in ~ |lawyer, administrat
one of the accountant, or |ion, law,
following other finance,
departments: professional |accounting,
business practice or oranother | 1 | 2 [3| 4 |5S| 6 |7 |8 |9 |10]11] 12
administration, |technician that|discipline
law, finance, must undergo |relevant to
accounting, or  |national the
another examinations |company's
Name discipline and operations
relevant to the  |specialized
company's license.
operations
Chairman:
TU, CHUN- v v VAR VIV V|V ViV 0
KUANG
Director Angel
Fund (Asia)
Investments
Limited
Angel Fund vV VIVIVIVI V|V v 0
(Asia)
Investments
Limited
Representative
- YAO,
CHUANG- v VIV IVIVIVI VIV 0
HSIEN
Director Stone
Capital Group ViV VIVIVIV VY|V v 0
Co., Ltd.
Representative
: Hsieh, Fang- v VIV IVIVIVIVIVIVI|VY v 0
Shu
Director of
KAL Holdings VIV VIV IVIVIVIVI|VY v 0
Corp.
Representative
_KO AN LIN v VAR VAR VA V4 VIiVvIVI VI VY|V 0
Independent
Director
HONG, PI- v v VIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVI VY Y|V 1
LIEN
Independent
Director TSALI, v VIV IVIVIVIVIVIVIV|IVI V]V 1
CHENG-YUN
Independent
Director
HSIEH. GUO- v VIVIVIVIVIVI VIV Y YV 0
DONG

Note 1: Please tick the boxes for the conditions if the Directors who meet the below-mentioned conditions in two years prior to
the nomination and during his/her term of service.v’

(1) Not employed by the Company or its affiliated companies.
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(2)

©)

(4)
()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)
(12)

Not serving as a Director or Supervisor of the Corporation or any affiliated business (this does not apply in cases
where the person is an Independent Director of the Company, its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same
parent company established in pursuant to this law or local laws).

Not a natural-person shareholder who holds more than 1% of issued shares or is ranked top 10 in terms of the total
quantity of shares held, including the shares held in the name of the person’s spouse, minors, or in the hame of
others.

Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a
managerial officer as stated in (1) or any of the persons mentioned in (2) and (3).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder who directly holds more than 5% of the total
issued shares of the Company, or a top 5 shareholder, or a director or supervisor representative appointed by the
Company in accordance with paragraph 1 or 2, Article 27 of the Company Act (excluding independent directors
appointed by both the Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiaries under the same parent company
pursuant to this regulation or the local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company that the majority of its directors or the shares with
voting rights are controlled by the same person (excluding independent directors appointed by both the Company
and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiaries under the same parent company pursuant to this regulation or the
local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or an institution who is concurrently a chairman, general
manager, or equivalent position of the Company or a spouse thereof (excluding independent directors appointed by
both the Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiaries under the same parent company pursuant to
this regulation or the local regulations)

Not a director, supervisor, managerial officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares of a specified
company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with Aurora (except for a specific company or
institution holding more than 20% but less than 50% of the total issued shares of Aurora and concurrently serving
as an independent director, as appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country,
at Aurora and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent).

Not a professional individual who is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or institution that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation
to the Company or to any affiliate of the Company, nor a spouse thereof with a total compensation below
NT$500,000 in the most recent two years. However, members of the Remuneration Committee, Public Acquisition
Review Committee, or Merger and Acquisition Special Committee who perform their functions and powers in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act or Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act and
other relevant regulations shall not be subject to this provision.

Not having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the
Company.

Where none of the circumstances in the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act applies.

Where the person is not elected in the capacity of the government, a juristic person, or a representative thereof as
provided in Article 27 of the Company Act.
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(IT) President, deputy President, Directors, and directors from each department and branches

April 2, 2021

Title

Nationality

Name

Gender

Date elected
(of accession)

Shareholding

Shares held by
spouse and minors

Holding shares in the
name of another
person

Sharehold
ing ratio

Number
of shares

Number
of
shares

Sharehold
ing ratio

Number
of
shares

Shareholding
ratio

Primary experience (academic experience)

Positions
currently
held in
other
companies

Managers who have

spousal or second-degree
family relationships within

the Company

Title

Relations

Name hip

Remark
(Note 1)
End of the
full text

President

The
Republic of
China

Tsay, Ming-

Hung

Male

2017.06.30

172,355 0.27%

924 0%

0 0%

Industrial Engineering and Management, Oriental
Institute of Technology

Manager of Development Department, Softstar
Entertainment Inc.

Director of Development Department, Softstar
Entertainment Inc.

Vice President of Development Department,
Softstar Entertainment Inc.

Note 1

None

None | None

None

COO

The
Republic of
China

CHEN,
YAO-TIEN

Male

2014.02.07

5,882 0.01%

0 0%

0 0%

Graduated from Department of Chemical
Engineering of Tsing Hua University
Department of Sociology, Chengchi University
Deputy manager of Taiwan Fixed Network
Senior manager of Taiwan Index

CEO of webzen Inc.

Founder and CEO of Cayenne

CEO of the Greater China region, GigaMedia
branch

Director of Spring House Entertainment Tech.

Note 2

None

None | None

None

COO of IP Business
Division

The
Republic of
China

LIEN,
CHIEN-
CHIN

Male

2014.02.07

659 0%

0 0%

0 0%

Department of Computer Science & Engineering,
Yuan Ze University

Master of Department of Computer Science &
Engineering, Yuan Ze University

Engineer, Chunghwa Telecom Laboratory
Manager of Development Department, Guanjiapo
Technology

Assistant manager of Development Department,
Silicon Integrated Systems

General Manager of Joymaster Inc.

Note 3

None

None | None

None

Vice President

The
Republic of
China

HSIEH,
PING-HUI

Male

2015.06.24

Note 7 Note 7

Note 7 Note 7

Note 7 Note 7

Accounting Department of Feng Chia University
Assistant manager, Audit Department, Deloitte & Touche
Director, Finance and Accounting Department,
Uniplus Electronics Co., Ltd.

Senior manager, Finance and Accounting
Department, Arima Optoelectronics Corp.

Director, Main Finance Department, Super Dragon
Technology Co., Ltd.

Note 7

Note 7

Note 7| Note 7

Note 7

Vice President

The
Republic of
China

Chuang,
Jen-Chu'an

Male

2021.02.01

0 0%

0 0%

0 0%

Accounting Department, Tamkang University
Manager of Audit Department of KPMG
CFO of Lanxin Technology Corp.

Deputy General Manager in Management
Department of NEWRETAIL

Note 4

None

None | None

None
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Holding shares in the Managers who have
Sharcholdin Shares held by nameg of another Positions | spousal or second-degree R X
& spouse and minors currently | family relationships within emar
. . . Date elected person . . . . . h (Note 1)
Title Nationality Name Gender (of accession) Primary experience (academic experience) held in the Company End of the
. th .
Number |Sharehold Number Sharehold Number Shareholding oer. . Relations |full text
of shares | ing ratio of ing ratio of ratio companies| Title | Name hip
shares shares
The YAO, OMflgéré%Izli;ll((i) Metallurgy Department, Taipei Institute
Vice President Republic of | CHUANG- | Male | 2005.02.01 11,937 0.02% 0 0% 0 0% M ngy | D t. Softst Note 5 | None | None | None None
China HSIEN anagf.:r of Development Department, Softstar
Entertainment Inc.
Graduate School of Law, Shih Hsin University
Legal Director, Univision Technology
' . Thq LIN, HUL- Leg.al project manager, Airoha Techp(?logy
Vice President Republic of ZHEN Female | 2015.04.16 61,589 0.10% 0 0% 0 0%|Senior legal manager, Donglin Presicion Note 6 | None | None | None None
China Legal manager, Softstar Entertainment
Assistant manager, Administrative Department,
Softstar Entertainment

Note 1: If the General Manager or the person holding equivalent position (top manager) of the Company is the same person, spouse or the first-degree relative, he/she shall explain the reasons, rationality, necessity, corresponding
measures (such as increasing the number of Independent Directors with more than half of the Directors not concurrently serving as employees or managers, etc.) and other related information :
Note 1: Chairman of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation (legal representative of Softstar Entertainment).

Note 2: Director and President of LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. and director of Hezheng Technology Co., Ltd. (legal representative of Softstar Entertainment).

Note 3: Chairman of A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd., president of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation, director of Hongxin Entertainment Co., Ltd., chairman of Lixunnuo Technology Co., Ltd. and responsible person of Tokyo
Fashion Co., Ltd. in R.O.C.

Note 4: Director of NEWRETAIL (legal representative of Telan Business Management Consulting Co., Ltd.) and director of Chander Electronics Co., Ltd. (legal representative of New Profit Holding Ltd.).
Note 5: Director and President of Softstar Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Note 6: Supervisor of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation
Note 7: Resigned on January 31, 2021.
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III. Compensations to Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice Presidents in the Most Recent Year

(I) Compensation of General Directors and Independent Directors

December 31, 2020
Unit: NT$1,000/thousand shares

Director's remuneration

Ratio of the total of 4

Compensations paid to concurrent employees

Ratio of the total of 7 items

Compensation

items A, B, Cand D to Salary. B d paid to
. . o alary, Bonus, ani . A, B,C,D,E F,andGtonet| .
Remuneration (A) Retirement pension Directors (C) Allowances (D) (Note net profit after tax (%) Allowance (E) Retirement pension (F) Employee Compensation (G) profit after tax (%) directors from
(Note 2) (B) Note 3 4) Note 10 Note 6 Note 10 an invested
Title Name (Note 3) ( ) (Note 5) (Note 6) ( ) company other
than the
All All All companies All All . All companies All companies in the CO'“P{'"X s
- - . L . All companies . . . subsidiaries or
companiesin| The [companies in in the The [companies in companies . " . in the The Company financial report (Note -
! ; ! ; The . X R . The . The |inthe financial | The . . companies in | parent
The Company | the financial [ Compa | the financial financial Compa | the financial in the financial 7 The Company ) .
Company Company | . . Company report Company the financial |company
report (Note | ny | report (Note report ny report financial (Note 7) report (Note Cash Stock Cash Stock report Note 11
7) 7) (Note 7) (Note 7) report 7) as P (Note 11)
. TU, CHUN-
Chairman:
KUANG
Angel Fund (ASIA)
Director |Investments
Limited, British
Cayman Islands
Representative:
YAO, CHUANG-
HSIEN
China Development
Director  |Mobile Technology
(Note 12)  |Ltd. (British Virgin
Islands)
Representative: LIN,
CHIA-LI
British Virgin 1,680 1,680 0 0 980 980| 570 570|  5.68 5.68) 2,958 2,958 45 45 208 208 0 11.32 11.32 3,046
Director  |Islands Stone
(Note 12) | Capital Group Co.,
Ltd.
Representative:
Hsieh, Fang-Shu
. KAL Holdings
Director
Corp., Samoa
Representative: KO
AN LIN
Independent
A HUNG, PI-LIEN
Director
Independent |TSAI, CHENG-
Director  |YUN
Independent [HSIEH, GUO-
Director |DONG
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1.

Please illustrate the policies, systems, standards and structure of independent directors' remuneration, as well as the correlation between the remuneration and the responsibilities,
risks, and time:

According to Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act and relevant laws and regulations, the duties of an independent director may include the following matters. If an
independent director has any objection or reservation, it shall be recorded in the minutes of the board meeting:

(1) Adoption or amendment of the internal control system pursuant to Article 14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(2) Adoption or amendment of procedures for acquisition or disposal of assets, engaging in derivative trading, lending funds to others, and making endorsements or providing
guarantees pursuant to Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(3) Matters bearing on the personal interest of a director or a supervisor.

(4) Major assets or derivatives trading.

(5) Significant lending, endorsement or provision of guarantees.

(6) Raising, issuing, or private placing of equity-type securities.

(7) Appointment, dismissal, and compensation of CPAs.

(8) Appointment and dismissal of finance, accounting, or internal audit supervisors.
(9) Other major items required by the competent authority.

The Company has formulated the "Rules for the Scope of Duties of Independent Directors" and "Remuneration Policy for Directors and Managers". The Company has three
Independent Directors, and all Independent Directors form a Remuneration Committee and an Audit Committee. The remuneration of Independent Directors shall be fixed monthly
and shall not participate in the Company's profit distribution.

Other than disclosure in the above table, Directors remunerations received by providing services (e.g. providing consulting services as a non-employee) to the Company and all
consolidated entities in the 2019 financial statements: None.
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Table of remuneration ranges

Name of the Director

Total remuneration of the above 4 items

Total remuneration of the above 7

Below NT$1,000,000

and Representative
LIN, CHIA-LI/Stone
Capital Group Co.,
Ltd., British Virgin
Islands and
Representative Hsieh,

and Representative
LIN, CHIA-LI/Stone
Capital Group Co.,
Ltd., British Virgin
Islands and
Representative Hsieh,

and Representative
LIN, CHIA-LI/Stone
Capital Group Co.,
Ltd., British Virgin
Islands and
Representative Hsieh,

Table of remuneration ranges for (A+B+C+D) items (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)
Directors of the Company cos T
The Company All. companies l_15ted The Company Parent company and
(Note 8) in the financial (Note 8) all investees
report (Note 9) H (Note 9) I

Angel Fund (ASIA)  |Angel Fund (ASIA)  [Angel Fund (ASIA)  |Angel Fund (ASIA)
Investments Limited, |Investments Limited, |Investments Limited, |Investments Limited,
British Cayman British Cayman British Cayman British Cayman
Islands/China Islands/China Islands/China Islands/China
Development Mobile |Development Mobile |Development Mobile [Development Mobile
Technology Ltd., Technology Ltd., Technology Ltd., Technology Ltd.,
British Virgin Islands |British Virgin Islands |British Virgin Islands |British Virgin Islands

and Representative
LIN, CHIA-LI/Stone
Capital Group Co.,
Ltd., British Virgin
Islands and
Representative Hsieh,

Fang-Shu/ KAL  |Fang-Shu/ KAL Fang-Shu/ KAL Fang-Shu/ KAL

NT$1 million (inclusive)~NT$2 million (exclusive) None None None None
NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$3,500,000 YAO, CHUANG-
(exclusive) None None HSIEN None
NT$3.5 million (inclusive)~NT$5 million
(exclusive) None None None None
NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$10,000,000 YAO, CHUANG-
(exclusive) None None None HSIEN
NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$15,000,000
(exclusive) None None None None
NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$30,000,000
(exclusive) None None None None
NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$50,000,000
(exclusive) None None None None
NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$100,000,000
(exclusive) None None None None
Over NT$100,000,000 None None None None

Total 12 persons 12 persons 12 persons 12 persons
Note 1: The names of Directors shall be listed separately (names of corporate shareholders and corporate representatives shall be listed separately),

general Directors and Independent Directors shall be listed respectively and the payment amounts shall be disclosed collectively. This table

and table (3-1), or tables (3-2-1) and (3-2-2) below shall be filled out if a director concurrently serves as the President or Senior Vice

President.

Note 2:

Note 3: Amount of remuneration distributed to Director after being approved by the Board for the past year.

Remuneration of Directors during the past year (including salaries, job remuneration, severance, bonuses, and performance fees).

Note 4: Allowances paid out to Directors for the past year (including transport, special expenses, various allowances, accommodation, vehicles, and

provision of physical goods). For expenses exclusive to an individual (such as houses, vehicle, and other transport vehicles), disclose the

nature and costs, actual or imputed rent based on the fair market price, gas expenses, and other allowances for the assets provided. Where
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drivers are otherwise provided, please illustrate in notes regarding the compensation paid to drivers, excluding from the remuneration.

Note 5: Salary, job-related allowances, separation pay, various bonuses, incentives, transportation allowance, special expenses, various allowances,
accommodation allowance vehicles, and provision of physical goods received by Directors who concurrently serve as employees (including
President, Vice President, other managerial officers, and employees) for the past year. For expenses exclusive to an individual (such as
houses, vehicle, and other transport vehicles), disclose the nature and costs, actual or imputed rent based on the fair market price, gas
expenses, and other allowances for the assets provided. Where drivers are otherwise provided, please illustrate in notes regarding the
compensation paid to drivers, excluding from the remuneration. Any salary listed under IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment, including the issuance
of employee stock options certificate, restricted stock awards and cash increase through shares subscription shall also be included in the

remuneration.

Note 6: If the directors who acted as employees concurrently (including president, vice president, managerial officer and employee) received
employee bonus (including stock dividend and cash dividend) in the most recent year, please disclose the employee bonus approved by the
Board of Directors prior to the motion for allocation of earnings submitted to the shareholders' meeting in the most recent year. If it is
impossible to impute the same, the amount to be allocated this year shall be based on that allocated physically last year, and please also

specify the table 1-3.

Note 7: Disclose the total remuneration of all items paid out to the Company's Directors by all companies (including the Company) in the

consolidated financial report.

Note 8: The name of each Director shall be disclosed in the range of remuneration corresponding to the amount of all the remuneration paid to each

Director by the Company.

Note 9: Disclose the total remuneration of all items paid out to the Company's Directors by all companies (including the Company) in the

consolidated financial report and the name of each Director in the range of remuneration corresponding to the amount of remuneration.
Note 10: Net profit after tax refers to the net profit after tax in the most recent parent company only or individual financial report.

Note 11: a. This field should clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the Company’s directors from a reinvestment business other

than a subsidiary or the parent company (if not, please fill in “none”).

b. If the Director of the Company receives remuneration from investee companies other than subsidiaries of parent company, the amount of
remuneration received by the Director from the investee companies other than subsidiaries and parent company shall be combined into

Column I of the Table of remuneration ranges, and this column shall be renamed as "parent company and all investee companies".

c. The remuneration shall refer to the remuneration, compensation, employee bonus and professional practicing fees received by the
Company's directors who acted as the directors, supervisors or managerial officers (including employees, directors and supervisors) of

investees other than subsidiaries.

* The concept of the disclosed remuneration in the Table differs from that of the Income Tax Act; therefore, the Table is for information disclosure

only, instead of tax collection.

Note 12: Re-election for all Directors was carried out at the shareholders' meeting of the Company on June 9, 2020; China Development Mobile

Technology Co., Ltd., British Virgin Islands was replaced by Stone Capital Group Co., Ltd., British Virgin Islands.

(1) Remuneration for Supervisors
Re-election for all Directors was carried out at the shareholders' meeting of the Company on
Jun. 22, 2017. The Audit Committee was established to substitute Supervisors; therefore, no
remuneration for Supervisors occurred during 2020.
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(111) Remuneration for the President and Vice President

December 31, 2020
Unit: NT$1,000/thousand shares

Bonuses and special

Ratio of Total Remuneration

Compensation paid
to directors from an

Salary (A) . . Employees' remuneration (D) (A+B+C+D) to After-tax Net
(Note 2) Retirement pension (B) ex?’izlr;i:s3§C) (Note 4) Income (%) invested company
(Note 8) other than the
Title Name c ,
All All All All companies in the ompany:s
companies companies companies The Company financial report All subsidiaries or parent
The in the The in the The in the (Note 5) The companies in
Company financial Company financial Company financial Company the financial company
report report report Cash Stock Cash Stock report (Note 9)
(Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 5)
President Tsay, Ming-
Hung
. . CHEN, YAO-
Vice President TIEN
. . LIEN,
Vice President CHIEN-CHIN
YAO, 23,436 24,319 350 350 244 244 785 0 785 0 43.61% 45.17% 3,046
Vice President CHUANG-
HSIEN
. . HSIEH,
Vice President PING-HUI
. . LIN, HUI-
Vice President ZHEN
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Table of remuneration ranges

Table of remuneration ranges for President
and Vice President of the Company

Name of President and Vice President

Parent company and all

The Company (Note 6) investee companies (Note 7) E

Below NT$1,000,000 None None

NT$1 million (inclusive)~NT$2 million

(exclusive) None None

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$3,500,000 YAO CHUANG HSIEN/LIN, HUI-

(exclusive) ZHEN LIN, HUI-ZHEN

NT$3.5 million (inclusive)~NT$5 million CHEN, YAO-TIEN/ LIEN, CHIEN- | CHEN, YAO-TIEN/ LIEN, CHIEN-
(exclusive) CHIN/HSIEH, PING-HUI CHIN/HSIEH, PING-HUI

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$10,000,000

Tsay, Ming-Hung TSAY, MING-HONG/YAO,

(exclusive) CHUANG-HSIEN
NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$15,000,000

(exclusive) None None
NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$30,000,000

(exclusive) None None
NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$50,000,000

(exclusive) None None
NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) — NT$100,000,000

(exclusive) None None

Over NT$100,000,000 None None

Total 6 persons 6 persons
Note 1: The names of President and Vice President shall be listed separately, and the payment amounts shall be disclosed collectively. This table and

Note 2:
Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 7:
Note 9:

table (1-1), or tables (1-2-1) and (1-2-2) below shall be filled out if a director concurrently serves as the President or Senior Vice President.

Salaries, job remuneration, and severance of President or Vice President during the past year

Various bonuses, incentives, transportation allowance, special expenses, various allowances, dormitory, vehicles, and provision of physical

goods as well as other remuneration provided to President or Vice President during the past year. For expenses exclusive to an individual

(such as houses, vehicle, and other transport vehicles), disclose the nature and costs, actual or imputed rent based on the fair market price, gas

expenses, and other allowances for the assets provided. Where drivers are otherwise provided, please illustrate in notes regarding the

compensation paid to drivers, excluding from the remuneration. Any salary listed under IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment, including the issuance
of employee stock options certificate, restricted stock awards and cash increase through shares subscription shall also be included in the
remuneration.

Refer to the distribution amount of remuneration (including stock and cash) for President and Vice President approved by the Board for the past

year, disclose the amount of remuneration distributed to employees after being approved by the Board for the past year. For amounts that are

unable to estimate, propose the distribution amount for the year based on the actual distribution made last year, and fill out the Table 1-3.

The total amount of the remuneration of all the companies (including the Company) in the combined report to the General Manager and Deputy

General Manager of the company should be disclosed.

The name of each President and Vice President shall be disclosed in the range of remuneration corresponding to the amount of all the

remuneration paid to each President and Vice President by the Company.

Disclose the total remuneration of all items paid out to the Company's President and Vice President by all companies (including the Company)

in the consolidated financial report and the name of each President and Vice President in the range of remuneration corresponding to the amount

of remuneration.

Net income after tax refers to net income after tax listed in the individual or stand-alone financial statements in the most recent year.

a. This field should clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the Company’s general manager or vice general manager from a
reinvestment business other than a subsidiary or the parent company (if not, please fill in “none”).

b. If the president and vice presidents of the Company receive remuneration from invested companies other than subsidiaries or parent company,
the remuneration received by the president and vice presidents of the Company from invested companies other than subsidiaries or parent
company shall be included in Column E in the Remuneration Range Table, and the column heading shall be changed to "Parent Company
and all Invested Companies."

c¢. The remuneration shall refer to the remuneration, compensation, employee bonus and professional practicing fees received by the Company's

presidents and vice presidents who acted as the directors, supervisors or managerial officers (including employees, directors and supervisors)
of investees other than subsidiaries.

* The concept of the disclosed remuneration in the Table differs from that of the Income Tax Act; therefore, the Table is for information disclosure only,
instead of tax collection.
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Amount of Employee Bonus Paid to Managerial Officers and Their Names:

December 31, 2020
Unit: Thousand NT$

Ratio of total
Stock Cash Total amount to after-tax
net income (%)

Title Name
(Note 1) (Note 1)

Tsay, Ming-
Hung
Vice |CHEN, YAO-
President TIEN

President

< Vice LIEN,

S president | CHIEN-

0% CHIN

=, . YAO, o
% prggi((:jint CHUANG- 0 819 819 1.44%
= HSIEN

o Vice HSIEH,

President | PING-HUI
Vice LIN, HUI-
President ZHEN
Director | RAO, RUI-
(Note 2) JUN

Note 1: Names and titles shall be disclosed separately but the amount of profit distributed can be
disclosed collectively.

Note 2: Please specify the employee remuneration (including stock and cash) to be allocated to the
managerial officers as approved by the Board of Directors in the most recent year. If it is
impossible to estimate the amount, the amount to be allocated this year shall be based on that
allocated physically last year. Net profit after tax refers to those that occurred during the past
year. For companies adopted International Financial Reporting Standards, net profit after tax
shall refer to those recorded in the parent company only financial report or the individual
financial report for the past year.

Note 3: Managerial officers herein as defined in FSC's Decree No. 0920001301 include on March 27,
2003

(1) General Manager and equivalents

(2) Deputy General Manager and equivalents
(3) Assistant General Manager and equivalents
(4) Head of Financial Department

(5) Head of Accounting Department

(6) Other people in charge of the Company's operational affairs and entitled to sign
instruments on behalf of the Company.

Note 4: If any director, president or vice president has received employee bonus (including stock
dividend and cash dividend), please complete table 1-2 and also this table.
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(IV) Separately compare and describe total remuneration, as a percentage of net profit after
tax stated in the parent company only financial report or the individual financial report,
as paid by the Company and by each other company included in the consolidated
financial statements during the past two years to Directors, Supervisors, President, and
Vice President, and analyze and describe remuneration policies, standards, and packages,
the procedure for determining remuneration, and its linkage to operating performance
and future risk exposure:

1. Total remuneration, as a percentage of net profit after tax stated in the parent company only
financial report or the individual financial report, as paid by the Company in the consolidated
financial statements during the past two years:

2019 2020
Percentage to the net profit Percentage to the net profit
. after tax of the parent . after tax of the parent
Total remuneration . Total remuneration .
company only financial company only financial
(NT$1,000) L (NT$1,000) S
report or the individual report or the individual
Title financial report (%) financial report (%)
All All All All
companies companies companies companies
The K The . The . The .
in the in the in the in the
Company . Company . Company . Company .
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
report report report report
Director
14,963 15,759 4.59 4.83 6,441 6,441 11.32 11.32
(Note)
Supervisors - - - - - - - -
Presidents
and Vice 68,461 72,115 21.00 2212 24,815 25,698 43.61 45.17
President

Note: Remuneration for Directors include remuneration for Directors as concurrent employees. For 2019, the profit after
tax in the parent company only financial report was NT$326,039 thousand. For 2020, the profit after tax in the parent
company only financial report was NT$56,896 thousand. Re-election for all Directors was carried out at the
shareholders' meeting of the Company on Jun. 22, 2017. The Audit Committee was established to substitute
Supervisors.

2. Procedures for determining remuneration policy, standard and remuneration:

Policies on remuneration to directors and employees are drafted in the Articles of
Incorporation. If profit is made, after accumulated deficit is covered, no less than 3% for
employee's remuneration and no more than 3% for director's remuneration should be allocated.
Independent directors of the Company receive remuneration at fixed amounts but they do not
participate in the distribution of directors' remuneration.

Director's remuneration ratio should be distributed according to evaluation items such as
title, attendance rate and participation in daily management of company in "Policy on
Remuneration for Directors, Independent Directors, Remuneration/Audit Committee and
Managerial Officers". The remuneration ratio should be discussed by the Remuneration
Committee, approved by board resolution and reported to the Board of Shareholders.

Payment method for remuneration for General Manager and Vice President should be
established according to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company's salary system
evaluation items, such as department performance, achievement rate and contribution degree
of special performance and management performance of managerial officers, and through
reference to criteria for the same position of the industry.

3. Linkage to operating performance and future risk exposure: Payment of remuneration for
Directors, President, and deputy President shall be based on related requirements of the
Company and adjusted according to the operating performance and future risk exposure of
the Company, and potential risks in the future shall be fully considered.

23



IV. Implementation of Corporate Governance
() Operations of the Board:

(1) Board of Directors

A total of 10 (A) meetings of the Board of Directors were held in the recent years. The attendance
of the directors is as follows:

Rate of Actual

Actual Number of Attendance (%)
Title Name (Note 1) attendance | delegated [B/A] ° Remark
rate (B) | attendance (Note 2)
Chairman: |TU, CHUN-KUANG 10 0 100.00 Reappoiment
Angel Fund (ASIA)
Investments Limited, R tment
Director  |British Cayman Islands 10 0 100.00 Onejlsiglg r;ggo
(Representative: YAO, ’
CHUANG-HSIEN)
China Development
Mobile Technology Ltd.
Director  |(British Virgin Islands) 0 1 0.00 Former term
(Representative: LIN,
CHIA-LI)
British Virgin Islands
Stone Capital Group Newl ted
Director  |Co., Ltd. 5 0 100.00 000
(Representative: Hsieh, ’
Fang-Shu)
KAL Holdings Corp., R tment
Director |Samoa (Representative: 6 0 60.00 Oneiggglg r;g;o
KO AN LIN) ’
Independent Reappointment
Director HUNG, PI-LIEN 10 0 100.00 on June 9, 2020
Independent Reappointment
Director TSAI, CHENG-YUN 10 0 100.00 on June 9, 2020
Independent Reappointment
Director HSIEH, GUO-DONG 8 2 80.00 on June 9, 2020

Other required disclosures:

I. When one of the following situations occurred to the operations of the Board, state the date and term

of the Board meeting, the content of proposals, opinions of all Independent Directors and the

Company's actions in response to the opinions of the Independent Directors:
() Matters included in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

10 Board meetings were convened during 2020; the resolutions are as disclosed on page 56 to

page 59 in the annual report. Matters included in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange

Act were approved as proposed by all Independent Directors.

(1) Other resolutions of the Board, which the Independent Directors voiced objection or
reservation that are documented or issued through a written statement in addition to the above:

None.

I1. Regarding recusals of directors from voting due to conflicts of interests, the names of the directors,
contents of motions, reasons for recusal, and results of voting shall be specified:
(1) The 6th proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on Jan. 7, 2020: The proposal for the
appointment of managerial officers: Among all the attending Directors, Director YAO
CHUANG HSIEN had abstained due to interests, and the remaining Directors have approved

the proposal as proposed.
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(2) The 20th proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on March 5, 2020: The proposal for
the revision of remuneration policy for directors, independent directors, remuneration/audit
committee and managerial officers: Among all the attending Directors, Director HUNG, PI-
LIEN, TSAI, CHENG-YUN and HSIEH, GUO-DONG had abstained due to interests, and
the remaining Directors have approved the proposal as proposed.

(3) The 9th proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on April 23, 2020: The proposal for the
adjustment of remuneration for relevant managerial officers of the Company: Among all the
attending Directors, Director YAO CHUANG HSIEN had abstained due to interests, and the
remaining Directors have approved the proposal as proposed.

(4) The 4th proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on July 29, 2020: The proposal for the
review on the list of nominated Director candidates by the Board meeting: Among all the
attending Directors, Director HUNG, PI- LIEN, TSAI, CHENG-YUN and HSIEH, GUO-
DONG had abstained due to interests, and the remaining Directors have approved the
proposal as proposed.

(5) The 1st proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on Aug. 12, 2020: The proposal for the
distribution of remuneration for employees to managerial officers of the Company in 2017:
Among all the attending Directors, Director TU, CHUN-KUANG and YAO CHUANG
HSIEN had abstained due to interests, and the remaining Directors have approved the
proposal as proposed.

(6) The 2nd proposal for discussion at the Board meeting on Aug. 12, 2020: The proposal for the
distribution of remuneration for employees to managerial officers of the Company in 2018:
Among all the attending Directors, Director YAO CHUANG HSIEN had abstained due to
interests, and the remaining Directors have approved the proposal as proposed.

I1l. TWSE/TPEX listed companies shall disclose information such as the evaluation cycle and period,
scope, method, and items of the Board’s self (or peer) evaluation, and fill out the implementation

status of evaluation of the Board in Table 2(2).

IV. Goals (e.g. establishing an audit committee, enhancing information transparency) primed to
enhance the board of directors’ professionalism and the assessment on their effectiveness for the
year and the most recent year:

(1) The Company is equipped with the Remuneration Committee: The Remuneration Committee
assesses the remuneration policies and system for Directors and managerial officers of the
Company, and provide advice to the Board.

(2) According to the Company Act and Article 14-3, Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange
Act, proposals that require the consent from the Audit Committee or the approval of the Board
meeting have been agreed by the Audit Committee, approved by the resolution of the Board
meeting for implementation (proposals that require no consent from the Audit Committee
have been approved by the resolution of the Board meeting for implementation).

(3) Enhancing information transparency: The Company has announced the material resolution
passed by the Board meeting according to the relevant laws and regulations.

Note 1: Where the Director or Supervisor is assumed by a corporate, disclose the name of the corporate shareholder and

the name of its representative.

Note 2: (1) Where Directors or Supervisors resign before the end of the year, the Notes column shall be annotated with
the date of resignation. Actual presence rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of Board meetings
convened and actual presence during the term of service.

(2) When re-election is held for Directors or Supervisors before the end of the year, members of both the new and
old Directors or Supervisors shall be listed in separate columns and noted as new, old or re- elected members,
along with the elected date, in the remark column. Actual presence (attendance) rate (%) shall be calculated
using the number of Directors’ Meetings convened and actual presence (attendance) during the term of service.

25



(2) Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors

Evaluation Annually
cycle
(Note 1)

Period of | Evaluating the performance of the Board from January 1, 2020 to
Evaluation December 31, 2020.

(Note 2)

Scope Including performance evaluation of Board of Directors, individual

(Note 3) directors and functional committee

Evaluation Self-evaluation of the Board of Directors and functional committee and
methods self-evaluation of board members of the Company for 2020

(Note 4)

Assessment | (1) Self-assessment

Content Evaluation of performance for the Board of Directors: Including
(Note 5) participation in the operation of the Company, the quality of the Board of

Directors' decision making, composition and structure of the Board of
Directors, election and continuing education of the directors, and internal
control, etc.

Evaluation of performance for the individual board members: Including
alignment of the goals and missions of the Company, awareness of the duties
of a director, participation in the operation of the Company, management of
internal relationship and communication, the director's professionalism and
continuing education, and internal control.

Performance evaluation of the functional committees: At least include the
level of participation in the Company's operations, the cognition of duties of
functional committees, the quality of the functional committees' decisions,
the composition and election of the members of the functional committees,
internal control, etc.

(2) External assessment (every three years)

On December 24, 2019, the Company engaged EY Business Management
Consulting Service Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as EY) to conduct the
evaluation of the Board performance for 2019 in terms of structure, people,
and process and information through documentation review, self-evaluation
survey, and on-site interview. The evaluation ranged over the Board structure
and process, Board members, corporate organization, roles and
responsibilities, behavior and culture, director training and development,
supervision of risk control, and supervision of reporting, disclosure, and
performance.

Note 1: Fill in the evaluation cycle of the Board of Directors. For example: once a year.

Note 2: Fill in the period covered by the evaluation covered by the Board of Directors. For example: The performance evaluation of the
Board of Directors from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

Note 3: The scope of the evaluation includes the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, individual board members and functional
committees.

The evaluation methods include self-evaluation of the Board of Directors, self-evaluation of the Directors, peer evaluation,

appointment of external professional institutions or experts, or other appropriate methods.

Note 5: The evaluation content includes at least the following items according to the evaluation scope:

(1) Performance evaluation of the Board of Directors: At least include the level of participation in the Company's operations, the
quality of the Board of Directors' decisions, the composition and structure of the Board of Directors, the election and
continuous education of directors, internal control, etc.

(2) Performance evaluation of individual Directors: at least including the mastery of the Company's objectives and tasks, the
cognition of Directors' responsibilities, the degree of participation in the Company's operation, internal relationship
management and communication, Directors' professional and continuous learning, internal control, etc.

(3) Performance evaluation of the functional committees: At least include the level of participation in the Company's operations,
the cognition of duties of functional committees, the quality of the functional committees' decisions, the composition and
election of the members of the functional committees, internal control, etc.
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(IT) Audit Committee

Since June 22, 2017, the Company has set up an Audit Committee to replace the

Supervisors. The Audit Committee is composed of three Independent Directors. The

purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors to fulfill its quality

and integrity in supervising the Company's implementation of accounting, audit,

financial reporting process and financial control.

The Audit Committee held 8 meetings in 2020, and the major matters reviewed

include:

(1) Review annual and quarterly financial reports and earnings distribution plans of

the Company

(2) Revision of internal control system and assessment of effectiveness of internal

control

(3) Assessing the independence of CPAs

(4) Funds raising, issuance or private placement of marketable securities

(5) Proposal for repurchase of some shares of the Company

(6) Annual audit plans

A total of 8 (A) meetings of the Audit Committee were held in the most recent year

(2020). The attendance of independent directors is as follows:

Title Name Attendance | Number of delegated Remark
Actual attendance rate (%)
in person attendance
(B/A) (Note)
B)

Independent | HUNG, PI- 3 0 100.00 Reappointment on
Director LIEN ) June 9, 2020
Independent TSAL Reappointment on
Director | CHENG- 8 0 100.00 June 9, 2020

YUN ’
Independent | HSIEH, 6 ) 75.00 Reappointment on
Director GUO-DONG ) June 9, 2020

Other required disclosures:
I. When one of the following situations occurred to the operations of the Audit Committee, state the date and term of the
Board meeting, the content of proposals, opinions of all Independent Directors and the Company's actions in response to
the opinions of the Independent Directors:

(1) Items listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Board of Period Agenda The resolution | Company's
Directors results of the response
Date Audit regarding the
Committee Audit
Committee's
opinions
2020.3.5 1st Board (1) Amendment to the accounting All members All the
19th meeting system of the Company of the Audit directors
(2) Revision of the Company's Committee present
internal control system, unanimously unanimously
management measures and approved the approved the
internal audit system proposal. proposal.
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(3) Proposal for self-inspection on the
internal control system for 2019
(4) Amendment to the Procedures for
Lending Funds to Other Parties.
(5) Amendment to the Procedures for
Endorsements and Guarantees.
(6) 2019 Financial Report
(7) Proposal for carrying out the
private placing of ordinary shares
2020.4.23 1st Board (1) 2019 proposal for increasing the All members All the
The 21st capital by earnings and capital of the Audit directors
time reserve and issuing new shares Committee present
unanimously unanimously
approved the approved the
proposal. proposal.
2020.10.8 2nd board (1) Proposal for authorizing the All members All the
3rd meeting Chairman to purchase property of the Audit directors
Committee present
unanimously unanimously
approved the approved the
proposal. proposal.
2020.11.10 2nd board (1) 2021 annual audit plan All members All the
4th meeting of the Audit directors
Committee present
unanimously unanimously
approved the approved the
proposal. proposal.

(1) In addition to the items in the preceding sentence, other resolutions passed by two-thirds of all the Directors but
yet to be approved by the Audit Committee: None.

II. Independent Directors abstaining in certain proposals for being a stakeholder, disclose (the name of the Independent

Director(s), the content of the proposal, reasons for abstentions and the results of voting counts shall be stated): No.

II1. Communication between Independent Directors and head of internal audit and CPA (including material issues, audit

methods, and results relating to the Company's finances and business):

The head of internal audit shall establish an annual audit plan regarding the overall finance, business, and risk evaluation

results of the Company, submit an internal audit report every month, present at meetings every quarter to report each

audit procedures, audit results, and improvement for deficiencies according to audit items, and carry out a comprehensive

description regarding the validity assessment results for internal control at the end of the year. Furthermore, Independent

Directors may require the head of internal audit to explain the execution of internal control and corporate governance at

any time based on the requirements of reviews.

Independent Directors and CPAs shall have at least one regular meeting per year (by way of formal letters) to understand

the audit plan and key audit matters, and to understand the financial condition and internal control audit of the group.

Independent Directors may contact CPAs at any time when necessary.

* Where Independent Directors resign before the end of the year, the Notes column shall be annotated with the date of
resignation. Actual presence rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of the Audit Committee meetings convened
and actual presence during the term of service.

% When re-election is held for Independent Directors before the end of the year, members of both the new and old
Independent Directors shall be listed in separate columns and noted as new, old or re-elected members, along with the
elected date, in the Notes column. Actual presence rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of the Audit
Committee meetings convened and actual presence during the term of service.
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(IIT) Implementation of corporate governance and the deviations from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons

Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles

for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies
I. Has the Company established and disclosed its corporate The Company has established its "Code of Corporate
governance code of practice according to the Corporate | v/ Governance" and published the information in relation to No material deviation
Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx corporate governance on its official corporate website according '
Listed Companies? to the requirements under relevant laws and regulations.
II. Shareholding structure and shareholders' interests
() Has the Company established internal procedures for v ()  The Company has a spokesperson to address the problems
handhpg shareholders’ proposals, inquiries, dlsputes, set out on the left.
and hItlgatlon? Are such matters handled according to | v/ (IT)  Substantial shareholders shall notify the Company at the
such internal procedures? beginni fih th dine the inf . .
(IT) Has the Company maintained a register of substantial | peginning of the Month regarding the itormation on equity
shareholders with controlling power as well as a increase/decrease or pledge for ‘Fhe past mor.lth; the
register of persons exercising ultimate control over v Company shall compile the equity information of all
those substantial shareholders? substantial shareholders and report to the Market
(IIT) Has the Company established and enforce risk Observation Post System. No material
control and firewall systems with its affiliated (III) The division of responsibility and authority for personnel deviati
. . . eviation.
companies? affairs, assets, and financial management shall be clearly
(IV) Has the Company stipulated internal rules that defined and duly performed. The risk assessment and the
prohibit company insiders from trading securities appropriate firewall is duly implemented. The Company has
using information not disclosed to the market? established and duly complied with the "regulations for the
management of subsidiaries", and the audit personnel has
been supervising the implementation regularly.
(IV) The Company has established the "Procedures for Handling
Material Inside Information and Preventing Insider Trading"
to prevent insider trading and protect the interests of
investors and the Company.
III. Composition and responsibilities of the Board
(I)  Has the Company established a diversification policy | v* () The Company has established the diversification policy for

for the composition of its Board and has it been
implemented accordingly?

the composition of its Board; the Board members generally
have required knowledge, skills, and literacy for the
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles

Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies
(II) Other than the Remuneration Committee and the execution of their responsibilities in respect with the
Audit Committee required by law, does the Company operating practices or financial business of the Company.  [No material deviation.
plan to establish other functional committees v Diversification policy and the implementation are disclosed
voluntarily? _ _ on the website of the Company.
(Ill) Did the company Stlpulate regulations for. (1) Except for establishing the Remuneration Committee
performance evaluation of the board, and its v

evaluation method, and conduct performance
evaluation on a yearly basis; and submit the results
of performance assessments to the board of directors
and use them as reference in determining
compensation for individual directors, their
nomination and additional office term?

Has the Company regularly implemented
assessments on the independence of the CPA?

Iv)

according to the law, the Company has increased the seats
for Independent Directors during the re-election of Directors
and established the Audit Committee to replace the function
of Supervisors at the shareholders' meeting in 2017. At
present, the Company has no other functional committee.

(1) The Company has established the "Methodologies for

Evaluating the Performance of the Board" on Jan. 11, 2017,
and the Company distributed self-evaluation questionnaire to
all members of the Board in December each year since 2017.
Except for evaluating the operations of the Board, the
questionnaire also required self-evaluations of the Board
members.

Five aspects of the measurement for evaluating the
performance of the Board:

I.  Participation in the operation of the Company.

II. Improvement of the quality of the Board's decision-
making;

Composition and structure of the Board;

I'V. Election and continuing education of the Directors.

V. Internal control.

Six aspects of the measurement for evaluating the
performance of the Board members:

I.  Alignment of the goals and missions of the Company.
II. Awareness of the duties of a Director.

II1. Participation in the operation of the Company.

III.
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies

IV. Management of internal relationship and
communication.

V. The Director's professionalism and continuing
education.

VI. Internal control.

The five main criteria for performance evaluation of

functional committees:

I. Participation in the operation of the Company.

II. Their recognition of the duties of the functional
committees.

ITI. The quality of decision made by the functional
committees.

IV. The composition of the functional committees and the
election of their members.

V. Internal control.

After the recollection of questionnaires in January every

year, the evaluation unit of the Company's Board will report

the results of the questionnaires to the Board and provide

recommendations for improvement. The aforementioned

regulations and assessment results are disclosed on the

Company's official website.

Evaluation results for the performance of the latest Board

meeting (2020):

For the five aspects for the overall evaluation, there are 37

key items for self-evaluation determined by the Board, and

the overall achieving rate has reached over 90%. For the six

aspects for the evaluation of Board members, there are 20

key items for self-evaluation determined by the Board, and

the overall achieving rate has reached over 90%.

For the five aspects for the overall evaluation, there are 24

key items for self-evaluation determined by the functional
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed

Companies

committees, and the overall achieving rate has reached over
90%. For the evaluation results of the board performance in
2020, the goals should be achieved. According to the spirit
of corporate governance, improvement suggestions include
attendance rate of directors in the shareholders' meeting and
increase in further education of every director.

The details and improvement suggestions of the aforesaid
performance appraisal have been submitted to the Board of
Directors on January 29, 2021, and applied to the reference
of individual Directors' remuneration and nomination for re-
appointment.

On December 24, 2019, the Company engaged EY Business
Management Consulting Service Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as EY) to conduct the evaluation of the Board
performance for 2019 in terms of structure, people, and
process and information through documentation review,
self-evaluation survey, and on-site interview. The evaluation
ranged over the Board structure and process, Board
members, corporate organization, roles and responsibilities,
behavior and culture, director training and development,
supervision of risk control, and supervision of reporting,
disclosure, and performance. All Directors are encouraged to
increase their study hours. The details and improvement
suggestions of the aforesaid performance appraisal have
been submitted to the Board of Directors on March 5, 2020,
and applied to the reference of individual Directors'
remuneration and nomination for re-appointment.

(1V) The Company has engaged Ernst & Young for the

certification, excused from its direct or indirect beneficial
relationships, and has no matters lacking independence. The
assessment for certification of CPA's independence by the
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Operations (Note 1) Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles
Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies

Assessment item

Board of the Company every year as follows (the latest
assessment was conducted by the Board on March 12,
2021): Upon review, the following conditions were met.

1. Matters when it does not serve as the director, supervisor,
managerial officer, or position with significant effects,
nor stakeholders, and there are no direct or indirect
interest conflicts.

2. Has not commissioned the certification services for seven
years.

3. Obtain the independence declaration issued by the CPA
on a regular basis

IV. Did the TWSE/TPEx listed company has qualified and | v/ Finance Department of the Company is responsible for corporate [No material deviation.
an appropriate number of corporate governance governance affairs, and the deputy financial officer is responsible
personnel, and appointed corporate governance for supervision. The deputy financial officer is the director for
directors responsible for matters related to corporate corporate governance of the Company, a managerial officer of the
governance (including but not limited to providing Company, and has experiences in the management of legal affairs,
directors and supervisors with the necessary finance, or stock affairs in publicly listed companies for more
information for operation, assisting directors and than three years.
supervisors in following regulations, handling matters Corporate governance affairs and functional authority of
related to Board meetings and the shareholders' corporate governance personnel include (but not limit to) the
meetings in accordance with the regulations, preparing following:
minutes for Board meetings and the shareholders' I. Handling corporate registration and alteration registration.
meetings, etc.)? II. Handling matters relating to Board meetings and shareholders'

meetings according to laws, and assist the company in
complying with relevant laws and regulations regarding Board
meetings and shareholders' meeting.

II1. Producing minutes of Board meetings and shareholders'
meetings.

IV. Provide the information required for the execution of
operations and latest legal development in relation to
operating a company to Directors and Supervisors, so as to
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the

Yes

No

Summary

Corporate Governance

Best Practice Principles

for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies

assist Directors and Supervisors in complying laws and
regulations.

V. Affairs related to investors relation.

VI. Other matters stated in the Articles of Association or
contracts.

Business performance for 2020:

I. Atotal of 8 audit meetings and 10 board meetings were
convened in 2020 and general shareholders' meeting was
convened on June 9, 2020: Carry out relevant procedures and
provide minutes of board (shareholder) meeting.

II. Handle the procedures for registration of change 5 times for
2020.

II1. Provide further education information and the amendment of

the latest decrees to directors.

IV. Handle the explanation session for the legal person on

September 17, 2020 and handle investor's letter or call.

Further education for 2020 is as follows:

Start End date |Organizer Course Name |Training Study hours of
date Hours current year
Juridical person  |Audit 3 12

1116 1117 Accounting Corporate 3
Research and Governance

Development -
Foundation, R.O0.C Flnance. 3
Professional

ethics

W

Has the Company established a means of
communicating with its stakeholders (including but
not limited to shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, etc.) or created a Stakeholders Section on
its Company website? Does the Company respond to
stakeholders’ questions on corporate social
responsibilities?

The Company respects and protects the legal interests of its
stakeholders. Except for creating the communication contact in
the Stakeholders Section on its Company website, the Company
also has a spokesperson and deputy spokesperson to make proper
responses to the material corporate social responsibilities issues
that our stakeholders concern and provide a channel for smooth
communication.

No material deviation.

VL

Has the Company engaged a professional stock affair

The Company engaged the Stock Affair Agency Department of

No material deviation.
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles

VIIL

Has the Company disclosed other information to

Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies
agency to manage shareholders' meetings and other Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd as its stock affair agency.
relevant affairs?
VIIL. Information disclosure
(I)  Has the Company established a corporate website to | v/ (I)  The corporate website of the Company has an Investor
disclose information regarding its financial Section and Corporate Governance Section, disclosing its
business and corporate governance information? v complete information regarding financial report and No material deviation.
(II) Has the Company established any other information turnover and information related to corporate governance
disclosure channels (e.g. maintaining a website in (website: http://group.softstar.com.tw).
English, designating people to handle information (I) The Company adopts other methods for information
collection and disclosure, appointing v disclosure.
spokespersons, webcasting investors' conference, 1. Designate personnel to report and disclose financial and
etc.)? business information on the Market Observation Post
(IIT) Does the Company announce and report the annual System and the co.rpolrate website of the Company
financial report within two months after the end of regula.rly and aperiodically.
the fiscal year, and announce and report the 2. Estgbllsheq a spokesperson system. ) )
financial report of the first, second and third (II1) The time llmlt for announcement and dgclaratlon of .ﬁn-anc1a1
quarters and the operation of each month in statements is as follows: annual financial report: within 3
advance before the specified time limit? month§ after the end of each fiscal year (before March 3.1);.
financial report of the first, second and third quarters: within
45 days after the end of each quarter (before May 15,
August 14 and November 14).
The time limit for announcement of financial statements for
the first-third quarters of 2020 and 2020: May 14, 2020,
August 12, 2020, November 10, 2020 and March 19, 2021.
Although the Company's annual financial report has not
been announced within two months after the end of the
year, the financial report and the revenue of each month
have been announced within the time limit in accordance
with the law.
v 1. Employee rights: The Company treat its employees with [No material
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed

Companies

facilitate a better understanding of its corporate
governance practices (e.g., including but not
limited to employee rights, employee wellness,
investor relations, supplier relations, rights of
stakeholders, Directors’ and Supervisors' training
records, the implementation of risk management
policies and risk evaluation measures, the
implementation of customer relations policies, and
purchasing insurance for Directors and Supervisors
of the Company)?

good faith and attach great value to the labor-
management relationship. The Company has established
the Employee Welfare Committee, Labor Meeting,
Labor Pension Committee, and has been improving
employee rights through multiple welfare measures and
training.

Employee wellness: The Company holds employees' safety,
mental and physical health in high regards, provides a
comfortable and safe working environment for employees.
The working premise is sterilized on a regular basis to
improve the quality of the working environment. Free health
inspection is provided for employees on a yearly basis to care
for the physical health of our employees.

Investor relations: The Company has a spokesperson, deputy
spokesperson, as well as its stock affair agency, Stock Affair
Agency Department of Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd, to
provide consultancy for shareholders and investors.
Supplier relations: The Company maintains healthy
relationships with its suppliers for the stability of costs
and supplies.

Rights of stakeholders: Stakeholders may communicate
with and provide recommendations to the Company.
Directors’ and Supervisors' training records: The
Company aperiodically provides programs regarding
relevant regulations and professional knowledge to
Directors and Supervisors for their perusals.
Implementation of risk management policies and risk
evaluation measures: The Company has established
relevant risk management policies and risk measurement

deviation.
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Operations (Note 1) Deviations from the
Corporate Governance
Assessment item Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies

standards to carry out risk management and
assessments.

8. Implementation of customer relations policies: The
Company specifies the credit limit management in customers'
data, establishes complete profiles for corresponding
customers, and grants proper limit and collection conditions
to ensure the smooth transactions. Furthermore, the Company
values the privacy protection of consumers that it has been
enforcing the protection of customers' data. The audit unit
would perform unscheduled reviews.

9. Purchasing insurance for Directors and Supervisors of the
Company since December 2007.

IX. Specify the measures adopted by the Company to improve the items listed in the corporate governance review result from Taiwan Stock Exchange's Corporate
Governance Center and the improvement plans for items yet to be improved. (Not required for companies not included in the evaluation)
Taiwan Stock Exchange's Corporate Governance Center published the corporate governance review result for 2020 in April 2021. The Company shall improve
the following corporate governance review items in 2021:
All Directors are encouraged to increase their study hours.

Note: Regardless of ticking "Yes" or "No" for operations, a description is required in the Summary column.
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(IV) If the Company has the Remuneration Committee in place, disclose its

composition, function, and operations:

(1) Information of the members of Remuneration Committee

ondition

Has more than five years of work

experience and the following professional

Compliance with the Independence (Note 2)

Remark

qualifications
An instructor |Currently Has
or above in the|serving as a  |working Number of
Department of |judge, experiences other publicly
Business/ prosecutor, in business, listed
Legal/Finance |lawyer, legal companies
) /Accounting |accountant, or |affairs, where the
Identity or Other other finance, individual
Company professional |accounting, cg]llcllrrlreﬁ]
(Note 1) Affairs-related |practice or or 10 serves as ay
subjects at technician operations member of the
Public/Private |that must of the Remuneration
University/Col|undergo Company Committee
lege national
examinations
and
specialized
Name license.
Independent
Director HUNG, v v v 1
PI-LIEN
Independent TSAI
Director CHENG- v v 1
YUN
Independent | HSIEH,
Director GUO- v v 0
DONG

Note 1: Please fill in Director, Independent Director, or others in the Identification column.

Note 2: For any committee member who fulfills the relevant condition(s) two years before being elected or during

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

the term of office, please provide the

nn

sign in the field next to the corresponding condition(s).v’

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates. (Not applicable in cases where the
person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, any subsidiary or a subsidiary
of the same parent company as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country
of the parent or subsidiary).

(3) Not a natural person shareholder who holds more than one percent (1%) of issued shares or is ranked
top ten in terms of the total quantity of shares held, including the shares held in the name of the person’s

spouse, minor children, or in the name of others.

(4) Not a manager listed in (1) or a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative

within the third degree of kinship listed in (2) and (3).
(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of

the total number of issued shares of the company or of a corporate shareholder that ranks among the
top five in shareholdings (Not applicable in cases where the person is an independent director of the
Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the

laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.).

(6) Not a director, supervisor or employees of another company controlled by the same person with more
than half of the Company's director seats or voting shares. Not applicable in cases where the person is
an independent director of the Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary as appointed in

accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

(7) Not a director, supervisor, or an employee of a company where the chairman, president or any
equivalent position are held by the same person or by his/her spouse separately. Not applicable in cases
where the person is an independent director of the Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary as
appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.




(8) Not a director (governor), supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares,
of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with the company.
However, the aforementioned does not apply to the specified company or institution holding 20 percent
or more and no more than 50 percent of the total number of issued shares of the public company and
the independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local
country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the same parent.

(9) Not a professional individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, owner of a company or institution,
partner, director, supervisor, managerial officer or spouse thereof that provides auditing service for
Aurora or any of its affiliates, or provides commercial, legal, financial, or accounting service with
cumulative remuneration less than NT$500,000 in the past two years. However, members of the
Remuneration Committee, Public Acquisition Review Committee, or Merger and Acquisition Special
Committee who perform their functions and powers in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Act or Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act and other relevant regulations shall not
be subject to this provision.

(10) Where none of the circumstances in the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act applies.

Note 3: Responsibilities of the Compensation Committee:

(1) On December 27, 2011, the Board of Directors decided to adopt the "Organizational
Procedures of the Remuneration Committee" and set up the "Remuneration Committee".

(2) There are three members of the Remuneration Committee of the Company, all of whom are
Independent Directors. The Remuneration Committee of the Company shall exercise the care
of an administrator with good faith, faithfully fulfill the following functions and power, and
submit the recommendations to the Board of Directors for discussion.

1. Regularly review the "Organization Procedures of Remuneration Committee" and propose
suggestion for amendment.

2. Establish and regularly review the performance evaluation standard, annual and long-term
performance objectives, and remuneration policies, systems, standards and structure of the
Company's Directors and managers.

3. Periodically assessing the degree to which performance goals for the Directors and managerial
officers of the Company have been achieved, and setting the types and amounts of their
individual compensation based on the performance evaluation results.
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(2) Operations of Remuneration Committee

I. The Remuneration Committee of the Company is composed of three members.

II. This Remuneration Committee Term: 2020/07/29 to 2023/06/8 A total of 4 (A)
Remuneration Committee meetings were held in 2020. The information and attendance
of the members was as follows:

Actual
. Actual attendance Number of attendance rate
Title Name delegated Remark
rate (B) (%) (B/A)
attendance
(Note)
Independent | HUNG, 4 0 100
Director PI-LIEN
(convener)
Independent TSAI 4 0 100
Director CHENG-
YUN
Independent | HSIEH, 3 1 75
Director GUO-
DONG

The date, session, content of the proposal and resolution of the proposal in the Remuneration
Committee's meeting in the most recent year and The Company's disposal of the compensation
committee's opinions:

of the fourth term

)

amendments to the
policy of
Compensation of
Directors,
Independent
Directors,
Remuneration/Audit
Committee
members and
managers
Proposal for the
Distribution of
Remuneration for
Employees and
Directors of 2019

members of the
Remuneration
Committee

Date of Period Agenda Resolutions of the | The Company's
Meeting Remuneration actions in
Committee response to the
opinions of the
Remuneration
Committee
2020.1.7 The 9th meeting | (1) Proposal for the Approved by all All the directors
of the fourth term distribution of year- | members of the present
end bonus for senior | Remuneration unanimously
managerial officers | Committee approved the
for 2019 proposal.
(2) Proposal for
appointment of
managers
(3) Proposal for job
adjustment of CTO
2020.3.5 The 10th meeting | (1) Proposal for Approved by all All the directors

present
unanimously
approved the
proposal.
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(3) Amendment of the

Company's

"Subsidiary
Management
Measures"

2020.4.23 The 11th meeting | (1) Discussion of the Approved by all All the directors
of the fourth term proposal for salary | members of the present
adjustment related | Remuneration unanimously
to the managerial Committee approved the
officers of the proposal.
Company
2020.8.11 The 1st meeting | (1) Proposal for Approved by all All the directors
of the 5th term distribution of members of the present
Directors' Remuneration unanimously
remuneration in Committee approved the
2019 proposal.
(2) Proposal for

distribution of

managers in

employee

compensation in

2019

Other required disclosures:

I. L Inthe event the Board does not adopt or wishes to amend the proposals of the
Remuneration Committee, please state the date and term of the Board meeting, the
content of proposals, resolution from the Board of Directors, and the Company's actions
in response to the opinions of the Remuneration Committee (e.g. if the salaries and
compensations approved by the Board was higher than the suggested levels from the
Remuneration Committee, please state the differences and reasons): None.

Il.  For the decisions made by the Remuneration Committee, which members voiced
objection or reservation that are documented or issued through a written statement in
addition to the above, all members’ comments, and the measures for handling these
comments shall be elaborated: None.

Note: (1) Where members of the Remuneration Committee resign before the end of the year, the Notes
column shall be annotated with the date of resignation. Actual presence rate (%) shall be

calculated using the number of Remuneration Committee meetings convened and actual presence
during the term of service.

(2) When re-election is held for members of the Remuneration Committee before the end of the year,
members of both the new and old members of the Remuneration Committee shall be listed in
separate columns and noted as new, old or re-elected members, along with the elected date, in the
remark column. Actual presence rate (%) shall be calculated using the number of Remuneration
Committee meetings convened and actual presence during the term of service.

41



(V) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Deviations from "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies" and Reasons

Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the
Corporate Governance Best-

efficient use of resources and utilized

requirements, hoping to minimize the

Yes | No Summary (Note 2) Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof
I.  Does the Company conduct risk assessments on Where  environmental, social and
environmental,  social and  corporate corporate governance issues have a
governance issues related to the Company’s significant impact on the Company's
operations in accordance with the materiality | v/ investors and other stakeholders, the | No material deviation
principle, and formulate relevant risk Company will include them in the
management policies or strategies? (Note 3) corporate social responsibility issues and
will work out risk management measures.
II. Does the Company establish an exclusively (or The Company has not established a
part-time) dedicated unit for promoting dedicated unit for CSR, which is primarily
Corporate Social Responsibility? Is the unit v co-managed by President Office,
authorized by the Board of Directors to Administrative Department, Management
implement CSR activities at the executive Department, and the Employee Welfare
level? Does the unit report the progress of such Committee.  They  are  primarily | No material deviation
activities to the Board of Directors? responsible for the proposal and execution
of CSR policies, system, or related
management directions, and particular
promotional plan, and regularly report to
the Board.
III. Environmental Issues (I) To reduce product packaging, the
(I) Has the Company established proper | v Company commits to focus on virtual
environmental management systems based on sales channels. The Company ‘ o
the characteristics of their industries? v recycles the packaging of its physical No material deviation
(II) Has the Company committed to improving the products according to recycling
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the
Corporate Governance Best-

Yes | No Summary (Note 2) Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof
renewable resources to reduce environmental effects on the environment.
impact? v The Company is not in the
(ITT) Does the Company assess the potential risks manufacturing industry; therefore,
and opportunities brought by climate changes, ISO 14001 is not applicable.
both for now and in the future, and take | v The Management Department and
measures to cope with? outsourced parties are responsible for
(IV) Does the Company conduct statistics on the environmental  affairs of the

greenhouse gas emissions, water
consumption, and total weight of waste for the
past two years, and correspondingly formulate
policies for energy conservation, carbon
reduction, greenhouse gas reduction, water
use reduction, or other waste management?

(D

Company.

The Company understands its social
responsibilities, commits to the
paperless e-policy, promotes and
implements the usage of recycled
paper and related products with
Green Mark.

(IIT) The Company adheres to energy

conservation and carbon reduction,
including improvement of lighting
equipment, using electronic forms
and documents, energy conservation,
garbage classification, light-out
lunch break, employees bringing
their own cutlery, and resources
recycling and reuse.

(IV) The Company is located in the office

building. It  advocates  the
conservation and recycling of water
consumption and waste quantity. In
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the
Corporate Governance Best-

Yes | No Summary (Note 2) Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof
addition, the temperature control of
the air conditioner is also regulated
by the central system, so as to play
the role of energy conservation and
carbon reduction.
IV. Social Issues
() Has the Company set up management policy | v/ (D The Company complies with
and procedures according to related laws and relevant labor regulations and has
regulation and the International Human | v/ established "Working Rules” and
Rights Treaty? "Regulations for Employees
(I) Has the company established and offered Welfare" to protect labor rights.
proper employee  benefits  (including | v (II) Except for complying with the Labor
compensation, leave, and other benefits) and Standards  Act  and related
reflected the business performance or results | v requirements, the Company also
in employee compensation appropriately? provides employee training,
(IIl) Does the Company provides safe and | Y employee trips, health check-ups, . _
. . . No material deviation
healthful work environments for their group insurance, and promotes
employees and organizes training on safety work-life balance (such as soothing
and health for their employees on a regular massage, sports clubs, board games
basis? v and so on), etc.
(IV) Has the Company established an effective (Il) The Company provides a fine
competency development career training working environment, carries out
program for employees? employee health inspection, and
(V) Has the company followed relevant laws, purchases group insurance for all

regulations and international guidelines for
the customer health and safety, customer
privacy, and marketing and labeling of its

employees.

(IV) In order to improve the required

skills and management abilities of
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary (Note 2)

Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the
Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof

(VD)

products and services and established related
consumer protection policies and grievance
procedures?

Has the company formulated a vendor
management policy requesting suppliers to
comply with laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, occupational safety
and health, or labor rights, and supervised
their compliance?

employees for the performance of
their  duties, the  Company
encourages its employees to
participate in classes for training and
values its internal training and
experience sharing.

(V) The Company engages in the game

industry and has customer services
and customer complaints handling
standards and procedures in place;
multiple  customer  complaints
channels are available, and there are
also specialists responsible for
handling customer complaints.
The Company attaches extreme
importance on the protection of its
trademark and its corporate image. It
also works with professional law
firms for relevant consultancy,
complies with regulations, and
adopts necessary measures.

(VI) The Company collects relevant
information before signing contracts
with suppliers and adopts the
measure of annual evaluation for
suppliers. When selecting
cooperating suppliers, the Company
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Yes

No

Summary (Note 2)

Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the
Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof

considers the policies of suppliers
regarding all aspects of CSR. If
products of such suppliers have
significant  effects on  the
environment and society, the
Company requires such suppliers to
make improvements. The contracts
between the Company and its major
suppliers have agreed on the
unilateral contract termination terms.
If the Company acknowledges that
the suppliers are involved in any
activities that violate Company CSR
policies and that significantly affect
the environment and society, the
Company may unilaterally terminate
the contracts.

V. Did the company, following internationally
recognized guidelines, prepare and publish v The Company attaches great
reports such as its Corporate Social importance to the issue of
Responsibility report to disclose non-financial The Company does not publish a | corporate social responsibility, and
information of the company? Has the company Corporate Social Responsibility report. will prepare the corporate social
received assurance or certification of the responsibility report according to
aforesaid reports from a third party the actual situation and needs
accreditation institution?

VI. Where the Company has stipulated its own CSR best practices principles according to the Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, please describe any differences between the prescribed best practices and the actual activities
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Operations (Note 1) Corporate Social Responsibility
for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies Deviations from the

Assessment item Corporate Governance Best-
Yes | No Summary (Note 2) Ifractice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies
and Reasons Thereof

taken by the Company:

The Company has established its own CSR best practices principles, and the operations have no significant deviation from the principles. The
Company will continue to implement various events beneficial to the social welfare through topics of environmental protection, consumers
rights, safety and hygiene, and social welfare, striving to fulfill our greatest purpose of "taken from society, give back to society".
VII. Other material information contributes to understanding CSR operations.
1. Promote and implement concepts of environmental protection. 2. VValue social care and provide help and support to vulnerable groups in society.
3. Attach importance to the cultural and artistic atmosphere and participate in public welfare events of art.
Note 1: If “Yes” is checked in the operating status column, please explain the important policies, strategies, measures and implementation situations;
if “No” is checked in the operating status column, please explain the reasons, as well as give relevant policies, strategies and measures to
counter the situation.

Note 2: For companies established their own CSR best practices principles, the operation may be replaced with notes to refer to its CSR report and
page numbers.

Note 3: The principle of materiality refers to environmental, social and corporate governance issues that have significant impacts on the Company's
investors and other stakeholders.
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Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies, and the Causes Thereof

(V1) Implementation of Ethical Corporate Management by the Company and the Gaps With the Ethical Corporate Management

Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the Ethical
Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for

Yes | No Summary TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies and the reasons
I. Establish ethical corporate management policies and
scheme v (I) The Company has established the "Ethical
D Has the company established the ethical corporate Corporate Management Best Practice
management policies approved by the Board of Principles", which has been approved by the
Directors and specified in its rules and external Board of Directors to actively implement its
documents the ethical corporate management ethical corporate management.
policies and practices and the commitment of the v (II) The Company has established "Operation
board of directors and senior management to Procedures and Code of Conduct for Ethical
rigorous and thorough implementation of such Corporate Management" and "Code of Ethical
policies? Conduct" to regulate the prevention and
(I)  Has the company established a risk assessment subsequent treatment of unethical conducts
mechanism against unethical conduct, analyze and (including the conducts in Article 7, Paragraph
assess on a regular basis business activities within its| 2 of the "Ethical Corporate Management Best |No material deviation.
business scope which are at a higher risk of being Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
involved in unethical conduct, and establish Companies"), and directors at all levels also
prevention programs accordingly, which shall at least attach importance to the advocacy of ethical
include the preventive measures specified in corporate management.
Paragraph 2, Article 7 of the "Ethical Corporate (ITIT) The Company has established "Procedures for
Management Best Practice Principles for Ethical Management and Guidelines for
TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies"? Conduct" and the "Codes of Ethical Conduct"
(IIT)  Has the company specified in its prevention to provide for highly unethical conducts (i.e.

programs the operating procedures, guidelines,
punishments for violations, and a grievance system
and implemented them and review the prevention
programs on a regular basis?

receiving bribery and misappropriation of
public funds) within our business scope. Except
for specifying unethical as a matter for
dismissal in the code of conduct for employees,
the Company will also file litigation based on
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Operations (Note 1)

Assessment item

Deviations from the Ethical
Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for

Yes | No Summary TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies and the reasons
the legal responsibilities of the related matters.
The Company also regularly reviews and
amends relevant operating procedures.
II. Implementing integrity operation
(D Does the Company assess the ethics records of v (I) Before any business dealings, the Company
whom it has business relationships with and include would collect information to assess the ethical
business conduct and ethics related clauses in the corporate management status of counterparties,
business contracts? v and make efforts to include ethical corporate
(II)  Has the company set up a dedicated unit under the management as the term of contracts or specify (No material deviation.
Board of Directors to promote ethical corporate the ethical matters, and explain the ethical
management and regularly (at least once every year) corporate management policies of the Company
report to the Board of Directors the implementation 4 to the trading counterparties.
of the ethical corporate management policies and (IT) At present, the Company has not set up a
prevention programs against unethical conduct? v responsible unit to promote the ethical
(IIT)  Has the Company established policies to prevent corporate management. It is mainly promoted
conflict of interests, provide appropriate and implemented by a group composed of
communication and complaint channels, and Administration Division, Management
implement such policies properly? v Department, Human Resources Department,
(IV) Has the company established effective accounting etc., which is responsible for the formulation
systems and internal control systems to implement and supervision of the ethical corporate
ethical corporate management and had its internal management and the prevention of unethical
audit unit, based on the results of assessment of the conduct scheme, including the "Operation
risk of involvement in unethical conduct, devise Procedure of Ethical Corporate Management
relevant audit plans and audit the compliance with the and Conduct Guide", "Whistle-blowing system"
prevention programs accordingly or entrusted a CPA and "Code of Ethical Conduct", etc. The group
to conduct the audit? is affiliated with the Board of Directors and
(V) Has the Company hosted regular internal and external reports to the Board of Directors regularly (at

training geared towards business integrity practices?

least once a year).
(III) Where the Director has interests in the
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the Ethical

Yes

No

Summary

Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies and the reasons

av)

V)

proposals at the Board meeting, the Director
may address his/her opinions and provide
consultancy; however, he/she shall abstain from
the discussion and vote. When reviewing
contracts, the Company shall check the
relationship of the signing parties, nature of the
contracting matters, and risks of potential
conflict of interests in the course of performing
contracts. When there are suspicious conflicts
of interests upon the execution of duties,
employees may consult the Legal Department
and report to its immediate supervisor.

The Company established its accounting and
internal control system according to relevant
regulations, including paying attention to
related party transactions, establishing the
system for price inquiry/comparison/negotiation
and approval system with hierarchical
authorization. The Auditing Office also
regularly audits the compliance status of the
accounting system and internal control system
and reports to the Board.

The Company regularly or aperiodically
organizes communications and training.

II1. Operation of the Company's whistle-blowing system

)

Has the Company established specific complaint and

reward procedures, set up conveniently accessible
complaint channels, and designated responsible
individuals to handle the complaint received?

The Company has a "Whistle-blowing System" in
place, which sets out the responsible unit and
provides for standard operating procedures for

investigating the complaints received and relevant

No material deviation.
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Assessment item

Operations (Note 1)

Deviations from the Ethical
Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for

management best practice principles as well as
information about the implementation of such
guidelines on its website and Market Observation
Post System?

Yes | No Summary TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies and the reasons

(I)  Has the company established the standard operating | v* confidential mechanism, and stipulates protective

procedures for investigating reported misconduct, terms for those who filed the complaints to prevent

follow-up measures to be adopted after the them from being mistreated due to such complaints.

investigation, and related confidentiality v

mechanisms?
(IIT)  Does the Company adopt proper measures to prevent

a complainant from retaliation for his/her filing a

complaint?
IV. Strengthening information disclosure
D Does the Company disclose its ethical corporate v The Company has established its official corporate

website to disclose the Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles" of the
Company and relevant information

No material deviation.

the company:

The Company has established its own "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles", and the operations have no significant deviation from

the principles.

V. Where the Company has stipulated its own ethical corporate management best practices according to the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, please describe any differences between the prescribed best practices and the actual activities taken by

to its ethical corporate operations)

The Company implements regulations on evasion of interest in integrity management. In the event of an agenda item representing a conflict of
interest for a director of for the entity he or she represents, he or she shall disclose the conflict at the current meeting and refrain from discussion or
vote on the matter. He or she shall be recused during discussion or vote on the matter and shall not exercise the right to vote on behalf of any other

directors of the Board.

VI. Other material information contributes to understanding the ethical corporate operations of the Company: (i.e. Company review and make amendments

Note 1: Regardless of ticking "Yes" or "No," description is required in the Summary column.
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(VII) Where the Company has stipulated its code of corporate governance and relevant rules, disclose its inquiry methods:

For any inquiry, please visit the Corporate Government Section at the official corporate website of the Company
(http://group.softstar.com.tw).

(V1) Other material information that can enhance the understanding of the state of corporate governance of the Company:
None.
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(IX) Implementation of the internal control system

1. Internal control statement

Softstar Entertainment Inc.
Internal control system statement
Date: March 12, 2021

The Company hereby states the results of the self-evaluation of the internal control

system for 2020 as follows:

The Company acknowledges that the establishment, implementation, and
maintenance of the internal control system is the responsibility of the Company's
Board and managerial officers, and the Company had established the system. The
objectives of internal control system include achieving various objectives in
business benefits and efficiency (including profitability, performance, and
protection of assets and safety); ensuring the reliability, timeliness, transparency,
and regulatory compliance of reporting; and providing reasonable assurance.
The internal control system has inherent limitations, regardless of how complete
is its design; an effective internal control system may only provide reasonable
assurance regarding the three objectives described above. Also, subject to the
changes of environment and circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal
control system may alter. However, the internal control system of the Company
has a self-monitoring mechanism in place; once a defect is identified, the
Company will take immediate rectifying actions.

The Company determine the validity for the design and execution of the internal
control system based on the criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system provided in the "Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal
Control Systems by Public Companies" (hereinafter, the "Regulations") The
criteria for the internal control system adopted by the Regulations are divided
into five components in accordance with the procedure s of management control:
1. control environment; 2. risk assessment; 3. control operations; 4. information
and communication; and 5. monitoring operations. Each constituent element
includes a number of categories. Each component includes several criteria.
Please see the requirements under the Regulations for the above criterion.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned assessment items of the internal
control system to evaluate the effectiveness of ICS design and implementation.
Based on the results of the determination in the preceding paragraph, the
Company is of the opinion that, as of December 31, 2020, the internal control
system (including the supervision and management of subsidiaries), including
the design and implementation of the internal control system relating to the
effectiveness and efficiency of the operations, reliability, timeliness, and

transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
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is effective and can reasonably assure the achievement of the foregoing goals.
V1. The Statement will become the primary content in the annual report and
prospectuses of the Company and will be made public. Falsehood, concealment,
or other illegality in the above content made public will entail legal liability under
Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Law.
VII. This statement was passed by the board of directors in their meeting held on
March 12, 2021, with none of the six attending directors expressing dissenting

opinions, and the remainder all affirming the contents of this Statement.
Softstar Entertainment Inc.

Chairman: Signature/Stamp

General Manager: Signature/Stamp

2. Any CPA commissioned to conduct a project review of the internal control system shall
disclose the CPA’s audit report: N/A.
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(X) Inthe most recent fiscal year up to the publication date of this annual report, there has
been punishment of the company or its internal personnel, or punishment of the
company to its internal personnel for violating internal control system regulation, and
its punishment results might have significant influence on shareholders' equity or
securities' price, the punishment, main deficiencies and improvements shall be listed:
None.

(XTI) Significant resolutions made at the shareholders' meetings and the Board meetings for
the past year and up to the date of printing the annual report:

1. Significant resolutions at the shareholders' meeting and the implementation

The general shareholders' meeting of the Company for 2020 was held at Rooms
101A and B of the Taipei International Convention Center on Jun. 9, 2020. The
resolutions approved by the attending shareholders at the meeting are as follow:

(1) Ratification of the Company's 2019 Business Report and Financial Statements
(2) Ratification of the 2019 Earnings Distribution Proposal.

Implementation status: The annual after-tax net profit for 2019 was
NT$326,039,369. According to law, the legal reserve and
special reserve were appropriated; and after the retained
earnings at the beginning of the period were added, the
amount of the distributable earnings was NT$140,649,370.
Therefore, it is proposed to pay shareholders dividends of
NT$98,577,056, including a stock dividend of
NT$88,719,.350 and a cash dividend of NT$9,857,706.
After the earnings distribution, the balance of the earnings
at the end of the period was NT$42,072,314.

(3) 2019 proposal for increasing the capital by earnings and capital reserve and

issuing new shares.

Implementation status: Distributable earnings of TWD 88,719,350 for 2019 were

allocated and 8,871,935 new ordinary shares were issued
to increase the capital: The Securities and Futures Bureau
declared on October 12, 2020 and completed registration
of change on November 16, 2020.
TWD 49,288,530 was allocated from stock premium and
capital reserve and 4,928,853 new ordinary shares were
issued to increase the capital; The Securities and Futures
Bureau declared on November 25, 2020 and completed
registration of change on December 25, 2020.

(4) Proposal for carrying out the private placing of ordinary shares.

Implementation status: The placing was not completed, and the Board meeting
arrived at the resolution on Mar. 12. 2021 that, the private
placing would expire on Jun. 8, 2021, and the Company
has no intention to continue the placing, which shall be
reported at the shareholders' meeting of 2021.

(5) Proposal for approving amendments to the Procedures for Loaning of Funds.

Implementation status: All the amended provisions have been announced at the
MOPS and on the Company's website after the
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shareholders' meeting on June 9, 2020.
(6) Proposal for approving amendments to the Procedures for Endorsements and
Guarantees.

Implementation status: All the amended provisions have been announced at the
MOPS and on the Company's website after the
shareholders' meeting on June 9, 2020.
(7) Proposal for approving amendments to the Rules Governing Procedures for
Shareholders' Meeting.

Implementation status: All the amended provisions have been announced at the
MOPS and on the Company's website after the
shareholders' meeting on June 9, 2020.

(8) Proposal for election of directors (the independent directors included)

Implementation status: Selected directors: Tu, Chun-Kuang, Stone Capital Group
Co., Ltd., Angel Fund (Asia) InvestmentS Co., Ltd., KAL
Holdings Corp., HUNG, PI- LIEN, TSAI, CHENG-YUN
and HSIEH, GUO-DONG (a total of seven directors with
three independent directors included); complete
registration of change on June 22, 2020.

(9) Proposal for the waiver of non-competition clauses for newly elected Directors

and their representatives.

Implementation status: Include waiver of non-competition clauses for Tu, Chun-
Kuang, representative of Stone Capital Group Co., Ltd.
Hsieh, Fang-Shu, representative of Angel Fund (Asia)
InvestmentS Co., Ltd. YAO CHUANG HSIEN,
representative of KAL Holdings Corp. KO AN LIN,
HUNG, PI- LIEN and HSIEH, GUO-DONG. (Unless
revealed at the shareholder's meeting, concurrent post
should be recorded in minutes of board meeting)

2. Significant resolutions of the Board meeting

The Company has convened 14 Board meetings during 2020 and up to the date of
printing the annual report in 2021; the summary for significant resolutions are as
follow:

(1) 2020:
Date Term of the Significant resolution
Board
meeting
2020.01.07 | Ist meeting of | (1) Proposal for the budget and operating
2020 plans for 2020.

(2) The Company plans to amend the
original plan for capital increase of
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC.

(3) Proposal for investment in Girl Fashion
Co., Ltd.

(4) Proposal for disposal of all shares of
Gamebase Digital Media Corporation

(5) Proposal for the distribution of 2019
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year-end bonus for managerial officers.
(6) Proposal for appointment of managers.
(7) Proposal for job adjustment of CTO.

2020.03.05

2nd meeting
0f 2020

(1) Proposal for handling supplementary
public offering of private equity
placement.

(2) Proposal for amendments to accounting
system of the Company.

(3) Proposal for amendments to the
Company's internal control system,
management measures and internal audit
system.

(4) Proposal for inspection of 2019 Internal
Control System.

(5) Proposal for amendments to the
Company's "Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders' Meetings."

(6) Proposal for amendments to the
Company's "Procedures for Loaning of
Funds to Others."

(7) Proposal for amendments to the
Company's "Procedures for Making of
Endorsements/Guarantees.”

(8) Evaluation of independence of CPA.

(9) Proposal for distribution of employee and
director remuneration for 2019

(10) The Company's private placement of
common shares approved by the
shareholders' meeting on June 10, 2019
is proposed to be not continuously
handled

(11) Proposal for the Company's 2019
business report, separate financial
statements and consolidated financial
statements

(12) Proposal for private placement of
common shares.

(13) Proposal for election of directors (the
independent directors included).

(14) Proposal for the waiver of non-
competition clauses for newly elected
Directors and their representatives.

(15) Proposal for date of 2020 shareholders
meeting and matters concerned.

(16) Acceptance of shareholder's proposal
right and operation process.

(17) Acceptance of matters related to the
nomination right of shareholders for
Directors / Independent Directors, review
standards and operation procedures.
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(18) Proposal for recovery and cancellation of
new shares issued with restricting
employees' rights.

(19) Proposal for the application of bank
facilities by the Company.

(20) Proposal for amendments to the policy of
Compensation of Directors, Independent
Directors, members of Remuneration
Committee, members of Audit
Committee and managers.

2020.03.23

3rd meeting
0f 2020

(1) Proposal for repurchase of partial shares
of the Company.

2020.04.23

4th meeting
0f 2020

(1) Earnings Distribution Table for 2019.
(2) 2019 proposal for increasing the capital
by earnings and capital reserve and

issuing new shares.

(3) Proposal for date of 2020 shareholders
meeting and matters concerned.

(4) Review the list of candidates nominated
by the Board of Directors (including
Independent Directors).

(5) Proposal for canceling the non-
competition clauses on managerial
officers.

(6) Application for bank financing.

(7) Proposed amendment for repurchase of
some of the Company's shares
(amendment of expected repurchase
period).

(8) Ratification of subsidiaries invested by
the Company.

(9) Discussion of the proposal for salary
adjustment related to the managerial
officers of the Company.

2020.05.14

5th meeting
0f 2020

(1) Application for bank financing.

2020.06.09

6th meeting
for 2020

(1) Proposal for election of Chairman.

2020.07.29

7th meeting
for 2020

(1) Draft the "Procedures for Repurchase of
Treasury Stock™.

(2) Application for bank financing.

(3) Base date of decrease of capital by 25,000
treasury shares.

(4) Engagement of Members of the 5th
Remuneration Committee.

2020.08.12

8th meeting
for 2020

(1) Proposal for the Company's distribution
of remuneration for Directors for 20109.

(2) Proposal for distribution of managers in
employee compensation in 2019.

2020.10.08

9th meeting

(1) Proposal for authorizing the Chairman to

58




for 2020

repurchase property.

(2) Draft the proposal for ex-dividend base
date of cash dividends for 2019, base date
of earnings and new shares for capital
increase and matters concerned.

(3) Draft the proposal for base date of
earnings and new shares for capital
increase and matters concerned.

2020.11.10

10th meeting
for 2020

(1) Audit plan for 2021

(2) Proposal for canceling the non-
competition restriction on managerial
officers.

(3) Amendments to the Company's Board
Meeting Procedural Rules.

(2) For 2021 and as of the date of printing share certificates;

Date

Term of the
Board meeting

Significant resolution

2021.01.29

Ist meeting for
2021

(1) Proposal for the budget and operating
plans for 2021.

(2) The Company plans to purchase privately
placed ordinary shares of Hezheng
Technology Co., Ltd. FOR 2017.

(3) Proposal for site selection of the
Company.

(4) Ratification of subsidiaries invested by
the Company.

(5) Amendment to the Company’s "Board
KPI Performance Evaluation Methods".

(6) Application for bank financing by the
Company.

(7) Proposal for appointment of the
Company's CFO, corporate governance
officer and spokesman.

(8) Proposal for the distribution of year-end
bonus for senior managerial officers for
2020.

2021.03.12

2nd meeting
for 2021

(1) 2020 Internal Control Statement.

(2) Private placement by 1090609 board
resolution will not be continually
handled.

(3) Amendments to the Company's Rules of
Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings.

(4) Evaluation of independence of CPA.

(5) 2020 directors' and employees'
compensation plans of the Company.

(5) Financial report for 2020.

(7) Proposal for the waiver of non-
competition clauses for newly elected
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Directors and their representatives.

(8) Dates and agendas of Regular
Shareholders’ Meeting in 2021.

(9) Acceptance of shareholder's proposal
right and operation process.

(10) Proposal for canceling the non-
competition restriction on managerial
officers.

(11) Proposal for investments in subsidiaries.

(12) Application for bank financing.

(13) Amendments to the Company's Audit

Committee Organizational Rules.

2021.04.14

3rd meeting
for 2021

(1) 2020 earnings distribution plan.

(2) Issue new shares by capital increase from
surplus for 2020.

(3) Amendments to Articles of Incorporation.

(4) Proposal for the convening date and
relevant matters for the general
shareholders' meeting for 2021 (newly-
increased proposal).

(5) Ratification of purchase of partial shares
of subsidiary Gamebase Digital Media
Corporation

(6) Ratification of capital increase of Double
Edge Entertainment Corp.

(7) Application for bank financing.

2021.04.20

4th meeting
for 2021

(1) Proposal for Disposal of Equity of
Softstar Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
and intellectual property rights of Sword
and Fairy (Only in Mainland China).

(2) Proposal for the convening date and
relevant matters for the general
shareholders' meeting for 2021 (newly-

increased proposal).

(XII) Recorded or written statements made by any director or supervisor which specified
dissent to important resolutions passed by the board of directors during the most
recent year and up to the date of publication of this annual report: None.
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(XIII) For the past year and as of the date of printing the annual report, a summary of the
resignation and dismissal of the Company personnel including the Chairman,
President, head of the accounting, head of the finance, head of the internal audit,

and head of the R&D:

Summary of resignation and dismissal of persons associated with the Company

April 30, 2021

Title Name Date of Date of Reason for resignation or
appointment | departure dismissal

CFO and Chief | HSIEH, 2015.06.24 2021.01.29 | Resignation

Corporate PING-HUI

Governance

Officer

Note: The relevant personnel in this context refers to the Chairman, General Manager,

Accounting Supervisor, Finance Supervisor, Internal Audit Supervisor, Corporate
Governance Supervisor and R&D Supervisor, etc.
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V. Information Regarding the Company’s Audit Fee and Independence

1.  When non-audit fees paid to the certified public accountant, to the accounting firm of
the certified public accountant, and/or to any affiliated enterprise of such accounting
firm are one quarter or more of the audit fees paid thereto, the amounts of both audit
and non-audit fees as well as details of non-audit services shall be disclosed as follows:

2.  Where the CPA firm was replaced, and the audit fees during the year, when the
replacement was made, were less than that in the previous year before replacement,
the amount of audit fees paid before/after replacement and reasons for paying this
amount shall be disclosed: None.

3. Ifthe audit fees decrease by 15% or above compared with those of the previous year,
the decrease amount, proportion and reason should be revealed: The audit fees for
2020 were TWD 2,830 thousand and decreased by TWD 3,435 thousand (17.61%)
compared with 2019. It was mainly due to the use of IFRS 16 since 2019. Thus,
additional procedures must be executed and financial statements should be revealed.
Besides, the Company prepared financial statements from 2020, so the fees for CPAs
decreased.

Table of professional fees ranges

Name of the Name of CPA Audit period Remark
accounting firm

YU, YANG, January 1, 2020-

PwCTaiwan | CHIEN-JU | CHIH-HUEI | December 31, 2020

Note: If there has been a change of certified public accountants or independent public accounting firm during
the current fiscal year, the Company shall specify change during the audit period in the commentary
column reason.

Unit: NT$1,000

Category of fees .
o Audit fees Non-audit Total
Interval of the amount fees
1 | Below NT$2,000,000 v

2 | NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) - v
NT$4,000,000

3 | NT$4,000,000 (inclusive) - v
NT$6,000,000

4 | NT$6,000,000 (inclusive) -
NT$8,000,000

5 | NT$8,000,000 (inclusive) -
NT$10,000,000

6 | Above NT$10,000,000

Note: Audit fees were NT$2,830 thousand; non-audit fees were NT$1,364 thousand.
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Information on CPA professional fees

Unit: NT$1,000

Name of the Name of Non-audit fees Auditing
accounting Audit fees - period for the | Remark
: CPA System Business Human Other
firm X S Sub-total CPA
design registration | resource (Note 2)
PwC Taiwan YU, 2,830 82 - 1,282 -|January 1, 2020
CHIEN-JU December 31,|Note 3
YANG, 2020

CHIH-HUEI

Note 1: Where the Company replaces the CPA or accounting firm, the auditing periods of the former and
successor CPA or firm shall be annotated separately. The reason for the replacement shall be provided in
the Notes section accordingly. The audit and non-audit fees paid to the former and succeeding CPA or

Note 2

firm shall also be disclosed.

Set out the non-audit fees separately according to the service categories; where the "Others" of non-

audit fees have reached 25% of the total non-audit fees, the service content shall be provided in the
Notes section accordingly.
Note 3: For "Commercial registration" of non-audit fees, TWD 82 thousand after shareholders (temporary) meeting;
for "Others" of non-audit fees, TWD 557 thousand of tax-saving fees, TWD150 thousand of
supplementary private placement, TWD90 thousand of unpaid issue of new shares, TWD 380 thousand of

professional consulting fees, TWD 100 thousand of commercial taxation consulting and TWD 5 thousand

of reimbursed expenses.

VI. Changing of Auditors Information: None.

VII. Where the Company's Chairman, President, or any managerial officer in
charge of finance or accounting matters has, during the past year, held a
position at the accounting firm of its CPA or at an affiliated company of such
accounting firm, the name and position of the person, and the period during

which the position was held, shall be disclosed:

None.
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VIII. Changes in Shareholding of Directors, Supervisors, Managers and Major
Shareholders

(I) Change in the equities of the Directors, Supervisors, managerial officers and
substantial shareholders

Unit: Share
2020 As of March 31, 2021
Title Change in Change in
(Note 1) Name Change in number of | Change in | number of
shares held pledged shares held | pledged
shares shares
Chairman: TU, CHUN-KUANG 0 0 0 0
Slali)rse‘:ceclgggl Angel Fund (ASIA) Investments 2.174.941 0 0 0
shareholder Limited, British Cayman Islands i
China Development Mobile
Director | Technology Co., Ltd., British - - - -
Virgin Islands (Note I)
. Stone Capital Group Co., Ltd.,
Director British Vggin Islands (Note II) ] ] 0 0
Director KAL Holdings Corp., Samoa 560 0 0 0
Independent
Director HUNG, PI-LIEN 0 0 0 0
Independent
Director TSAI, CHENG-YUN 0 0 0 0
Independent
Director HSIEH, GUO-DONG 0 0 0 0
President Tsay, Ming-Hung 69,528 0 0 0
Vice
President CHEN, YAO-TIEN 882 0 0 0
Vice
President LIEN, CHIEN-CHIN 5,659 0 (7,000) 0
Vice
President YAO, CHUANG-HSIEN 6,738 0 (2,000) 0
Vice
President | HSIEH, PING-HUI (Note I11) 46,999 0 - -
Vice
President LIN, HUI-ZHEN 33,589 0 0 0
V. L}
President | Chuang, Jen-Chu'an (Note IV) - : - -
Direct .
(Note 2) Jao, Jui-Chun (Note V) 13,546 0 - -

Note 1:  Shareholders holding more than 10% of the total shares of the Company shall be annotated as
substantial shareholders, and shall be presented separately.

Note 2: If the counterparty of the transfer or pledge of shares is a related person, fill out the following table.

Note I:  Director resigned at the meeting of the Board of Shareholders on June 9, 2020.

Note II: Director resigned at the meeting of the Board of Shareholders on June 9, 2020.

Note III: Resigned on January 31, 2021.

Note IV: Appointed on February 1, 2021.

Note V: Retired on February 28, 2021.

(I1) If the counterparty of the transfer of shares conducted by Directors, Supervisors,
managerial officers, and shareholders with shareholding ratios of 10% is a related
person: None.

(111 If the counterparty of the pledge of shares conducted by Directors, Supervisors,
managerial officers, and shareholders with shareholding ratios of 10% is a related
person: None.
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[X. Relationship among the Top Ten Shareholders, who are related persons or
spouses and relatives according to SFAS-6

April 2, 2021
Unit: Share

NAME AND RELATIONSHIP, IF,
AMONG THE TOP TEN SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS, ANY ONE OF THEM

Shares Held in Person Shares held_by spouse and | Total sr;ares Eeld in the name IS A RELATED PARTY, OR IS THE
Name (Note 1) minors of another person SPOUSE OR A RELATIVE WITHIN THE | Remark
SECOND DEGREE OF KINSHIP OF
ANOTHER. (NOTE 3)
Number of | Shareholding Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Shareholding Name Relationship
shares ratio shares ratio shares ratio (OR NAME)
Special account for
Angel Fund (Asia) Bfi 1;3:1;&5 %igg:ﬁ;c;ﬂf Representative of the
Investments 6,373,265 10.11% 0 0 0 0 companies is the
Limited Investments O.fAngel same person
Fund (Asia)
Investments limited
Angel Fund (Asia) Special account for
Investments Yuanta Commercial .
Limited Bank as Custodian of Representative Qf
. 0 0 0 0 0 0 Angel Fund (Asia)
Representative: Investments of Angel Investments L imited
TU, CHUN- Fund (Asia)
KUANG Investments limited
Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of 3,840,427 6.09% 0 0 0 0 None None
Investments of
Avalon Group
Limited
Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
Investments of 0 0 0 0 0 0 None None
Avalon Group
Limited
Representative:
OU, LIN-LAN
Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank .
as Custodian of 3,600,238 5.71% 0 0 0 0 Angel Fund (Asia) Refgﬁwssg;?élsvgct);éhe
Investments of e : Investments Limited same person
Angel Fund (Asia)
Investments
limited
Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
Investments of . Representative of
Angel Fund (Asia) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Im%f:n';ﬁ?fl_(ﬁﬁi'fg 4 | Angel Fund (Asia)
Investments Investments Limited
limited
Representative:
TU, CHUN-
KUANG
Soft-World Gameflier Representative of the
International 2,560,285 4.06% 0 0 0 0 International companies is the
Corporation Corporation same person
Soft-World .
International Gameflier Repcr;esentﬁpve of
Corporation 0 0 0 0 0 0 International ametlier
. - International
Representative: Corporation Corporation
WANG, JUN-BO
Special account
for Taishin 2,325,377 3.69% 0 0 0 0 None None
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
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Investments of
China
Development
Mobile
Technology Ltd.

Special account
for Taishin
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
Investments of
China
Development
Mobile
Technology Ltd.
Representative:
LIN, CHIA-LI

None

None

Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
Investments of
Harvest Strategic
Union, Ltd.

2,251,384

3.57%

None

None

Special account
for Yuanta
Commercial Bank
as Custodian of
Investments of
Harvest Strategic
Union, Ltd.
Representative:
SU, TSUNG-JU

None

None

Tsao, Chih-Liang

1,780,149

2.82%

Gameflier
International
Corporation

1,472,164

2.33%

Soft-World
International
Corporation

Representative of the
companies is the
same person

Gameflier
International
Corporation
Representative:
WANG, JUN-BO

Soft-World
International
Corporation

Representative of
Soft-World
International
Corporation

Yuanta
Commercial Bank
was entrusted as
custodian of
special account of
DIANZHI
INVESTMENT
CO.,LTD.

1,205,000

1.91%

None

None

Yuanta
Commercial Bank
was entrusted as
custodian of
special account of
DIANZHI
INVESTMENT
CO., LTD.
Representative:
LIN, KO AN

None

None

WENG, QING-
BIAO

960,985

1.52%

Note 1: All the top ten shareholders shall be listed. For corporate shareholders, their names and the name of their representatives shall be

listed separately.

Note 2: The calculation of shareholding ratios refers to the shareholding ratio calculated based on the name of oneself, spouse, minors, or in

the name of another person.

Note 3: Relationships between the aforementioned shareholders, including corporate shareholders and natural person shareholders shall be

disclosed based on the financial reporting standards used by the issuer.
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X. Shares held by the Company, its Directors, Supervisors, managerial

officers, and investee companies either directly or indirectly controlled by

the Company, and the ratio of consolidated shares held
April 30, 2021; Unit: shares

Investment by
Reinvestment Investments of the Directors/Managerial  Officers Total Ownership
. Company and Companies Directly or
business Indirectly Controlled by Aurora
(Note) Number of |Shareholding| Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Shareholding
shares ratio shares ratio shares ratio
ART. (L}f‘;nes Cos 11,225,000 49.00%| 745,000 29.80%| 1,970,000 78.80%

Note: Long-term investment by the Company using the equity method
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I. Capital and Shares

(I) Source of Capital

1. Formation of Capital

Chapter4 Capital Overview

Unit: NT$1,000

April 30, 2021

Year/
Month

Authorized Capital

Paid-in Capital

Remark

Issue

. Number of
Price

Shares

Amount

Number of Shares

Amount

Source of Capital

Contribution
by Property
Other than
Cash

Others

2020.03 0

130,000,000

1,300,000,000

49,288,530

492,885,300

Cancellation of 6,000 restricted employee
shares repurchased from employee departure

None

March 20, 2020 Fu-Chan-
Ye-Shang-Tze

Document No.
10947377500 was
approved

2020.08 0

130,000,000

1,300,000,000

49,263,530

492,635,300

Treasury stock cancellation of 25,000 shares

None

August 04, 2020 Fu-Chan-
Ye-Shang-Tze

Document No.
10952502000 was
approved

2020.11

0 130,000,000

1,300,000,000

58,135,465

581,354,650

Capital increase by retained earnings 8,871,935
shares.

None

November 16, 2020 Jing-
Shou-Shang-Zi
Document No.
10901210460 was
approved

2020.12 0

130,000,000

1,300,000,000

63,064,318

630,643,180

Capital increase by capital reserve 4,928,853
shares.

None

December 25, 2020 Jing-
Shou-Shang-Zi
Document No.
10901240670 was
approved
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2. Type of Shares

April 30, 2021 Unit: shares

Authorized Capital
Type of Shares Outstanding Shares Unissued Shares Total Remark
(Notes 1~5)
Common shares 63,064,318 66,935,682 130,000,000
Total 63,064,318 66,935,682 130,000,000

Note 1: A total of 5,562,500 privately placed common shares were issued on April 14, 2010 but yet to be listed on TPEx

as appropriated.

Note 2: A total of 4,978,562 privately placed Type A preferred shares were issued on June 11, 2007 and converted into
common shares on August 2, 2010 but yet to be listed on TPEx as appropriated.
Note 3: A total of 8,500,000 privately placed common shares were issued on March 21, 2014 but yet to be listed on
TPEXx as appropriated.
Note 4: A total of 2,000,000 privately placed common shares were issued on March 25, 2016 but yet to be listed on
TPEXx as appropriated.
Note 5: For the abovementioned privately placed common shares, due to distribution of retained earnings for 2019, a
total of 5,894,485 privately placed shares were issued to increase the capital, but yet to be listed on TPEx as

appropriated.

3. Offering and Issuance of Securities by Shelf Registration: None.

(IT) Shareholder Structure

April 2, 2021 Unit: Person,shares

Shareholder . . Foreign
Government | Financial Other .. e
tructure . . S Individuals| Institutions and Total
. Agencies | Institutions | Institutions .
Quantity Individuals

Number of people - - 63 11,795 38 11,896
Numbe}fecl)i shares ; ; 4,797,765\35,914,209]  22,352.344| 63,064,318
Shareholding ratio - - 7.61% 56.95% 35.44% 100.00%

Note: Primary TWSE/TPEXx listed companies shall disclose the shareholding percentage of Chinese investments;
Chinese investments refers to people, corporations, organizations, or other institutions of the Mainland area or
their investments in third areas set forth in Article 3 of the Regulations Governing Investment Permit to the
People of the Mainland Area.

(IIT) Diffusion of Ownership
1. Common Shares

Par value: NT$10/share April 2, 2021; Unit: Person, share

. Number of Number of Shareholding

Scale of Shareholding Shareholders shares held ratio

1 ~999 4,834 503,791 0.80%
1,000 ~ 5,000 5,690 11,067,521 17.55%
5,001 ~ 10,000 781 5,297,266 8.40%
10,001 ~ 15,000 248 3,037,465 4.82%
15,001 ~ 20,000 102 1,763,488 2.80%
20,001 ~ 30,000 106 2,581,208 4.09%
30,001 ~ 50,000 65 2,507,973 3.98%
50,001 ~ 100,000 29 1,991,303 3.16%
100,001 ~ 200,000 19 2,634,331 4.18%
200,001 ~ 400,000 7 1,974,698 3.13%
400,001 ~ 600,000 2 939,627 1.49%
600,001 ~ 800,000 1 669,961 1.06%
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 3 2,687,397 4.26%
1,000,001 or more 9 25,408,289 40.28%
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[Total 11,896 | 63,064,318 | 100.00% |

2. Preferred shares: None.

(IV) List of major shareholders: if there are less than 10 shareholders with a shareholding ratio of
5% or more, the name, number of shares held and proportion of the top 10 shareholders shall
be disclosed.

Unit: Share April 2, 2021

Shares :
Number of | Shareholdi

Major Shareholder shares held | ng ratio
Angel Fund (Asia) Investments Limited 6,373,265 10.11%

Special account for Yuanta Commercial Bank as Custodian of
Investments of Avalon Group Limited

Special account for Yuanta Commercial Bank as Custodian of
Investments of Angel Fund (Asia) Investments limited

Soft-World International Corporation 2,560,285 4.06%
Special account for Taishin Commercial Bank as Custodian of

hf)vestments of China Development Mobile Technology Ltd. 2,325,377 3.69%
Special account for Yuanta Commercial Bank as Custodian of
Investments of Harvest Strategic Union, Ltd.

Tsao, Chih-Liang 1,780,149 2.82%
Gameflier International Corporation 1,472,164 2.33%

Yuanta Commercial Bank was entrusted as custodian of special o
account of Dianzhi Investment Co., Ltd. 1,205,000 191%

WENG, QING-BIAO 960,985 1.52%
Note: Special account for Yuanta Commercial Bank as Custodian of Investments of Angel Fund (Asia) Investments
limited is the special account opened by the Company's director, Angel Fund (Asia) Investments Limited,;
therefore, the number of shares held by Angel Fund (Asia) Investments Limited totaled 9,973,503.

3,840,427 6.09%

3,600,238 5.71%

2,251,384 3.57%

(V) Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings, and Dividends per Share and Related Information for the
Most Recent Two Years

Unit: NT$1,000

(Unless otherwise stated)

Year As of April
Ttem 2019 2020 30, 2021
(Note 8)
) Highest 177.50 99.90 77.80
Market price per Lowest 84.00 39.15 60.10
share (Note 1)
Average 110.38 76.70 67.71
Net worth per Before distribution 16.33 13.84 N/A
share (Note 2) After distribution 12.60 (Note 2) N/A
Weighted average number 48,189 62.465 N/A
of shares
Earnings (loss) 6.77 (Before N/A
per share (NTD) Earnings per Share adjustment) 091
(Note 3) 5.26 (After '
adjustment)

70



Cash dividends 0.2 (Note 2) N/A

Dividend per | Stock | Surplus earnings 1.8 (Note 2) N/A

share divide| Capital reserve 1.0 (Note 2) N/A

Unpaid dividends (Note 4) 0 0 N/A

R Price-to-earnings ratio 16.30 84.29 N/A

Return on Price-to-dividend ratio 551.90 (Note 2) N/A
mnvestment — -

Dividend yield (Note 7) 0.18% (Note 2) N/A

% If shares are distributed in connection with a capital increase out of surplus earnings or capital reserve,
information on market prices and cash dividends retroactively adjusted based on the number of shares after
distribution shall be further disclosed.

Note 1: The highest and lowest market prices of common shares for each year are listed. The average market price
for each year is calculated based on the transaction value and volume.

Note 2: The number of shares that have been issued by the end of the year and the resolution at the shareholders'
meeting in the following year shall apply.
Earnings Distribution for 2020 is still under resolution by the general shareholders' meeting 2021, so they
are not represented.

Note 3: If there is any retrospective adjustment required due to stock dividends, earnings per share before and after
adjustment shall be listed.

Note 4: If the terms and conditions under which the equity securities are issued provide that the stock dividend
retained in the year may be accumulated until the year in which there are allocable earnings available,
please disclose the retained stock dividend accumulated until the then year.

Note 5: Price-to-earnings ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Earnings Per Share.
Note 6: Price-to-dividend ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Cash dividends per share.
Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividends per share/Average closing price per share for the year.

Note 8: Please identify the net value per share and EPS available in the latest quarterly financial information
audited (reviewed) by the independent auditor before the date of publication of the annual report, and the
information available until the date of publication of the annual report in the other sections.

(VI) Dividend Policy and Its Implementation

1. Dividend Policy
When there are earnings in the annual final accounts of the Company, 10 % of the balance,
after deducting all taxes and making up for the losses in the past years, shall be set aside for
the statutory surplus reserves, except when the cumulative statutory surplus has reached the
paid-in capital of the Company. Special surplus reserves required by the regulations shall also
be allocated and the balance then added with the unallocated earnings from previous years.
Subsequently, after taking into consideration the capital needed for operations, financial
structure, the current annual earnings and the stability of dividend distribution, the Board of
Directors shall plan the earnings distribution and forward a proposal to the shareholders
meeting for approval.
The Company’s dividend distribution policy is subject to the Company’s operational needs
and the maximum interests of shareholders. The distribution of shareholder dividends is based
on the principle of stock dividends. If there are surpluses, the cash dividends are distributed
to shareholders. However, the proportion of cash dividends is not more than 50 % of the total
dividend distribution.

2. Distribution of Dividends Proposed in the Shareholders' Meeting
2020 Earnings Distribution Plan was drafted in board meeting on April 14, 2021: dividends
valued TWD 37,838,594 to be distributed; including stock dividends valued TWD 25,225,730
(TWD 0.4 per share) and cash dividends valued 12,612,864 (TWD 0.2 per share).
Action will be taken pursuant to relevant provisions once the proposal is resolved in the
Annual Shareholders' Meeting on May 31, 2021.

(VII) Impacts on the Company’s Business Performance and Earnings Per Share of Any Stock
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Dividend Distribution Proposed or Adopted at the Most Recent Shareholders' Meeting:

2021
(Estimate)
Beginning paid-in capital NTD
630,643,180
Distribution of | Cash dividend per share 0.2
dividends in the | Number of shares allotted for capital 0.4
current fiscal transferred from surplus
year (Note 1) Capital reserve to capital increase -
Operating Income
Operating profit increase (decrease) ratio over
the same period last year
NIAT
. Ratio of increase (decrease) in NIAT
Changes in . e .
. compared with the same period in previous
operating year (Note 2)
fi ,
performance Earnings (loss) per share (NTD)
Earnings per share increase (decrease) ratio
over the same period last year
Annual average return on investment (annual
average P/E ratio)
If capital transferred Proposed Earnings
. . | Per Share
from capital reserve is
Pro-forma Average
replaced by cash
o NN Annual Return on
dividends distribution
Investment
Proposed Earnings
If capital transferred | Per Share
Pro-forma . .
. from capital reserve is | Pro-forma Average
earnings per
not conducted Annual Return on
share and P/E
ratio Investment
If capital reserve has | Proposed Earnings
not been prepared and | Per Share
capital transferred Pro-forma Average
from surplus is Annual Return on
changed into Investment
distribution of cash
dividends

Note 1: The distribution is in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board on April 14, 2021, and

calculated on the basis of 63,064,318 shares; It has not yet been approved by the annual
shareholders’ meeting in 2021.

Note 2: The Company did not publish the 2021 financial forecasts, so it is not required to disclose the

information.

(VIII) Remuneration Paid to Employees and Directors and Supervisors

1. Percentage or Range of Remuneration Paid to Employees and Directors and Supervisors as

Set Forth in the Company's Articles of Incorporation
The Company's Articles of Incorporation specify the following:
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If the Company makes a profit in the year, at least 3% of the profit shall be allocated for
employee compensations and no more than 3 % shall be allocated for compensations of the
Directors. However, the Company shall reserve a portion of profit to make up for accumulated
losses (including adjusted unallocated earnings from previous years), if any.
The Board of Directors shall issue the employee compensation in the preceding paragraph in
the form of stocks or cash distribution, and the objects of the issuance shall include employees
of the subordinate companies that meet the conditions set by the Board of Directors. The
Director compensation of the preceding paragraph is only paid in cash.
The compensation distribution of the employees and Directors shall be subject to the
resolution of the Board of Directors, and shall be reported to the shareholders meeting.
. Accounting Treatments when Differences Occur between Estimated and Actual Distributed
Amount of Employee, Director, and Supervisor Compensation.
The annual amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration is calculated and
estimated based on the profit (after offsetting accumulated losses) made for the year and the
percentage set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. The discrepancy between the amount
approved by the Board of Directors and the estimate, if any, shall be accounted for as changes
in the accounting estimate and recognized as profit or loss for the year of approval by the
Board of Directors.
. Distribution of Remuneration Approved by the Board of Directors
(1) Amount of remuneration distributed to employees and directors and supervisors in the form
of either cash or stock (where there is any discrepancy between the actual amount and the
estimate, the amount, cause, and treatment of such discrepancy shall be stated):
(A) The proposal for the 2020 employee compensation and Directors remuneration
distribution (approved by the BOD on March 12, 2021)

(a) Employee remuneration: NT$2,939,216 (in the form of cash).
(b) Director remuneration: NT$979,739 (in the form of cash).

(B) If there 1s a difference in actual distributed amount to employees and directors and
estimated expense for 2020, the difference of the value as well as reason for deviation
and accounting treatment shall be disclosed.

The discrepancy totaled NT$11,222 and NT$3,741 of actual distributed amount of
employees and directors for 2020, respectively, mainly due to the changes in the
accounting estimate. The discrepancy has been recognized as profit or loss in 2021.

(2) Employee remuneration to be distributed in the form of stock and its percentage of the sum
of income tax after and total employee remuneration: N/A.
. Actual Distribution of Employee Remuneration and Director Remuneration for the Previous
Year (including Number of Shares, Amount, and Share Price), and the Amount, Cause, and
Treatment of Discrepancy with the Estimate
(1) The proposal for the 2019 employee compensation and Directors remuneration distribution
(approved by the BOD on March 5, 2020)
(A) Employee remuneration: NT$16,970,214 (in the form of cash).

(B) Director remuneration: NT$3,394,043 (in the form of cash).

(2) Any discrepancy between the actual amount of employee remuneration and director
remuneration for 2017 to be distributed and the estimate (including the amount, cause,
and treatment of such discrepancy)

There is no difference in the 2019 employees, Directors’ and Supervisors’ actual
remuneration.
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(IX) Repurchase of the Company's Shares:
Repurchase of shares during the Most Recent Fiscal Year and during the Current Fiscal Year up
to the Date of Publication of the Annual Report:

April 30, 2021

Term of repurchase 5th meeting

Purpose of repurchase Maintain company credit and
shareholders' rights

Term of repurchase 109.03.24~109.05.22

Price range of repurchase 31.00~100.00

Type and quantity of shares repurchased 25,000 shares

Amount of shares repurchased NT$1,023,242

Shares that have been canceled or 25,000 shares

transferred

Cumulative Shares of the Company 0

Total treasury stock holdings as a 0%

percentage of total shares issued (%)

II. Issuance of Corporate Bonds: None.
III. Issuance of Preferred Shares: None.
IV. Global Depository Receipts: None.
V. Employee Stock Options: None.
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VI. Employee Restricted Stock
(I) New Restricted Employee Shares

April 30, 2021

Type of new restricted employee
shares
(Note 1)

(2nd Board Meeting)
New restricted employee shares

Effective date

November 21, 2018

Date of issue (Note 2)

January 5, 2019

Number of new restricted
employee shares issued

1,500,000 shares

Issue Price

NTS$0/share

Ratio of new restricted employee
shares issued to total shares issued

2.38%

Vesting conditions of new
restricted employee shares

service-based conditions and performance-based conditions,
the percentage of shares where the vesting conditions are met

If employees meet the following vesting conditions, such as

is as follows:

1. If employees remain in office for four months from the date
of issuance of new restricted employee shares, they may
acquire 20% of the new restricted employee shares in batches.
If the Company has income after tax as set forth in the most
recent year's consolidated financial statements audited by
CPAs, employees may acquire another 20% of the new
restricted employee shares.

. If employees remain in office for sixteen months from the date
of issuance of new restricted employee shares, they may
acquire 15% of the new restricted employee shares in batches.
If the Company has income after tax as set forth in the most
recent year's consolidated financial statements audited by
CPAs, employees may acquire another 15% of the new
restricted employee shares.

. If employees remain in office for twenty eight months from
the date of issuance of new restricted employee shares, they
may acquire 15% of the new restricted employee shares in
batches. If the Company has income after tax as set forth in
the most recent year's consolidated financial statements
audited by CPAs, employees may acquire another 15% of the
new restricted employee shares.

Restricted rights of new restricted
employee shares

. During the vesting period, an employee shall not sell, pledge,
transfer, give to another person, create any encumbrance on,
or otherwise dispose of, new restricted employee shares
except for inheritance. After employees meet the vesting
conditions, new restricted employee shares will be deposited
in their centralized depository account from the trust account
according to the trust or custody contract.

. Employees shall attend, propose, speak, vote and elect in the
shareholders’ meeting according to the trust or custody
contract.
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4. In addition to the trust agreement referred to in the preceding

3. Employees with new restricted employee shares are entitled
for the distribution of dividends, and cash or stock dividends
acquired are not subject to the vesting period. Cash or stock
dividends shall be deposited in employees' personal accounts
from the trust account within one month from the date of
distribution.

paragraph, employees may enjoy other rights of new
restricted employee shares acquired by employees according
to the regulations, including but not limited to dividends,
bonuses, distribution of capital reserve, and stock warrants of]
capital increase for cash, before meeting the vesting
conditions. Such other rights are same with those of common
shares issued by the Company.

Custody of new restricted
employee shares

1,500,000 shares under the custodial trust institution

Measures to be taken when
employees fail to meet the vesting
conditions

4. Leave without pay: If employees are on leave without pay due

1. If employees resign, retire, or apply for transfer to affiliated
companies or are dismissed or discharged within twenty eight
months from the acquisition of new restricted employee
shares, the Company shall redeem the new restricted
employee shares where vesting conditions have not been met
from the employees free of charge.

2. When employees with new restricted employee shares violate
the labor contracts and work rules of the Company, the
Company may redeem the new restricted employee shares
where vesting conditions have not been met from the
employees free of charge, depending on the severity of the
violation.

3. When employees become disabled or dead due to
occupational diseases or die in general, the new restricted
employee shares where vesting conditions have not been met
shall be handled in the following manners:

(1) When employees become disabled due to occupational
diseases and unable to work, the new restricted employee
shares where vesting conditions have not been met shall
be deemed fully met upon the effective date of employee
departure.

(2) When employees become dead due to occupational
diseases, the new restricted employee shares where
vesting conditions have not been met shall be deemed
fully met from upon the day of death. The successors
should complete all statutory procedures and provide
related supporting documents to apply for the acquisition
of shares they should inherit or equity that has been
disposed of.

(3) General death: The new restricted employee shares where
vesting conditions have not been met shall be deemed
fully met from upon the day of death. The Company shall
redeem and cancel such shares according to the
regulations.

to serious illness, serious family changes, or continuing study
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. When employees are designated by the Company to transfer

. If employees terminate or rescind the delegation to the

abroad upon special approval of the Company according to
the laws and regulations, they may resume the new restricted
employee shares where vesting conditions have not been met
after reinstatement, provided that the vesting conditions shall
be deferred from the period of leave without pay.

to its affiliated companies due to the need of business, the new
restricted employee shares where vesting conditions have not
been met may continue to exist, but they shall remain subject
to the vesting period. The vesting conditions shall be
determined by the Chairman based on the performance
evaluation provided by the affiliated companies where
employees transfer.

Company in violation of Paragraph 2, Article 7 (trust and
custody) before meeting the vesting conditions, the Company
shall redeem the new restricted employee shares from the
employees free of charge.

Number of new restricted
employee shares redeemed or
bought back

6,000 shares

Number of new restricted
employee shares where restrictions
on rights have been released

1,047,000 shares

Number of new restricted
employee shares where restrictions
on rights have not been released

447,000 shares

The ratio of the number of
unreleased restricted shares to the
total number of issued shares (%)

0.71%

Effect on shareholders' equity

1. Expendable amount

. Dilution of the company's earnings per share and other effects

The Company measures the fair value of shares on the grant
date and recognizes related expenses in the vesting period.
The expendable amount is estimated to be NT$157,500
thousand. According to the vesting conditions, the annual
expendable amount from 2019 to 2021 (January to April) is
projected as NT$118,688 thousand, NT$32,062 thousand,
and NT$6,750 thousand, respectively.

on shareholders' equity

Based on the number of current outstanding shares
(49,294,530 shares, as of May 10, 2019), the EPS dilution
from 2019 to 2021 (January to April) is projected as NT$2.41,
NT$0.65, and NT$0.14, respectively.

Note 1: The number of fields may be adjusted based on the frequency of issuance.
Note 2: Different dates of issue, if any, shall be specified separately.
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(IT) Names and Acquisition Status of Managerial Officers Having Acquired New Restricted Employee Shares and of Employees Ranking among Top 10
in the Number of New Restricted Employee Shares Acquired

April 30, 2021

Unit: NT$, share

Restricted rights lifted (Note 2)

Restricted Rights Not Yet Lifted (Note 2)

Ratio of New Ratio of Shares Ratio of Shares
Number of Restricted where Number of where
New Employee Number of Restrictions on Shares where Restrictions on
Title Restricted Shares Shares where . Restrictions Rights Have
Name . . Issue Issue Rights Have . Issue Issue
(Note 1) Employee Acquired to | Restrictions on . on Rights . Not Been
. Price | Amount | Been Released Price | Amount
Shares Total Shares Rights Have to Total Shares Have Not Released to
Acquired Issued Been Released Been Total Shares
Issued
(Note 4) (Note 4) Released Issued
(Note 4)
President Tsay, Ming-
Hung
YAO,
Vice President CHUANG-
HSIEN
. . Hsieh, Ping-Hui
§ Vice President (Note 1)
=] . . LIEN, CHIEN-
o )
0§ Vice President CHIN
=) . . CHEN, YAO- 576,000 0.91% 401,700 0 0 0.64% 171,300 0 0 0.27%
= Vice President
= TIEN
? Vice President LIN, HUL-
@ ZHEN
. . Chang, Shu-Fen
Vice President (Note 1)
Chang, Hsiao-
CTO Chuan (Note 2)
Director Jao, Jui-Chun
(Note 2) (Note II)
oS Chen, Chien-
5 Manager Min
© Manager  |Lu, Chih-Hsiang
o Associate Tseng, Chih- 815,000 1.29% 570,500 0 0 0.90% 244,500 0 0 0.39%
fb Manager Hao
o Employee Pao, Hung-Hsiu
- Employee Wu, Hsin-Jui
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Employee Jao, Kai-Yuan
Employee Chen, Po-An
Employee Hou, Li-Ling
Chang, Chia-
Chiang
Employee Hu, You-Chang

Employee

Note 1: The name and title of managerial officers and employees (specify departure or death if any) shall be disclosed separately, but the number of new
restricted employee shares distributed or acquired may be disclosed collectively.

Note 2: The number of fields may be adjusted based on the frequency of issuance. (Number of shares where restrictions on rights have been released shall
include the number of shares where vesting conditions are met and the number of shares where vesting conditions are not met and therefore redeemed

by the Company)
Note 3: Employees ranking among Top 10 in the number of new restricted employee shares acquired shall refer to employees other than managerial officers.
Note 4: Total shares issued shall refer to shares registered with the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
Note 1: Resigned
Note 2: Transfer to affiliated companies:

79




VII. Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None.

VIII. Financing Plans and Implementation: None.
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Chapter 5 Operating Highlights
I.  Business Activities
(I) Scope of business
1. Primary operating scope of the Company
The Company is a game software manufacturer and its primary operations are the
development, operation, and licensing of single player games, online games, webpage games,

and mobile games.
2. Proportion of primary operations

Unit: Thousand NT$

2020
Product Net operating
%
revenue
Sale of goods revenue 2,289 0.42
Rendering of service 543,080 99.58
Total 545,369 100.00

3. Current products and services offered by the Company
(1) Software development, production, and sales for single player games.
(2) Software development, agency, licensing, and sales for online games.
(3) Software development, agency, licensing, and sales for mobile games.
(4) Production and sales for peripherals and guides of computer software.
4. Planning and development of new products (services):
(1) Single player game
(2) Online game
(3) Webpage game
(4) SNS game
(5) Mobile game (including mobile phone and tablet platform)
(IT) Industry overview
1. Current state and development of the industry
Game software worldwide can mainly categorize as Arcade game, TV/console game, PC game,

and mobile game. Their current state and development are as follow:

(1) Arcade game
Arcade games are generally placed at large-scale entertainment venues or amusement parks.
Based on its pay-per-game model, it is essential to attract consumers to insert coins for the
game continually. Arcade games are primarily divided into two categories of puzzles and
gaming; the US and Japan still dominate the market. Large-scale arcade game market in
Taiwan tends to be more recreational, such as dancing machine, basketball shooting
machine, and claw machine. With the development of multi-media, the popularity of arcade
machines has declined rapidly, gradually fall outside of the public sight. However, arcade
machines in different regions show different conditions; for instance, the recession of

arcade machines in Japan is relatively slow.
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(2) TV/Console game
TV/Console game primarily makes use of the TV screen for the game, which is highly
popular due to the popularity of TVs. As TV game development shall be based on the
platform specification of the hardware companies, the Company is required to pay royalties
to hardware platform companies. Therefore, current TV games across the globe are mainly
led by large companies in the US and Japan, such as Wii by Nintendo, PS4 by Sony, and
Xbox 360 and Xbox One by Microsoft, etc.

(3) PC game

PC game can be roughly divided into single player games and online games.

The growth of market scale for single player game software worldwide is limited,
primarily due to the rampant software piracy, plus the diversification of game platform due
to advanced technologies; the emergence of online games gave rise to the most direct
substitution effect. Except for adopting the strategy of low quantity with premium quality,
using online innovative sales model is also a positive direction for companies. For example,
extend the lifecycle of products through methods of launching the purchase and download
version on the internet, online battle, and new game download, and prevent piracy through

online verification mechanism.

Online games consist of MMORPG, Web/SNS game, and casual game. Currently,
MMORPG is the major group. As players are required to invest more time and spirit, the
player stickiness and loyalty maintain higher. However, with changes in structural factors
such as the net user structure and players' demand, web game has played a significant role
in the industrial growth in recent years. Currently, the trend for web game is to integrate
with SNS, providing more mutual topics for users through the course of the games.
(4) Mobile game

Given that smartphones and tablets have gradually become indispensable entertainment
tools for the modern generation, related companies have competed to participate in the
mobile APP market where games accounted for the most significant APP percentage. There
are numerous games in the market with fierce competition. The profiting model for the
games has also turned to diversification, including one-off payment and download, virtual
market, payment and download for additional content, and income from the in-game
advertisement. Mobile games have significant growth in recent years. According to the
App Annie Report from the globally renowned mobile data company, the number of
downloads in Taiwan on the top two global platform of iOS App Store and Google Play
may not be within the top ten of the globe; however, the turnover from games in Taiwan
ranked 10th in the world, and the turnover on the iOS App Store further climbed to the 5th
of the world. As compared to games on other platforms, the mobile game market has
achieved remarkable growth.
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. Correlation among upstream, midstream, and downstream of the industry
For the game software industry, the upstream game software developers would cooperate
with the midstream agent distributors, such as game operators/publishers/and distributors, for
the launch and operation, online management and customer services, marketing
communication, and the issuance of game cards or packages of games; or cooperate with
manufacturing operations of disc replication factory or printers to provide raw materials for the

commercialization of products, and then deliver to consumers through physical or virtual

channels.

Game and universal software developer Printing of instructions and
the package for discs

Disc replication
factory

Upstream

| Hour card producer |

Dealership/Distributor Midstream

| Physical channel | Virtual channel Downstream
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Source: A compilation from the Taiwan Industry Economics Services
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3. Development trend and competition of products
®Development trend of products
A. Product development is directed to diverse platforms

With the popularization of the internet and the expeditious development of
technologies, the game market is able to achieve rapid growth on all platforms through
the application of remote server and the function of multiplayer. Except for desktop PC
and laptop being used in the past, devices in use have gradually involved to mobile
devices, e.g., tablets and smartphones, hoping to integrate games into consumers' daily
lives by way of the broad and convenient multi- platform application, which effectively
improves the added value of games and opens the door to another potential market for
digital content market.

B. Product development is directed to many-to-many interactivity
Traditional game software focuses on the interaction between the player and the
video game. Once the player had passed all the well-designed challenges of the game
software (i.e. "cleared the game™), the game would lose its attractiveness to players.
However, the new game model may make amend for such shortcoming. The new model
allows players to interact with concurrent online players, and jointly participate in the
designed plots in the game.

C. Product development is directed to multi-languages and multi-nationalization
Revise the game to local languages according to nations and regions, or make
proper adjustments based on different languages and culture of markets before the
revision or production of games to involve local cultures and allow products to blend in
the global market and become easily acceptable by markets.
D. Free games have become the market mainstream

"Free game" means no entry barrier for players, but the game companies may earn
revenue from the sales of virtual items/virtual treasures. Under the game model of zero-
payment or low-payment, players may choose the game and consumption method based
on their preference, allowing the game to involve players from broader age groups with
an increasing number of players.

E. Popularization of mobile devices and the extended development of games

With the popularization of mobile devices, improvement of multi-media function,
4G network establishment, and the connection of social media, the emergence of casual
players has become a market force not to be neglected by game companies. Therefore,
game companies have commenced their diversified game development to improve the
profoundness of game content for mobile devices. The Company also tried to use
different vehicles or technologies, in the hope to make a breakthrough from the
boundaries of video games or PC in the past, allowing players to enjoy brand-new joy
from games with any kind of mobile devices. In addition, the Company sells derivatives
related to games through in-app purchases to increase the contribution of all players,
and in turns improves the profit of games.
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@Competition Situation

The Company primarily engages in the development, dealership, production, publish,
and sales of computer game software. In recent years, leverage from the popularization of
the internet and the increase of internet users, apart from keeping its development for
single player games, the Company also proactively invested in the development of online
games, web games, and mobile games to enrich the product profiles of the Company and
expand to overseas markets. So far, the Company has managed to license to Europe and
the US, Mainland China, and Southeast Asia. Domestic companies that engage in the
related industry include Soft-World International, Gamania Digital Entertainment,
InterServ, Chinese Gamer International, Userjoy Technology, etc. Due to the high
development potentials of the software industry market, grasping the product and market
trend, as well as establishing the brand and the awareness and stickiness of the players'
community to products will be the competitive advantage of software companies.

85



(ITT) Technology and R&D overview
The Company invested R&D expenses of NT$166,552,000 in total in 2020.

Portable platforms, the game market of smartphones and tablets, continue its expansion.
Meanwhile, an increasing number of consumers have growing requirements for game quality,
community interaction quality, and experiences. In the future, the standard for image or operation
and the real-time connection for mobile games will grow closer to games on the PC platforms
for mobile games. Under such changes of market trend, the related technology forces and the
unique styles of its renowned series of games of the Company in the past will be able to fulfill
the demand of the market in the future. Through the game content with premium quality and the

brand new game experiences, the Company will successfully expand the group number of the
brand.

We have been making breakthroughs and continual advances in our technologies. We have
also begun the development of games using the 3D engine—Unreal Engine 4 from the large-scale
overseas company, escalating the existing 3D graphics standard to a new level, so as to align the
R&D products to the market trend.

(IV) Short/long-term business development plans
(1) Short-term plans
OFully exert the function of human resources allocation under the R&D department to
increase the product lines for all platforms and accelerate the product development
schedules.
@The Company actively expands the licensing for peripherals, such as movies, stage drama,
TV series, novels, and album with the optimized timing for the product launch to continue
the IP fever.
®Improve flexibility and efficiency for operations of Taiwan and overseas market by
strengthening the collaboration with all channels and different industries.
(2) Long-term plans
®Allow the game products to get closer to Mainland China and overseas markets through
joint development or licensing development to reinforce the product exposure and market
share.
@Emphasize the importance of cultural creativity-related industries, and improve IP's
influences and value.
®Understand the operating environment and game trends in the Mainland China market,
and strengthen the upstream and downstream strategic cooperation, to achieve the win-
win situation.
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Il. Market and Sales Overview
(I) Market analysis
1. Sales region for main products in 2020

Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

egions Domestic Overseas Total

Product Amount % Amount % Amount %

Sale of goods (506) | (0.75) 2,795 0.58 2,289 0.42
Rendering of] 67,849 | 100.75 | 475,231 | 99.42 | 543,080 | 99.58
Total 67,343 | 100.00 | 478,026 | 100.00 | 545,369 | 100.00

2. Market share

The company mainly researches and develops single player games, online games and
mobile game products, with revenues of NT$565,818,000 and NT$545,369,000 in 2019 and
2020, respectively. With the highly mature and diversified market, the company's game
development is also towards diversified development. In addition to online games and single
player games, in terms of the product launch, we are more actively devoting into casual games,
web games, mobile games, etc., and the company has occupied an important position in the
game research and development market.

3. Future supply and demand of the market and its growth
(1) Global game industry overview:

According to the report of NEWZOO, a research company for the game market, the
market scale for global games in 2020 was US$174.9 billion with a year-on-year growth rate
of 19.6%. In 2023, it will increase to US$ 217.9 billion and the composition annual rate of
growth reaches up to 9.4% during 2018 to 2023; the income of PC game in 2020 increased to
USS$ 37.4 billion with a ratio of 22% and a year-on-year growth rate of 6.2%; due to
popularization of mobile phone, income or growth rate of mobile game was the highest up to
USS$ 86.3 billion with a ratio of 49% and a year-on-year growth rate of 25.6% in 2020; income
of game host increased to US$51.2 billion in 2020 with a ratio of 29% and a year-on-year
growth rate of 21%, exceeding twice of the predicted income of Newzoo due to the epidemic.
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Global Games Market Forecast

Forecast Toward 2023
newzoo

$217.98n )
+9.4%
Total Market CAGR

$174.9Bn 2018-2023.
$138.88n 3146280 I
2018 2019 2020

2023

Source DNewz00 | 2020 Global Games Market Report
newzoo.com/globalgamesreport

2020 Global Games Market

Per Device & Segment With Year-on-Year Growth Rates

newzoo
$86 " T $86.3B
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Source: ENewzoo | 2020 Global Games Market Report | October Update

newzoo.com/globalgamesreport

Income of the Pacific Rim Region reached US$ 84.3 billion with a ratio of 48% and a year-on-year
growth rate of 17.5%; income of North America was the second up to US$44.7 billion with a ratio
of 26% and a year-on-year growth rate of 21.4%. Income of the Middle East, Africa and Latin
America just exceeded US$6 billion, but there are great prospects. Middle East and Africa had a
year-on-year growth rate of above 30%; China and America accounted for 49% of market shares.

88



newzoo

Latin America
$6.8Bn

+25.2% YoY

2020 Global Games Market

Per Region With Year-on-Year Growth Rates

Middle East & Africa
$6.2Bn

+30.2% YoY

& 49%

of all consumer spending
on games in 2020 will come
from the U.S. and China

China Total & US. Total
Q $44.0Bn = $41.3Bn

Europe
$32.9Bn

+19.9% YoY

Asia-Pacific

$84.38n Global Games Market Report s
Get the latest regional insights
and forecasts

2020 TOTAL

$174.9Bn
+19.6%

YoY

+17.5% YoY

North America
$44.7Bn

+21.4% YoY

¥

newzoo.com/globalgamesreport

ource: ENewzoo | 2020 Global Games Market Report | October Update
newzoo com/globalgamesreport

(2) Taiwan's game industry overview:

According to data of App Annie, revenue of mobile games of Taiwan ranked the 7th,
revenue per player ranked the 6th and revenue per paid player ranked the 3rd in 2020. Data
showed that global download of mobile games increased by 21% in 2020 compared with
2019 and revenue increased by 18%; but Taiwan's download of mobile games decreased by
4% in 2020 compared with 2019 and revenue increased by 21%.

In 2020, Europe and America were locked down due to Covid-19. Due to contributions
to epidemic prevention, Taiwanese's daily life did not change greatly, so the game market
made no huge profit. According to data of App Annie, Taiwan's download of mobile games
was 290 million in 2019 and 250 million during January to November, 2020, indicating that
the Taiwanese game market did not grow due to the epidemic and market competition was
approximately saturated. Among top five games, the "Decryption and puzzle games of
hyper-casual games™ have been best received by November, 2020. The "Role Play RPG"
was the most popular for Taiwanese players with two among the top five.

When download tended to the saturated, general income of mobile games of Taiwan
did not decrease but increase in 2020. According to data of App Annie, revenue was US$1.7
billion in 2019, but the number of players did not increase. It indicated that every player paid
more for role play. Income of "Action role play" had increased most, such as A3, Original
God, Heaven M and RO New Wonderland Legend.

App Annie pointed out that action role play (MMORPG) games dominated the
Taiwanese market and took the leading position in download and revenue.

With saturated players, increase in market shares represented more fierce competition
in 2020. Prominence of role play means player's high acceptability of specific playing
method and low acceptability of innovated playing method. Since most games are played in
a similar way, players may be lost for lack of excitement and payment ability of the game
system may be required. Income reached US$ 1.86 billion before November, 2020 and is
predicted to break US$ 2 billion in 2020 with an annual growth rate of 17%.
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(3) Mainland China's game industry overview:

In 2020 China GIAC, 2020 China Game Industry Report issued by GPO and China
Research Institute for Game Industry declared actual sales revenue of the game market of
Mainland China up to CNY 278.687 billion (about TWD 1.2 trillion).

It was pointed out in the Report that the number of players in Mainland China grew
steadily up to 665 million with an annual growth rate of 3.7%. Actual sales revenue of the
game market was CNY 278.687 billion (about TWD 1.2 trillion) with an annual growth rate
of 20.71% and it kept rapid growth. Actual sales revenue of the domestic self-developed
game market was CNY 240.192 billion with an annual growth rate of 26.74%.
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According to segmented market, actual sales revenue of the Chinese mobile game
market was CNY 209.676 billion with a ratio of 75.24% in 2020; actual revenue of the client
game market was CNY 55.92 billion with a ratio of 20.07%; actual sales revenue of the
online game market was CNY 7.608 billion with a ratio of 2.73%. Mobile market took a
leading position in the game market.

The client game market and the online game market continued to shrink and actual sales
revenue and market share decreased significantly. Actual sales revenue of the client (APP)
game market was CNY 55.92 billion with an annual decrease rate of 9.09%.

As online game products decreased and the entire market showed a sustained
downtrend, actual sales revenue of the online game market was CNY 7.608 billion with an
annual decrease rate of 22.9% and annual growth rate decreased year by year.

Actual sales revenue of the mobile game market was CNY 209.676 billion with an
annual growth rate of 32.61%. Actual sales revenue of the mobile game market accounted
for 75.25%, that of the client game market accounted for 20.07% and that of the online game
market accounted for 2.73%. Mobile game took a leading position in the game market.

It is worth mentioning that China's electronic competitive games developed rapidly in
2020 and actual sales revenue was CNY 136.55 billion with an annaul growth rate of 44.16%;
the number of electronic competitive game players reached 488 million with an annual
growth rate of 9.65% and it kept growing steadily.

It was reported that as China's 5G was put into commercial use and base station was
improved continuously, rapid and convenient network basis will promote rapid development
of cloud game, electronic competitve game and VR industry and the development of
electronic competitive industry will gradually integrate into other industries.

4. The competition niches of the Company in response to the supply and demand in the future

market are as follow:
(1) Strong and stable development team
For game software development of the Company, from the idea generation, planning,
programming, art design, animation, music, sound effect, and testing, our R&D staff
possess rich and matured experiences and technologies. Extensive experiences and
abundant technologies of our R&D team, as well as their understanding of the market,
provide endless vitality to our products.
(2) Cumulative abundant self-owned game IP
Through 25 years of development, the Company currently has multiple best-selling
product series, including famous game brands such as Sword and Fairy Series, Xuan Yuan
Sword Series, Richman Series, Empire of Angels Series, and Stardom Series, which are
well-recognized by the sinophone game market.

(3) Successfully utilize cross-field IP value

Products of the Company have been making constant breakthroughs, our products
series have expanded from the field of PC games to fields of web/SNS games, and mobiles
games. The large-scale IP of Sword and Fairy have also created a precedent by way of
licensing famous film companies to create large-scale drama series and gradually
developed into fields of audiovisual, animation, publishing, and peripherals. The
Company's adherence to self-innovation, ownership of copyright, and reusable values will
be the next key to success for the digital content industry.

(4) Develop overseas licensing and strategic cooperating plan
Games produced by the Company have successfully being licensed in Mainland China,
Taiwan, and overseas regions and will be launched into the markets one after another. In
the future, the Company will keep expanding the business of licensing. Apart from product
licensing, the Company will also invest IP licensing into the development of new online
games and mobile games to enrich the licensing portfolio of the Company.

91



5. Favorable and unfavorable factors of development prospect and strategies:
(1) Favorable factors
® Stable and robust R&D team that owns the core competitiveness of self-development
of games.
® Own the renowned series of IP that may be used in a cross-field manner to extend IP
application and value in full.
® The flourishing development of 3C technology and internet lead to an increase of
leisure concept. With an increasing scale of the player group, it allows the overall
market scale of the industry to record continual growth.
(2) Unfavorable factors
® Rampant software piracy makes intellectual property right vulnerable for
infringement
Strategies:

So far, for the prevention of matters related to the violation of intellectual
property rights, except for adding cryptographic function for single player games, the
Company also publish data versions (online download) to prevent privacy.
Furthermore, the Company also reinforce the collection of market data to closely
work with lawyers, dedicating to protect the intellectual property rights of the
Company.

® Domestic market scale is limited while the competition within the game industry
remains fierce
Strategies:

Exert the advantage of the Company's IP in the sinophone market, carry out
strategic cooperation with large companies in Mainland China with respect to
product development, platform channels, and horizontal alliances, which will catch
up with the market trend and timeliness and improve the competitiveness of the

Company in the market.

(IT) Major applications and production process of the primary products
1. Major uses of the primary products
The primary products developed or published by the Company are the software of mobile
games, online games, and single player games.
(1) Mobile games and online games provide online real-time games that form strong
interactive social relationships.
(2) Single player games combine education and entertainment to provide a space with

intelligence, inspiration, training, and leisure for users.
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2. Production procedures

Game project proposals

'

Game review

!

Game registration

v

Art design, programming, and music production, interface setting and integration

v

Debugging, testing, modification

'

Finished good, launch

N

Replication, packaging for Maintenance, updates, customer
launch service

(IIT) Supply status of main materials
Does not apply to the Company.
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(IV) Customers who have accounted for over 10% of total purchases (sales) in any of the past two years

1. Information of main suppliers for the past two years
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars
2019 2020
Percentage of the Company's total  |Relationship with the Percentage of the Company's total  |Relationship with the
Item| Name |Amount ) Name |Amount )
annual procurement (%) issuer annual procurement (%) issuer
1 |Company A| 36,501 40.11 None Company C| 22,323 24.82 None
2 |Company B| 10,633 11.68 None Company D| 18,831 20.94 None
3 - - - - Company A | 15,644 17.39 None
4 - - - - Company B| 7,814 8.69 None
Others 43,868 48.21 - Others 25,327 28.16 -
Net 91,002 100.00 . Net 89,939 100.00 .
purchases purchases

Explanation: 1.

2.
3.

Company A is a manufacturer licensed to make mobile games. The company pays the royalty of Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao by % of its
revenue every month.

Company B is the main bandwidth supplier.

Company C is a licensed agent of mobile game manufacturer, and the company pays the royalty of Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao by % of its
revenue every month.

. Company D is a licensed agent of mobile game manufacturer, and the company pays the royalty of Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao by % of its

revenue every month.
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2. Information on the main customers in the most recent two years
Unit: In Thousands of New

Taiwan Dollars

2019 2020
Percentage of |Relationshi Percentage of net | Relationshi
Item Name Amount |net sales in the| p with the Name Amount sales in the year | p with the
year (%) issuer (%) issuer
1 |Company A 76,592 13.54%| None [Company A 89,925 16.49%| None
2 |Company B 73,245 12.94%| None |Company C 58,203 10.67%| None
3 |Company C 28,380 5.02%| None |Company D 56,709 10.40%| None
4 |Company D 747 0.13%| None |Company B 3,855 0.71%| None
Others 386,854 68.37% - Others 336,677 61.73% -
Net sales 565,818 100.00% - Net sales 545,369 100.00% -

Note: 1. Company A is a game operator.
2. Company B is the customer and operator for the licensed game IP.
3. Company C is a game operator.

4. Company D is the customer and operator for the licensed game IP.
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(V) Table of production volume in the past two years
The Company is a game software developer and operator, with its business under the

cultural and creative industry instead of manufacturing industry; therefore, no table of

production volume is available.

(VI) Sales volume and value in the past two years

Unit: set; thousand NT$

Year 2019 2020
Sales Domestic sales Overseas sales Domestic sales Overseas sales
volume and
value
Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value
Main products
Sale of —goods) ;41 2,636 0 0 (6,063) (506) o 2,795
revenue
Rendering —off 81,037 Note 1| 482,145 Note 1 67,849 Note 1| 475231
service revenue
Total 11,410 83,673 0| 482,145 -6,063 67,343 0| 478,026

Note 1: Income from labor services refers to the recognition of revenue by the labor providers who

completed the services or the recognition of revenue by way of royalty; therefore, there is no

statistic for sales volume.

III. Number of employees, average service life, average age and educational
background distribution ratio in the most recent two years and up to the date of

publication of the annual report

Unit: Person

Year 2019 2020 April 30, 2021
Managerial officers 11 9 10
Management and
No. of marketing 56 50 49
employees personnel
R&D personnel 114 111 116
Total 181 170 175
Average age 37.3 38.4 37.8
Average year of services 6.6 7.9 6.6
Doctor - - 1
Master 26 24 23
Education College and
bgckgroqnd university 133 129 134
distribution Senior high school 19 16 16
Below senior high
1 1 1
school

Note: Since 2019, the number of employees does not include Softstar Technology (Beijing) Co.,

Ltd. and Softstar Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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IV. Environmental protection expenditure
Total losses (including damage awards) and fines for environmental pollution in
the two most recent fiscal years, and as of the publication date of the Annual Report,
and explanations of the measures and possible disbursements to be made in the
future:
The Company does not fall in the business type, scope, or scale prescribed by the
Water Pollution Control Act and the Air Pollution Control Act at the current stage.
The Company is not affected by the RHOS imposed by the European Union;
therefore, the Company expects no significant capital expenses on environmental
protection currently or in the future.
V. Labor relations
(I) The Company's employee welfare policies, continuing education, training, retirement
systems, and implementation status, the agreement between employees and employer and
employees’ rights and interests:

1. Benefit measures for employees: Except for complying with the Labor Standards Act
and related requirements, the Company also provides employee training, employee trips,
health check-ups, group insurance, and promotes work- life balance (such as soothing
massage, sports clubs, board games and so on), etc.

2. Advanced studies and training for employees: The new employee orientation, individual
function training or relevant training courses based on the governmental laws and
regulations of the Company are all implemented according to a comprehensive training
system, so as to motivate the potentials of our employees and nurture quality talents.

Professional program and training received by our employees for 2020 is summarized

as follow:
Department of
the training Name of the training program Organizer
receiver
Research &
Development |Physical & mental + wealth flow BRPG  |Wealth awakening camp
Division
Research & . Industrial Safety and
Development g/}/pe A O%cupgtlonal Safety and Health Health Association of The
Division anager aining R.0O.C
E:g:;t ;nf?;tr:f Intellectual Property Right Symposium Il;ililrrlllbang Accounting

Seminar on multiple gender, equal rights in [Labor Bureau of Taipei
the job market and prevention and control |Municipal People's
of sexual harassment Government

Department of
Human Affairs

Depart tof |, . : ; i
CPATTEN O | Taiwan Information Security Conference (iThome

Information

Finance Meeting for Description about Insider's Securities Over-The-
Department  |[Equity Counter Center
Finance How to Detect Hidden Fraud Signs and The Institute of Internal

Auditors - Chinese
Taiwan

Department  |Case Studies
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Finance Promote China to adpot International Securities Over-The-
Department  |Financial Reporting Standards Counter Center
IP Business  |International market gold washing-B2B Taipei Computer
Division key business negoation skills Association
Rescarch & Educational training on safety and health Industrial Safety and
Development of first-aid personnel Health Association of The
Division P R.0.C
Auditing Financial Reporting and Internal Control |Accounting Research and
Office Management Practice Development Foundation
Auditing Legal liability for mispresentation of Accounting Research and
Office financial statements Development Foundation
Finance Contlnulp g Education Training for Ch.l?f Accounting Research and
Department Accounting Officers of Issuers, Securities Development Foundation
P Firms and the Securities Exchange p

Finance The Institute of Internal

Audit Agent Course Auditors - Chinese
Department .

Taiwan

Finance Continuing Education and Training for Accounting Research and
Department  |Accounting Managers Development Foundation
Finance External training course of audit agent: The Institute of Internal

Business Contract Management and Audit |Auditors - Chinese
Department . :

Practice Taiwan

3. Retire system: The Company established its Regulations for Employee Retirement

based on the requirements of the Labor Standard Laws. All employees shall

participate in the plan provided for the employee retirement reserve according to the

prescribed ratio and deposit in a special account in the Bank of Taiwan (previously

known as the Central Trust of China), which shall be supervised by the Employee

Retirement Reserve Supervisory Committee comprised of employees and the

employer. Since the beginning of R.O.C., the Company has established the regulations

for retirement with confirmed provisions based on the requirements under the Labor

Pension Statutes. Such regulations apply to local employees, and a 6% of employee

pension shall be provided per month to the personal accounts of the employees at the

Bureau of Labor Insurance since July 1, 2015.
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4. Introduce professional medical management consultants, promote workplace health
risk management, build a healthy workplace, and strengthen the health awareness of
colleagues. Take care of the physical health of the staff through the complete planning
of professional medical and occupational care, and there are also professional
psychologists in charge of the mental health of the staff. In addition to the
implementation of regulatory requirements, we also protect employees and enhance
the vitality and creativity of our colleagues.

5. Labor agreements and maintenance measurements for employees' interests: All
employees of the Company have participated in the labor insurance and the National
Health Insurance according to the law, and have provided for employee retirement
reserve and labor pension to prepare for the employees' retirement; other labor
conditions are all in compliance with the standards of the Labor Standard Laws. In
addition, to coordinate the labor-management relationship and promote labor-
management cooperation, the Company holds labor meetings on a regular basis.

6. Protection measures for working environment and personal safety of employees:

(1) The Company has a strict access monitoring system in the day and night. The
building is equipped with the building security guards in charge of the building.
The personnel must be equipped with door access control. The personnel must be
equipped with door-entry access control, and the personnel must be equipped with
a surveillance video and video recording and video recording to protect
employees' personal safety.

(2) According to the requirements under the Regulations for Inspecting and Reporting
Buildings Public Security, the Company cooperates with the property management
center to engage the professional company for public security inspection regularly
(at least once a year).

(3) To protect the health of our employees, the Company bans all tobacco products in
our office area, holds CPR training, carries out environmental cleaning and
disinfection regularly (at least once a year), and clean air conditioners and water
towers (two times to four times a year).

(4) Except for purchasing labor and health insurance according to the law, the

Company also contacts insurance companies to purchase group insurance for all our

employees.

7. Other significant agreement: None.

(IT) For the past two years and as of the date of printing the annual report, there has been no
loss incurred from labor-management disputes. Shall there be no other external changing

factors for labor-management relations, there shall be no monetary loss in the future.
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VI. Important contract

) ) Restrictive
Nature Parties Term Major content
clauses
Copyright
) Py .g Authorized R&D and
licensing )
Company A |2020.5.29~2025.5.28 operation of Sword and None
contract of )
Fairy MMORPG (global)
games
) ] January 24, 2007- 2 years after | Xuan Yuan Sword: Dragon
Licensing
Company B [launch Dances in Clouds and None
agreement )
(Launched in October, 2019) Mountains (Mobile)
Authorized R&D and
Copyright operation of Source of
. . September 16, 2020- 3 years after _
licensing Sword and Fairy
Company C  [launch None
contract of ) ) MMORPG (global,
(Launched in April, 2020) ) ]
games excluding Taiwan, Hong
Kong, Macau)
Authorized Authorized recomposition
Sales Company D {2020.8.31~2026.8.30 of TV play of Sword and None
Agreement Fairy V (global)
Cooperation
development )
) ) Authorized R&D of
licensing and Company E  [2019.9.9-2022.9.8 None

1ssuance

agreement

Sword and Fairy HS game
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I. Five-Year Financial Summary

(D 1. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet - [FRS(s)

Chapter 6 Financial Information

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Financial data for the past five years (Note 1)
Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Current assets 579,309 502,389 602,860 418,699 488,516
Property, plant and
. 31,922 33,096 23,423 12,070 8,147
equipment (Note 2)
Intangible assets 10,258 18,569 12,586 8,412 5,229
Other assets (Note 2) 313,326 337,143 444,290 799,760 715,205
Total Assets 934,815 891,197 1,083,159 1,238,941 1,217,097
Before 394,452 343,341
. 410,839 341,474 239,595
Current distribution
liabilities  [After Note 3 Note 4
. Note 4 351,332 Note 5
distribution
Noncurrent liabilities 23,644 55,167 185,834 92,527 104,614
Before 418,096 398,508
C e 596,673 434,001 344,209
Total distribution
Liabilities |After Note 3 Note 4
L Note 4 443,859 Note 5
distribution
Total equity attributable
516,362 491,504 486,370 804,897 872,674
to the parent company
Common stock 481,936 478,313 477,945 492,945 630,643
Additional paid-in 186,125 25,174 179,197 162,992 112,360
capital
Before (135,973) 17,573
. o 144,139 469,543 427,296
Retained  |distribution
earnings After Note 3 Note 4
o Note 4 370,966 Note 5
distribution
Other equity (15,726) (29,556) (314,911) (320,583) (297,625)
Treasury stock - - - - -
Non-Controlling 357 1,185 116 43 214
Interests
Total equity (Before 516,719 492,689
. 486,486 804,940 872,888
distribution
After Note 3 Note 4 Note 4 795,082 Note 5
distribution

* Companies having compiled an individual financial report shall otherwise compile individual condensed
balance sheet and consolidated income statement for the past five years.
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* Companies adopted IFRS for the financial information for less than five years shall otherwise compile
financial information complying with financial accounting standards in Taiwan.

Note 1: The above financial information for the past five years have been audited and certified by CPA.

Note 2: As of Dec. 31, 2020, no asset revaluation was performed by the Company.

Note 3: The Company recorded accumulated losses for 2016, thus no surplus was available for distribution.

Note 4: Not yet allocated.

Note 5: On Apr. 14, 2021, the Board meeting resolved the 2020 earnings distribution proposal. The proposal
has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting as of the printing date of the annual report, so
the amount after distribution is not shown in the statement.

2. Condensed Consolidated balance sheet - Taiwan's GAAP
The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the
information disclosure is not applicable.

3. Condensed Parent Company Only balance sheet - IFRS(s)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Financial data for the past five years (Note 1)
Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Current assets 335,570 294,585 371,972 374,963 437,177
Property, plant and
equipment 19,264 16,671 14,271 10,396 7,465
(Note 2)
Intangible assets 7,622 13,971 6,302 10,230 2,141
Other assets (Note 2) 339,254 430,010 369,302 804,250 728,839
Total Assets 701,710 755,237 761,847 1,199,839 1,175,622
Before 154,533 204,658 194,375 302,815 207,629
Current distribution
liabilities  |After Note 3 Note 4 Note 4 312,673 Note 5
distribution
Noncurrent liabilities 30,815 59,075 81,102 92,127 95,319
Before 185,348 263,733 275,477 394,942 302,948
Total distribution
Liabilities |After Note 3 Note 4 Note 4 404,800 Note 5
distribution
Common stock 481,936 478,313 477,945 492,945 630,643
Additional paid-in 186,125 25,174 179,197 162,992 112,360
capital
Before (135,973) 17,573 144,139 469,543 427,296
Retained |distribution
earnings  |After Note 3 Note 4 Note 4 370,966 Note 5
distribution
Other equity (15,726) (29,556) (314,911) (320,583)]  (297,625)
Treasury stock - - - - -
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Total equity|Before 516,362 491,504 486,370 804,897 872,674
distribution
After Note 3 Note 4 Note 4 795,039 Note 5
distribution

Note 1: IFRS was adopted for the above financial information for the past five years, and the financial

information has been audited and certified by CPA.
Note 2: As of Dec. 31, 2020, no asset revaluation was performed by the Company.
Note 3: The Company recorded accumulated losses for 2016, thus no surplus was available for distribution.

Note 4: Not yet allocated.

Note 5: On Apr. 14, 2021, the Board meeting resolved the 2020 earnings distribution proposal. The proposal
has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting as of the printing date of the annual report, so
the amount after distribution is not shown in the statement.

4. Condensed Parent Company Only balance sheet - Taiwan's GAAP
The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the
information disclosure is not applicable.

(II) 1. Condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income - IFRS(s)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Financial data for the past five years (Note 1)

Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating Revenue 702,634 789,128 855,738 565,818 545,369
Gross profit(loss) 579,962 665,389 774,228 | 474,816 | 455,430
Operating income (loss) (93,280)| 36,533 146,456 | (217,580)| 138,104
Non-Operating Items (31,099) (11,416) (7,894)| 553,447 (44,337)
Profit(loss) before
. (124,379) 25,117 138,562 335,867 93,767
Income tax
Net Income(loss) from

L . (141,295) 9,528 85,427 | 323,817 56,412
Continuing Operations
Income(loss) on
discontinuing operations
Net income (loss) (141,295) 9,528 85,427 323,817 56,412
Total other
comprehensive income

(8,867)]  (25,052) (91,107)| (124,032)]  (9,225)

(loss), net of tax
( Net of Income Tax)
Total comprehensive
, (150,162)|  (15,524)]  (5,680)| 199,785 | 47,187
income(loss)
Net income (loss)
attributable to (136,752) 18,244 87,823 326,039 56,896
Stockholders of the ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
parent
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Net income (loss)

attributable to non- (4,543) (8,716) (2,396) (2,222) (484)

controlling interests

Comprehensive income
(loss) attributable to
Stockholders of the
parent

(145,619)]  (6,808)  (3,284)| 202,007 | 47,671

Comprehensive income
(loss) attributable to
non-controlling interests

4,543)  (8,716)  (2,396)]  (2,222) (484)

Earnings (loss) per
share (NTD)

* Companies having compiled an individual financial report shall otherwise compile individual condensed
balance sheet and consolidated income statement for the past five years.
* Companies adopted IFRS for the financial information for less than five years shall otherwise compile
financial information complying with financial accounting standards in Taiwan.
Note 1: The above financial information for the past five years have been audited and certified by CPA.
2. As of December 31, 2020, no asset revaluation was performed by the Company.

(2.90) 0.38 1.84 5.26 0.91

2. Condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income - Taiwan's GAAP
The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the
information disclosure is not applicable.

3. Condensed Parent Company Only statement of comprehensive income - IFRS(s)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Financial data for the past five years (Note 1)

Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating Revenue 376,655 353,406 | 547,106 377,307 | 428,552
Gross profit(loss) 301,437 257,695 507,639 234419 | 366,598
Operating income

43,838 67,925 198,650 (251,105)| 137,438
(loss)
Non-Operating Items (167,286)|  (34,957)| (74,835)| 571,108 | (43,369)
Profit(loss) before
. (123,448) 32,968 123,815 320,003 94,069
Income tax
Net income (loss) (136,752) 18,244 87,823 326,039 56,896
Total other
comprehensive income (8,867)| (25,052)] (91,107)| (124,032)] (9,225)
(loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive
_ (145,619)]  (6,808)]  (3,284)| 202,007 | 47,671
income(loss)
Earnings (loss) per

(2.90) 0.38 1.84 5.26 0.91

share (NTD)
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4. Condensed Parent Company Only statement of comprehensive income - Taiwan's GAAP
The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the
information disclosure is not applicable.

(IIT) Name of the CPA and its audit opinion for the past five years:

Year CPA Audit opinion
DU, PEI-LING, WANG, HUI- . ..
2016 XIAN Unqualified opinion
YU, CHIEN-JU, YANG, . ..
2017 CHIL-LUEI Unqualified opinion
2018 YU, CHIEN-JU, YANG, |Unqualified opinion with
CHIH-HUEI Emphasis of Matter
2019 YU, CHIEN-JU, YANG, |Unqualified opinion with
CHIH-HUEI Emphasis of Matter
YU, CHIEN-JU, YANG, ) ..
2020 CHIH-HUEI Ungqualified opinion
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II. Five-Year Financial Analysis

(I) Financial Analysis - IFRSs

Year Financial information for the past 5 years (Note 1)
Analysis Item (Note 3) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
. . Liabilities to assets ratio 44.72 44.72 55.09 35.03 28.28
Financial Proportion of long-term capital in
Structure (%) PP&E 1,691.64 1,651.77 2,869.85 7,435.16 | 11,995.68
Current ratio 146.86 146.32 146.74 122.62 203.89
Solvency % |Quick ratio 117.45 106.67 100.76 105.28 184.91
Interest coverage ratio (151.80) 16.80 83.77 60.46 35.27
Af:counts receivable turnover rate 579 707 749 412 416
(times)
Average collection days 63 52 48 89 88
Inventory turnover rate (times) 0.65 0.85 0.49 0.61 0.43
Operating A'ccounts payable turnover rate 239 293 134 092 0.89
performance |(times)
Average days for sale 562 429 745 598 849
Property, plant, and equipment 22.14 2427 30.28 31.88 53.95
turnover rate (times)
Fixed asset turnover ratio (times) 0.85 0.86 0.87 0.49 0.44
Return on Assets (ROA) (%) (16.99) 1.19 8.79 28.28 4.77
Equity return ratio (%) (28.60) 1.89 17.47 50.15 6.73
Profitability 5)26)*(&1‘\’1‘0&’;0% to paid-in capital @581 525 28.99 68.13 14.87
Net Profit Margin (%) (20.11) 1.21 9.98 57.23 10.34
Earnings Per Share (NT$) (2.90) 0.38 1.84 6.77 0.91
Cash flow ratio (%) 17.36 (6.93) (39.48) 4.63 40.71
Cash flow |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 30.58 23.00 (4.33) 2.27 (1.46)
Cash flow reinvestment ratio (%) 20.71 (9.26) (58.50) 2.08 11.62
Leverage ratio Operating leverage ratio Note 2 13.61 4.01 Note 2 2.42
Financial leverage ratio Note 2 1.05 1.01 Note 2 1.02
Reason for changes in financial ratios for the past two years (analysis is not required when the changes are less than
20%):
1. Financial structure:

(1) Ratio of long-term funds in property, plant and equipment: common stock increases this year due to increase of]
capital from 2019 surplus and capital reserve approved by 2020 shareholders' meeting and the ratio increases.

Solvency

(1) Current ratio: Whereas control of Beiruan was lost in June, 2019, Beiruan will not be merged, and consequently
accounts payable and other payables decreased and contract liabilities were transferred to income.

(2) Quick ratio: Whereas control of Beiruan was lost in June, 2019, Beiruan will not be merged, and consequently
accounts payable and other payables decreased and contract liabilities were transferred to income.

(3) Interest coverage ratio: Whereas the net profit of 2020 was lower than that in 2019, but its decrease rate is lower
than the interest expense ratio, resulting in the decreasing financial ratio.

Operation performance:

(1) Inventory turnover rate and average days for sale: No new products were launched and existing products were
slowly sold this year, so the inventory turnover rate decreased and the average days for sale increased.

(2) Property, plant and equipment turnover rate (times): Turnover rate increased due to disposal of property, plant
and equipment.

Profitability:

Net profit for 2020 was lower than that of 2019; therefore, financial ratios were worse than the previous year.

Cash flow:

(1) Cash flow ratios and cash reinvestment ratios: Net cash inflows from operating activities for 2020 were higher
than those for 2019.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio: Due to the decrease in capital expense in the last five years.

£

Companies having prepared individual financial report shall otherwise prepare the individual financial
ratio analysis of the Company.
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* Companies adopted IFRS for the financial information for less than five years shall otherwise compile
financial information complying with financial accounting standards in Taiwan.
Note 1: The financial information from 2016 to 2020 has been audited by accountants.
Note 2: Operating profit for 2016 and 2019 were negatives; therefore, they were excluded from the
calculation.
Note 3: At the end of the statement of the annual report shall set out the calculation formula as follow:

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt-asset Ratio = Total Liabilities/Total Assets.

(2) Ratio of Long-term Capital to Property, Plant and Equipment = (Total Equity + Non-current
Liabilities)/Net Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventories - prepaid expenses)/current liabilities.

(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before tax and interest/interest expenses.

3. Operating performance
(1) Receivables turnover rate (including bills receivable resulting from accounts receivable and

business operations) = Net sales/Average accounts receivable in various periods (including bills
receivable resulting from accounts receivable and business operations).

(2) Average collection days = 365/receivables turnover rate.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of sales/average inventory.

(4) Account payables (including accounts payable and notes payable for operation) turnover rate =
cost of goods sold/average accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable for
operation) balance.

(5) Average days for sale = 365/inventory turnover rate.

(6) PP&E turnover rate = net sales/average net property, plant, and equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover rate = sales/average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1) Return on assets = [profit or loss after tax + interest expenses x (1 - tax rate)] / average total assets.

(2) Return on Equity = net profit or loss after tax/average total equity

(3) Net margin = net profit or loss after tax/net sales.

(4) Earnings Per Share = (net profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company — dividends
on preferred shares)/weighted average number of issued shares. (Note 4)

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow for operating activities/current liabilities.

(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow for operating activities for the past five years/(capital
expenses + increase in inventories + cash dividends) for the past five years.

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow for operating activities — cash dividends)/(gross value for
PP&E + long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital). (Note 5)Plant and
Equipment + Long-term Investments + Other Non-current Assets + Working Capital). (Note 5)

6. Leverage ratio

(1) Operating leverage ratio= (net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses)/operating
income.

(2) Degree of financial leverage (DFL) = operating income/(operating income - interest expenses).

Note 4: Regarding the above calculation formula for earnings per share, please be aware of the following
matters when measuring:

1. Based on the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares, instead of the number of issued
shares by the end of the year.

2. For cash capital increase or treasure shares transactions, consider the circulation period to calculate
the weighted average number of shares.

3. Regarding retained earnings transferred to capital increase or capital reserve transferred to capital,
when calculating earnings per share for the past year or interim, it shall make retrospective adjustments
according to the capital increase ratio, without taking into account the issuance period of capital
increase.

4. If the preference shares are non-convertible cumulative preference shares, its dividend of the year
(whether it is being distributed or not) shall add or subtract the net loss from the net income. If the
preference shares are not non-convertible, where there is net profit after tax, the dividends of the
preference shares shall be deducted from the net profit after tax; however, such adjustments are not
applicable in case of losses.

Note 5: Special attention should be paid to the following matters when measuring cash flow analysis:
1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the
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statement of cash flows.
2. Capital expense refers to the cash outflow for capital investment per year.
3. The increase in inventories will be recognized when the closing balance is higher than the opening

balance. When a decrease in inventories incurred, it shall be recorded as zero.

4. Cash dividends include cash dividends for ordinary shares and preference shares.
5. Gross value for PP&E refers to the total amount of property, plant and equipment before deducting
accumulated depreciation.

Note 6: Issuers shall divide operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variables based on their
nature; shall there be estimation or subjectivity involved, issuers shall be aware of the rationality and
consistency.
Note 7: Where the Company share is with nil nominal value or where the nominal value of each share is not

NT$10, the above calculation regarding percentage to paid-up capital shall be substituted by the

percentage of equity attributable to owners of parent Company in the balance sheet.

(IT) Financial analysis - Taiwan's GAAP

The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the

information disclosure is not applicable.
(IIT) Parent company only financial analysis - IFRS(s)

Year Financial information for the past 5 years (Note 1)
Analysis Ttem (Note 2) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Financial |Liabilities to assets ratio 26.41 34.92 36.16 32.92 25.77
Structure |Proportion of long-term capital in
%) PP&E 2,840.41 3,302.62 3976.40 | 8,628.55 [12,967.09
Current ratio 217.15 143.94 191.37 123.83 210.56
Solvency % [Quick ratio 180.04 106.35 130.60 107.18 194.02
Interest coverage ratio (150.66) 21.73 90.53 76.97 36.36
Apcounts receivable turnover rate 6.77 465 6.55 293 248
(times)
Average collection days 54 78 56 125 147
Inventory turnover rate (times) - - - - -
Operating A.ccounts payable turnover rate 1.83 2.09 0.74 154 0.62
performance |(times)
Average days for sale - - - - -
Property, plant, and equipment
. 19.96 19.67 35.36 30.59 47.99
turnover rate (times)
Fixed asset turnover ratio (times) 0.57 0.49 0.72 0.38 0.36
Return on Assets (ROA) (%) (20.55) 2.69 11.72 33.58 4.97
Equity return ratio (%) (27.68) 3.62 17.96 50.50 6.78
Profitability ia;?af?;g"?ﬁi:‘;gore tax to paid-in (25.62) 6.89 25.91 64.92 14.92
Net Profit Margin (%) (36.31) 5.16 16.05 86.41 13.28
Earnings Per Share (NT$) (2.90) 0.38 1.84 6.77 0.91
Cash flow ratio (%) 23.08 46.91 18.27 (3.91) 39.96
Cash flow |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 18.36 31.08 35.07 55.85 4791
Cash flow reinvestment ratio (%) 10.89 28.64 10.68 (1.54) 10.22
Leverage |Operating leverage ratio 5.83 3.48 2.35 Note 2 2.47
ratio Financial leverage ratio 1.02 1.02 1.01 Note 2 1.02

20%):

2. Solvency

1. Financial structure:

(1) Liability-asset ratio: Due to a decrease of contract liabilities, accounts payable and other payables.

(2) Ratio of long-term funds in property, plant and equipment: common stock increases this year due to increase of]
capital from 2019 surplus and capital reserve approved by 2020 shareholders' meeting and the ratio increases.

(1) Current ratio: Due to transfer of contract liabilities into income and decrease of payables.
(2) Quick ratio: Due to transfer of contract liabilities into income and decrease of payables.

Reason for changes in financial ratios for the past two years (analysis is not required when the changes are less than
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(3) Interest coverage ratio: Whereas the net profit of 2020 was lower than that in 2019, but its decrease rate is lower
than the interest expense ratio, resulting in the decreasing financial ratio.

3. Operation performance:
(1) Payables turnover rate: Payables turnover rate decreased due to sharp decrease in operating costs for 2020 with
a decrease rate higher than that of accounts payable.
(2) Turnover rate of property, plant and equipment: Due to high gross profit, the turnover rate of property, plant and
equipment increased this year.

4. Profitability:
Net profit for 2020 was lower than that of 2019; therefore, financial ratios were worse than the previous year.
5. Cash flow:
(1) Cash flow ratios and cash reinvestment ratios: Net cash inflows from operating activities for 2020 were higher
than those for 2019.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio: Due to the decrease in capital expense in the last five years.
Note 1: The above financial information for the past five years have been audited and certified by CPA.
Note 2: Operating profit for 2019 was negative; therefore, it was excluded from the calculation.
Note 3: At the end of the statement of the annual report shall set out the calculation formula as follow:
1. Financial structure

(1) Debt-asset Ratio = Total Liabilities/Total Assets.

(2) Ratio of Long-term Capital to Property, Plant and Equipment = (Total Equity + Non-current
Liabilities)/Net Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventories - prepaid expenses)/current liabilities.

(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before tax and interest/interest expenses.

3. Operating performance

(1) Receivables turnover rate (including bills receivable resulting from accounts receivable and
business operations) = Net sales/Average accounts receivable in various periods (including bills
receivable resulting from accounts receivable and business operations).

(2) Average collection days = 365/receivables turnover rate.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of sales/average inventory.

(4) Account payables (including accounts payable and notes payable for operation) turnover rate = cost
of goods sold/average accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable for
operation) balance.

(5) Average days for sale = 365/inventory turnover rate.

(6) PP&E turnover rate = net sales/average net property, plant, and equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover rate = sales/average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1) Return on assets = [profit or loss after tax + interest expenses x (1 - tax rate)] / average total assets.

(2) Return on Equity = net profit or loss after tax/average total equity

(3) Net margin = net profit or loss after tax/net sales.

(4) Earnings Per Share = (net profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company — dividends
on preferred shares)/weighted average number of issued shares. (Note 4)

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow for operating activities/current liabilities.

(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow for operating activities for the past five years/(capital
expenses + increase in inventories + cash dividends) for the past five years.

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow for operating activities — cash dividends)/(gross value for
PP&E + long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital). (Note 5)Plant and
Equipment + Long-term Investments + Other Non-current Assets + Working Capital). (Note 5)

6. Leverage ratio

(1) Operating leverage ratio= (net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses)/operating
income.

(2) Degree of financial leverage (DFL) = operating income/(operating income - interest expenses).

Note 4: Regarding the above calculation formula for earnings per share, please be aware of the following
matters when measuring:

1. Based on the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares, instead of the number of issued
shares by the end of the year.

2.For cash capital increase or treasure shares transactions, consider the circulation period to calculate the
weighted average number of shares.
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3.Regarding retained earnings transferred to capital increase or capital reserve transferred to capital,
when calculating earnings per share for the past year or interim, it shall make retrospective adjustments
according to the capital increase ratio, without taking into account the issuance period of capital
increase.

4.1f the preference shares are non-convertible cumulative preference shares, its dividend of the year
(whether it is being distributed or not) shall add or subtract the net loss from the net income. If the
preference shares are not non-convertible, where there is net profit after tax, the dividends of the
preference shares shall be deducted from the net profit after tax; however, such adjustments are not
applicable in case of losses.

Note 5: Special attention should be paid to the following matters when measuring cash flow analysis:

1.Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the
statement of cash flows.

2.Capital expense refers to the cash outflow for capital investment per year.

3.The increase in inventories will be recognized when the closing balance is higher than the opening
balance. When a decrease in inventories incurred, it shall be recorded as zero.

4.Cash dividends include cash dividends for ordinary shares and preference shares.

5.Gross value for PP&E refers to the total amount of property, plant and equipment before deducting
accumulated depreciation.

Note 6: Issuers shall divide operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variables based on their
nature; shall there be estimation or subjectivity involved, issuers shall be aware of the rationality and
consistency.

Note 7: Where the Company share is with nil nominal value or where the nominal value of each share is not
NT$10, the above calculation regarding percentage to paid-up capital shall be substituted by the
percentage of equity attributable to owners of parent Company in the balance sheet.
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(IV) Parent company only financial analysis - Taiwan's GAAP
The Company has been adopting IFRS for the past five years (2016-2020); therefore, the
information disclosure is not applicable.

III. Audit Committee’s Report in the Most Recent Year

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

Audit Committee's Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company's 2020 Business Report, Financial
Statements (including consolidated financial statements) and Proposal for Earnings
Appropriation, among which the Financial Statements (including consolidated
financial statements) have been audited by Ernst & Young, by whom an audit report
has been issued accordingly. The Business Report, Financial Statements
(consolidated financial statements included), and earnings allocation proposal have
been reviewed and determined to be accurate by the Audit Committee members.
According to relevant requirements of Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange

Act and Article 219 of the Company Law, we hereby submit this report.

Sincerely

2021 Shareholders' Meeting

Convener of the Audit Committee: Hung, Pi-Lien

R. O. C, April 14, 2021
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IV. Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, and Independent Auditors’ Report

REPRESENTATION LETTER

The entities included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2020 and for the
year then ended prepared under the International Financial Reporting Standards, No.10 are the same
as the entities to be included in the combined financial statements of the Company, if any to be
prepared, pursuant to the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated
Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises (referred to as
“Combined Financial Statements”). Also, the footnotes disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statements have fully covered the required information in such Combined Financial Statements.
Accordingly, the Company did not prepare any other set of combined financial statements than the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Very truly yours,

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

Chairman: Tu, Chun-Kuang

March 12, 2021
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English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese

Auditor Report of Independent Auditors
To SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT
INC. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the
summary of significant accounting policies (together “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as
endorsed and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Norm of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of 2020 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Revenue Recognition —Royalties

The Company and its subsidiaries’ royalties are revenue from licensing its solely developed
intellectual property (IP) to others that grant use in game development, game operations and film
content. As the circumstances and developed products of each license agreement vary, it is necessary
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to identify performance obligations and determine whether the licensing nature provides a customer
with a right to access the Company and its subsidiaries’ IP over time or with a right to use the
Company and its subsidiaries’ IP at a point in time. Also, it is important to consider the expected
development period of the games, game operation cycles, industry practices and historical
experiences to estimate the duration of revenue allocation and variable consideration estimation, and
to regularly review the reasonableness of estimation assumptions. As the Company and its
subsidiaries’ recognition of royalties as revenue is significant and requires management judgement,
we therefore consider this as a key audit matter.

In response to the risk of material misstatement regarding recognition of royalties, our audit
procedures included, but were not limited to:

1. Understanding the approach in which royalty revenue is recognized, evaluating and testing the
internal controls regarding the recognition of royalties;

2. Obtaining the license agreements, identifying performance obligations, defining the transaction
prices, and determining whether revenues are recognized over time or at a point in time;

3. Obtaining the details of recognition of royalties revenue and confirming whether the performance
obligations of the license agreement have been fulfilled; obtaining the details of royalty revenue
allocation of games development and confirming the correctness of the development period and
royalty revenue allocation stated in the license agreements;

4. Review the reasonableness of the estimated allocation periods and the correctness of the
calculation of royalty revenues allocation provided by the Company and its subsidiaries.

We also considered the appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements disclosure
regarding royalty revenue and contract liabilities in Note 5 and 6.

Revenue Recognition —Virtual ltems

The Company and its subsidiaries have revenue received from online gamers who purchase game
points to recharge game credits and subsequently use the credits to buy virtual items. The purchase
of game points and recharge of game credits are recorded in a computer server platform. The proceeds
received by the Company and its subsidiaries from the sales of game points are initially deferred and
revenue is recognized in accordance with the estimated lifetimes of the virtual items after players
recharge their game credits and subsequently use the credits to by virtual items. Management states
that the expected lifetimes of the virtual items are the life cycles of the gamers and estimates and
calculates the amount of advance proceeds that should be deferred accordingly. Management
periodically reviews the reasonableness of the estimate. As the revenue from virtual items of the
Company and its subsidiaries is significant and the life cycles of the gamers requires management
judgement, it is necessary to judge and determine the performance obligations and the estimation of
the timing of satisfaction. Therefore, we consider this as a key audit matter.

In response to the risk of material misstatement regarding virtual items revenue recognition, our audit
procedures included, but were not limited to:

1. Understanding the process of allocation and recognition of revenue regarding recharging game
credits, and using credits to purchase virtual items;

2. Obtaining the game credit consumption data and revenue calculation sheets for each game,
testing samples by confirming the correctness of the calculations, obtaining the recharge records,
the game credit consumption records, and the downloaded revenue reports for each platform, and
vouching to the calculation sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries’ accounts.
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3. Obtaining the estimation tables for the life cycle of the gamers to confirm the rationality of the
allocation and recognition of revenue of virtual items.

We also considered the appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements disclosure regarding
virtual items revenue and contract liabilities in Note 5 and 6.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability
to continue as a going concern of the Company and its subsidiaries, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee or supervisors, are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the
Company and its subsidiaries. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going
concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the accompanying notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company and its subsidiaries to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of 2020 consolidated financial statements and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

The Company has prepared its standalone financial statement for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019 with an unqualified opinion and an unqualified opinion with emphasis of matter from us.

Yu, Chien-Ju
Yang, Chih-Huei

Ernst & Young, Taiwan
March 12, 2021

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated
financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practice to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

As of As of
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Assets Notes 2020 2019 Liabilities and Equity Notes 2020 2019
Current assets Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 4 and 6 $238,201 $171,579 Contract liabilities, current 4 and 6 $27,010 $47,690
Contract assets, current 4 and 6 53,217 72,418 Accounts payable 74,145 91,389
Notes receivable, net 4 957 1,783 Accounts payable-related parties 7 - 36,437
Other notes receivable-related parties, net 4and 7 - 3,123 Other payables 6 45,529 71,248
Accounts receivable, net 4 and 6 150,476 109,224 Other payables-related parties 7 - 67
Accounts receivable-related parties, net 4,6and7 - 11 Current income tax liabilities 4and 6 14,779 17,549
Other receivables 4 189 24 Lease liabilities, current 4,6and 7 11,080 25,430
Other receivables-related parties 4and7 5 1,341 Current portion of long-term borrowings 4,6and 8 65,919 50,350
Current income tax assets 4 556 4,149 Other current liabilities 1,133 1,314
Inventories, net 4and 6 645 1,685 Total current liabilities 239,595 341,474
Prepayment 7 30,237 51,869
Other financial assets, current 8 14,033 1,493 Non-current liabilities
Total current assets 488,516 418,699
Long-term borrowings 4,6and 8 65,399 57,392
Non-current assets Deferred tax liabilities 4 and 6 40 1,377
Financial assets at fair value through other Lease liabilities, non-current 4 and 6 17,965 12,459
comprehensive in((:jome, non-cErrent 4and 6 63,315 55,992 Other non-current liabilities 313 313
Investments accounted for using the equit - o
method SReeY ande 542,008 3,999 Net defined benefit liabilities 4and 6 20,897 20,986
Contract assets, non-current 4 and 6 25,842 12,070 Total non-current liabilities 104,614 92,527
Property, plant and equipment, net 4and 6 8,147 37,891
Right-of-use assets 4 and 6 29,147 8,412 Total liabilities 344,209 434,001
Intangible assets 4 and 6 5,229 33,969
Deferred tax assets 4and 6 18,046 7,999 Equity attributable to the parent company 4 and 6
Refundable deposits 8,551 1,296 Common stock 630,643 492,945
Prepayment for investments 1,296 30,000 Additional paid-in capital 112,360 162,992
Other financial assets, non-current 27,000 820,242 Retained earnings
Total non-current assets 8 728,581 3,999 Legal reserve 47,123 14,582
Special reserve 281,771 129,557
Unappropriated earnings 98,402 325,404
Other components of equity (297,625) (320,583)
Total equity attributable to the parent
company 872,674 804,897
Non-controlling interests 214 43
Total equity 872,888 804,940
Total assets $1,217,097 $1,238,941  Total liabilities and equity $1,217,097 $1,238,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings per Share)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Item Notes 2020 2019
Net sales 4,5 6and7 $545,369 $565,818
Cost of goods sold (89,939) (91,002)
Gross profit 455,430 474,816
Operating expenses 6and7
Sales and marketing expenses (120,585) (166,881)
General and administrative expenses (72,394) (139,568)
Research and development expenses (166,552) (324,943)
Expected credit losses 42,205 (61,004)
Subtotal (317,326) (692,396)
Operating income 138,104 (217,580)
Non-operating income and expenses
Other income 6 31,720 7,872
Other gains and losses 6 (2,060) 618,197
Finance costs 6 (2,736) (5,649)
Share of profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using equity method (71,261) (66,973)
Subtotal (44,337) 553,447
Profit before income tax 93,767 335,867
Income tax expense 4and 6 (37,355) (12,050)
Net income 56,412 323,817
Other comprehensive income (loss) 4and 6
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 89 328
Unrealized gains or losses from financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive loss 7,311 (133,514)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from translating the financial

statements of foreign operations (16,625) 9,154
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax (9,225) (124,032)
Total comprehensive income $47,187 $199,785
Net income attributable to:
Stockholders of the parent $56,896 $326,039
Non-controlling interests (484) (2,222)
$56,412 $323,817
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Stockholders of the parent $47,671 $202,007
Non-controlling interests (484) (2,222)
$47,187 $199,785
Earnings per share (NTD) 4and 6
Earnings per share-basic $0.91 $5.26
Earnings per share-diluted $0.90 $5.19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Non-
Controlling
Retained Earnings Others Components of Equity Total Interests Total
Exchange Unrealized Gains
Differences or Losses from
Resulting from Financial Assets
Translating the at Fair Value
Financial Through Other ~ Unearned Stock-
Common Additional Paid- Legal Special Unappropriated Statements of Comprehensive Based Employee Treasury
Description Stock in Capital Reserve reserve Earnings Foreign Operations Loss Compensation Share
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $477,945 $179,197 $1,925 $15,648 $126,566 $(7,874) $(149,537) $(157,500) $- $486,370 $116 $486,486
Appropriation and distribution of 2017 retained
earnings
Legal reserve - - 12,657 - (12,657) - - - - - - -
Special reserve - - - 113,909 (113,909) - - - - - - -
Net profit (loss) in 2019 - - - - 326,039 - - - - 326,039 (2,222) 323,817
Other comprehensive income (loss) in 2019 - - - - 328 9,154 (133,514) - - (124,032) - (124,032)
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - 326,367 9,154 (133,514) - - 202,007 (2,222) 199,785
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - (29) (19)
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries - (1,205) - - (963) - - - - (2,168) 2,168 -
Share-based payment transactions 15,000 (15,000) - - - - - 118,688 - 118,688 - 118,688
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $492,945 $162,992 $14,582 $129,557 $325,404 $1,280 $(283,051) $(38,812) $- $804,897 $43 $804,940
Balance as of January 1, 2020 $492,945 $162,992 $14,582 $129,557 $325,404 $1,280 $(283,051) $(38,812) $- $804,897 $43 $804,940
Appropriation and distribution of 2019 retained
earnings
Legal reserve - - 32,541 - (32,541) - - - - - - -
Special reserve - - - 152,214 (152,214) - - - - - - -
Cash dividends - - - - (9,858) - - - - (9,858) - (9,858)
Stock dividends 88,719 - - - (88,719) - - - - - - -
Changes in other capital surplus
Stock dividends from additional paid-in capital 49,289 (49,289) - - - - - - - - - -
Net income (loss) in 2020 - - - - 56,896 - - - - 56,896 (484) 56,412
Other comprehensive income (loss) in 2020 - - - - 89 (16,625) 7,311 - - (9,225) - (9,225)
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - 56,985 (16,625) 7,311 - - 47,671 (484) 47,187
Repurchase of treasury share - - - - - - - - (1,023) (1,023) - (1,023)
Retirement of treasury share (250) (773) - - - - - - 1,023 - - -
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries - - - (655) - - - - (655) 655 -
Share-based payment transactions (60) (570) - - - - - 32,272 - 31,642 - 31,642
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $492,635 $161,649 $47,123 $281,771 $187,121 $(15,345) $(275,740) $(6,540) $1,023 $872,674 $214 $872,888
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Description 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax $93,767 $335,867
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 23,623 36,894
Amortization 15,575 9,076
Expected credit (gain) losses (42,205) 61,004
Interest expense 2,736 5,649
Interest income (189) (1,114)
Share-based payments expense 31,642 118,688
Share of net loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
equity method 71,261 66,973
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 128 18
Gain on disposal of intangible assets (576) -
Gain on disposal of investment - (641,077)
Loss on lease modification 25 -
Impairment loss from non-financial assets 957 9,426
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contract assets (2,642) 3,641
Notes receivable, net 826 (552)
Accounts receivable, net 953 (76,574)
Accounts receivable-related parties, net 11 5,150
Other receivables (165) 850
Other receivables-related parties 4,459 (9,908)
Inventories, net 83 132
Prepayment 21,632 53,178
Costs to fulfill a contract - (62,453)
Contract liabilities (20,868) 41,265
Accounts payable (17,244) 22,619
Accounts payable-related parties (36,437) 38,559
Other payables (25,258) 21,152
Other payables-related parties (67) 5,259
Other current liabilities 7 72
Net defined benefit liabilities - 86
Cash provided by operations 122,034 43,880
Interest received 189 1,114
Interest paid (2,748) (5,612)
Income tax paid (21,946) (23,563)
Net cash provided by operating activities 97,529 15,819
Cash flows from investing activities:
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 12) -
Increase in prepayment for investments - (1,296)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (1,280) (583,737)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,958) (2,889)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 328 91
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits (552) 1,882
Acquisition of intangible assets (12,448) (7,925)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 632 -
Other financial assets (9,540) 36,620
Net cash used in investing activities (24,830) (557,254)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 30,000 125,706
Decrease in short-term borrowings (30,000) (95,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 25,000 80,000
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,424) (56,860)
Increase in guarantee deposits received - 502,558
Cash dividends (9,858) -
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities (18,772) (29,359)
Treasury stock transactions (1,023) -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (6,077) 527,045
Net foreign exchange difference - 5,559
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 66,622 (8,831)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 171,579 180,410
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $238,201 $171,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

1. History and organization

Formerly known as Cyber Power Systems, Inc., SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. (“the
Company”) was incorporated in August 1998 in the Republic of China and changed its name to
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. the same year. The Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) main lines of business include online games, game software, instructional software, and
research, design and sales of computer peripherals. On August 8, 2001, the Company listed its
shares of stock on the Taipei Stock Exchange (TPEx). The Company’s registered office and the
main business location is at 6F, No. 85, Section 4, Ren’ai Road, Republic of China (R.O.C.).

2. Date and procedures of authorization of financial statements for issue

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 12, 2021.

3. Newly issued or revised standards and interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first time certain standards and
amendments

The Group applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are recognized
by Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) and become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The nature and impact of the new standard and
amendment had no material impact on the Group.

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”’) which are endorsed by FSC, but not yet adopted by the Group as
at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

Effective Date
issued by IASB
a |Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS | 1 January 2021
9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(@) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

The final phase amendments mainly relate to the effects of the interest rate benchmark
reform on the companies’ financial statements:

A. A company will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes to contractual cash flows as required by the reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the alternative

benchmark rate;

B. A company will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;

and

C. A company will be required to disclose information about new risks arising from the
reform and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The abovementioned amendments that are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 have no material impact on the Group.

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by
FSC, and not yet adopted by the Group as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date
issued by IASB
a [IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 |To be determined
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or by IASB
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Ventures
b |IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023
c |Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current —| 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1
d |Narrow-scope amendments of IFRS, including Amendments to| 1 January 2022
IFRS 3, Amendments to IAS 16, Amendments to I1AS 37 and the
Annual Improvements
e [Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS| 1 January 2023
1
f |Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to 1AS 8 1 January 2023
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

(@)

(b)

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

IFRS 10“Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28“Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an
associate or a joint venture. 1AS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions
of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest
attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires
full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended
so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is
recognized in full.

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution
of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor
and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant
accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this
model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a group of insurance contracts at the
total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The fulfilment cash
flows comprise of the following:

A. estimates of future cash flows;

B. Discount rate: an adjustment to reflect the time value of money and the financial risks
related to the future cash flows, to the extent that the financial risks are not included
in the estimates of the future cash flows; and

C. arisk adjustment for non-financial risk.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

(©)

(d)

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period
shall be the sum of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred
claims. Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation for
contracts with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a simplified
approach (Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and it was amended in June 2020. The amendments
include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years to annual
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 (from the original effective date of 1 January 2021);
provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the costs of
applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to explain.
IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard — IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — from annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to 1AS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current.

Narrow-scope amendments of IFRS, including Amendments to IFRS 3, Amendments to
IAS 16, Amendments to IAS 37 and the Annual Improvements

A. Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

The amendments updated IFRS 3 by replacing a reference to an old version of the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting with a reference to the latest version,
which was issued in March 2018. The amendments also added an exception to the
recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential “day 2” gains or losses
arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities. Besides, the amendments clarify
existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be affected by
replacing the reference to the Conceptual Framework.

B. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS
16)

The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant
and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

C. Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to 1AS 37)

The amendments clarify what costs a company should include as the cost of fulfilling

a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous.

D. Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

Amendment to IFRS 1

The amendment simplifies the application of IFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a
first-time adopter after its parent in relation to the measurement of cumulative

translation differences.

Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies the fees a company includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms

of the original financial liability.

Amendment to Illustrative Examples Accompanying IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 modifies the

treatment of lease incentives relating to lessee’s leasehold improvements.

Amendment to 1AS 41

The amendment removes a requirement to exclude cash flows from taxation when
measuring fair value thereby aligning the fair value measurement requirements in IAS

41 with those in other IFRS Standards.

(e) Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improve accounting policy disclosures that to provide more useful

information to investors and other primary users of the financial statements.

(f) Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8

The amendments introduce the definition of accounting estimates and included other
amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
to help companies distinguish changes in accounting estimates from changes in

accounting policies.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by
FSC at the date when the Group’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local
effective dates are to be determined by FSC. As the Group is still currently determining the
potential impact of the standards and interpretations listed under, it is not practicable to
estimate their impact on the Group at this point in time.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

(1)

)

3)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019 have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (“the Regulations”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations developed by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing
Interpretations Committee as endorsed by the FSC.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of consolidation

Preparation principle of consolidated financial statement

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

(A) power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

(B) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

(C) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(A) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
(B) rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(C) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether it controls an investee or not if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the acquisition date, being the date on which the
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the parent company, using uniform accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income
and expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the parent and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

If the Company loses control of a subsidiary, it:

(A) derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

(B) derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

(C) recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

(D) recognizes the fair value of any investment retained,;

(E) recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

(F) reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other

comprehensive income to profit or loss.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

The consolidated entities are listed as follows:

Percentage of ownership (%)

December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main businesses 2020 2019 Note
The Company SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. Investment holdings 100 100
(St
The Company LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE Software wholesale and 100 100
ENTERTAINMENT INC. software services
The Company SOFTSTAR AGENCY CO., LTD. Online video and show 100 100
production
The Company MARSWARE Network software development - 100 Note 1
ENTERTAINMENT INC. and technical services, etc.
The Company SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. Software wholesale and 100 100 Note 2

software services

The Company KOBE CO., LTD. Investment holdings 100 100
The Company GAMEBASE DIGITAL MEDIA  Software services and 93.85 92.73  Note 3
CORPORATION information processing

services, etc.

LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE PERFECTEN CORPORATION Network software development - 100 Note 4
ENTERTAINMENT INC. and technical services, etc.

SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. Investment holdings - 100 Note 5
INC. (SII) (MWI)

SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL SOFTSTAR GLOBAL INC. (SGI) Investment holdings 100 100
INC. (Sl)

SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL SOFTSTAR ANIMATION Investment holdings 100 100
INC. (SII) LIMITED (SAL)

SOFTSTAR GLOBAL INC. SOFTSTAR MOBILE Computer hardware and - 100 Note 6

(SGI)) INFORMATION network technology research

TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) and development

CO.,LTD.

Note 1. MARSWARE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was dissolved in November 2018 and
returned the share capital on March 30, 2020.

Note 2: SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. was dissolved in December 2020, and is still in the
liquidation process.

129



(4)

English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Note 3: On December 14, 2017, the Company purchased 80% of Gamebase Digital Media
Corporation’s shares from CITE PUBLISHING LTD. for operational strategy
purposes. In addition, in August 2018, Gamebase Digital Media Corporation
increased its capital by NT$10,000 thousand in cash. The capital increase represents
1,000 thousand shares, all of which were subscribed by the Company. After the
capital increase, the Company owns 86.67% of Gamebase Digital Media
Corporation’s shares. Gamebase Digital Media Corporation increased its capital by
NT$5,000 thousand, NT$5,000 thousand, NT$10,000 thousand and NT$5,000
thousand in January, March, May and October 2019, respectively, totaling
NT$25,000 thousand and 2,500 thousand shares. The new shares were subscribed by
the Company and the registration process is completed. After the capital increase, the
Company owns 92.73% of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation’s shares. Gamebase
Digital Media Corporation increased its capital by NT$5,000 thousand and NT$5,000
thousand in March and December 2020, respectively, totaling NT$10,000 thousand
and 1,000 thousand shares. The new shares were subscribed by the Company and the
registration process is completed. After the capital increase, the Company owns
93.85% of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation’s shares.

Note 4: PERFECTEN CORPORATION was dissolved in November 2018 and returned the
share capital on June 8, 2020.

Note 5: In order to integrate the Group's resources, MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. (MWI1)
completed the liquidation procedure on May 22, 2020.

Note 6: In order to integrate the Group's resources, SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. completed the liquidation procedure on
January 15, 2020.

Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in NT$, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
closing rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
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All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the
following:

(A) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a
qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are
included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.

(B) Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted
for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.

(C) Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s
net investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into NTD at the closing rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses are translated at an
average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized
in other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in
a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an associate or jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint
control, only the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and expressed in its functional currency.
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(6) Current and non-current distinction

(7)

(8)

An asset is classified as current when:

(A) The Group expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal
operating cycle.

(B) The Group holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading.

(C) The Group expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period.

(D) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

(A) The Group expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle.

(B) The Group holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading.

(C) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

(D) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid time deposits (including ones that have maturity within one month) or investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 9 Financial Instruments:

Financial Instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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(A) Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
The Group accounts for regular way purchase or sales of financial assets on the trade date.

The Group classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss considering
both factors below:

(@) the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met
and presented as note receivables, trade receivables, other financial assets, current,
refundable deposits and other financial assets, non-current etc., on balance sheet as at the
reporting date:

(@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance)
and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
when the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to
recognise the impairment gains or losses.

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for:

(@) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets,
the Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of
the financial asset from initial recognition.

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial
assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
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Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of
the following conditions are met:

(@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are described as below:

(@ A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial
asset is derecognized or reclassified.

(b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

(c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for:

a. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial
assets, the Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

b. Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those
financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Besides, for certain equity investments within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 applies, the Group made an irrevocable election to present the changes
of the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts presented
in other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss
(when disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other
components of equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these
investments should be presented as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income on the balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are
recognized in profit or loss unless the dividends clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of investment.
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Financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets were classified as measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income based on aforementioned criteria. All other
financial assets were measured at fair value through profit or loss and presented on the
balance sheet as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Such financial assets are measured at fair value, the gains or losses resulting from
remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss which includes any dividend or interest
received on such financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
asset measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance on debt instrument investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized in other
comprehensive income and not reduce the carrying amount in the statement of financial
position.

The Group measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

(@) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

(b) the time value of money; and

(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The loss allowance is measures as follow:

(@) Atanamount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition is
no longer met.
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(b) Atanamount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

(c) For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of
IFRS 15, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

(d) For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16 (before
1 January 2019: 1AS 17), the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses.

At each reporting date, the Group needs to assess whether the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a
default occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial
recognition. Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized when:

(@) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

(b) The Group has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset have been transferred

(c) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification between liabilities or equity

The Group classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a
financial liability, and an equity instrument.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction
are accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Compound instruments

The Group evaluates the terms of the convertible bonds issued to determine whether it
contains both a liability and an equity component. Furthermore, the Group assesses if the
economic characteristics and risks of the put and call options contained in the convertible
bonds are closely related to the economic characteristics and risk of the host contract
before separating the equity element.

For the liability component excluding the derivatives, its fair value is determined based
on the rate of interest applied at that time by the market to instruments of comparable
credit status. The liability component is classified as a financial liability measured at
amortized cost before the instrument is converted or settled.

For the embedded derivative that is not closely related to the host contract (for example,
if the exercise price of the embedded call or put option is not approximately equal on each
exercise date to the amortized cost of the host debt instrument), it is classified as a liability
component and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it
qualifies for an equity component. The equity component is assigned the residual amount
after deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately
determined for the liability component. Its carrying amount is not remeasured in the
subsequent accounting periods. If the convertible bond issued does not have an equity
component, it is accounted for as a hybrid instrument in accordance with the requirements
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bond based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity

components when the instruments are initially recognized.

On conversion of a convertible bond before maturity, the carrying amount of the liability
component being the amortized cost at the date of conversion is transferred to equity.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost upon initial recognition.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss. A
financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

(@) itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the near term;

(b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

(c) it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).

If a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid (combined)
contract may be designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss; or a
financial liability may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss when doing so
results in more relevant information, because either:

(@) iteliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or

(b) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
group is provided internally on that basis to the key management personnel.

Gains or losses on the subsequent measurement of liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss including interest paid are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and
borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after
initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or transaction costs.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
profit or loss.

(E) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

(A) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(B) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

139



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

(10) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is calculated by the
weighted average method. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include direct
materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs. When comparing cost and the net realizable value
item by item, the net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Rendering of services is accounted in accordance with IFRS 15 and not within the scope of
inventories.

(11) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method other than
those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale. An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence. A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate or joint venture is carried in the
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of net assets of the associate or joint venture. After the interest in the associate or joint
venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized,
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s related interest
in the associate or joint venture.

When changes in the net assets of an associate occur and not those that are recognized in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income and do not affects the Group’s percentage of ownership
interests in the associate, the Group recognizes such changes in equity based on its percentage
of ownership interests. The resulting capital surplus recognized will be reclassified to profit
or loss at the time of disposing the associate or joint venture on a prorata basis.
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When the associate or joint venture issues new stock, and the Group’s interest in an associate
is reduced or increased as the Group fails to acquire shares newly issued in the associate
proportionately to its original ownership interest, the increase or decrease in the interest in the
associate is recognized in Additional Paid in Capital and Investment in associate. When the
interest in the associate or joint venture is reduced, the cumulative amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or other
appropriate items. The aforementioned capital surplus recognized is reclassified to profit or
loss on a prorata basis when the Group disposes the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies
in line with those of the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture is impaired in accordance with
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. If this is the case the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
or joint venture and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of profit or loss
of an associate’ in the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets. In determining the value in use of the investment, the Group estimates:

(A) Its share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate or joint venture, including the cash flows from the operations of the
associate and the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment; or

(B) The present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to
be received from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

Because goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate is
not separately recognized, it is not tested for impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing goodwill in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Group measures and
recognizes any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
Furthermore, if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the entity continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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(12) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for
construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognized such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that are
replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 Property,
plant and equipment. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the
following assets:

Machinery and equipment 3~5 years
Office equipment 1~5 years
Right-of-use assets 1~5 years
Leasehold improvements 2~6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(13) Leases

The Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, has both of the following:

(A) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified

asset; and
(B) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.
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For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts for each lease component within
the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a contract
that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease components
shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier, would charge the
Group for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an observable stand-alone
price is not readily available, the Group estimates the stand-alone price, maximising the use
of observable information.

Group as a lessee

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the
Group recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Group is the
lessee of those lease contracts.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement
date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability on an amortised cost
basis, which increases the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using an
effective interest method; and reduces the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of
the right-of-use asset comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
That is, the Group measures the right-of-use applying a cost model.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease
term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end
of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use
asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term.

The Group applies IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the right-of-use
asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Except for those leases that the Group accounted for as short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, the Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet
and separately presents lease-related interest expense and depreciation charge in the
statements comprehensive income.

For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group elects to recognize the lease

payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis.
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Group as a lessor

At inception of a contract, the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. At the commencement date, the Group recognizes assets
held under a finance lease in its balance sheet and present them as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease.

For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15.

The Group recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred.

(14) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Trademark

Trademark acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Trademark is
intangible assets with finite useful lives and is amortized over three to twenty years.

Game royalty
Game royalty acquired separately is measured on initial recognition at cost. Game royalty is

intangible assets with finite useful lives and is amortized within six months from the date of
commercial operation of the game.

Computer software

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life (3 to 5 years).

Goodwill
Goodwill is acquired through business combinations. They are intangible assets considered to
have indefinite useful lives, and therefore are not amortized, and are regularly tested for

impairment.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

Computer
Trademark Game royalty software Goodwill
Useful lives Finite Finite Finite Indefinite

Amortization method Amortizedona  Amortizedona  Amortizedona  No amortization

used straight-line straight- line straight- line
basis over the basis over the basis over the
period of the estimated estimated
trademark useful life useful life
Internally generated or ~ Acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired
acquired
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(15) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset in the scope of 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn
increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

A cash generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually at the same time, irrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment. If an impairment loss is to be recognized, it is first allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (group of
units), then to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (group of units). Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot

be reversed in future periods for any reason.

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is

recognized in profit or loss.
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(16) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probably that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
IS recognized as a finance cost.

Sales returns and allowances

A provision has been recognized for sales returns and allowances in accordance with IFRS
15.

(17) Treasury stocks

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and
deducted from equity. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognized in equity.

(18) Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue arising from contracts are primarily related to royalties. Licensing
content includes licensing its solely developed intellectual property (IP) to others that grant
use in game development, game operations and film content and online game operation
services. The accounting policies are explained as follow:

Sale of goods

The group manufactures and sells products. Sales are recognized when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer and the goods are delivered to the customers. The main products
of the Group are game software and related peripherals and revenue is recognized based on
the consideration stated in the contract.
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The credit period of the Group’s sale of goods is from 30 to 90 days. For most of the contracts,
when the Group transfers the goods to customers and has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, these contracts are recognized as accounts receivables. The Group
usually collects the payments shortly after transfer of goods to customers; therefore, there is
no significant financing component to the contract.

Rendering of services

(A) The Group provides services related to game licensing. The Group identifies performance

(B)

(©)

obligations and determines whether the licensing provides a customer with a right to
access the Group’s IP over time or with a right to use the Group’s IP at a point in time.
Based on experience, the Group uses the expected value method to estimate variable
consideration. The scope is limited to the accumulated amount of the revenue recognized
which is likely to not be significantly reversed in the subsequent period, when the
uncertainty associated with the contracts are eliminated. For some contracts, if the Group
has fulfilled the performance obligation but does not have a right to an unconditional
consideration, these contacts should be presented as contract assets. Besides, loss
allowance for contract assets was assessed in accordance with IFRS 9. For some rendering
of services contracts, when part of the consideration was received from customers upon
signing the contract and the Group owns the obligation to provide the services
subsequently, these contracts should be recognized as contract liabilities.

The Group provides services related to online games. The Group sells online game time
points to subsequently provide services, therefore sales amount from online game time
points is recognized as a contract liabilities and revenue is subsequently recognized based
on actual usage.

The Group usually fulfills its obligation and reclasses the contract liabilities to revenue
within an year, thus, no significant financing component arose.

The Group provides services related to the operation of online games. When the players
recharge their game credits, they can subsequently use the credits to buy virtual items in
the game. The Group recognizes the proceeds received from the sales of game points as
contract liabilities. Revenue is recognized in accordance with the estimated lifetime of
the virtual items after players recharge their game credits and subsequently use the credits
to by virtual items.

The Group usually fulfills its obligation and reclasses the contract liabilities to revenue
within a year, thus, no significant financing component arose.
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Costs to fulfill a contract

The Group determines fulfillment costs should be capitalized if all the following criteria are
met:

(A) costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract the entity can specifically
identify (e.g., costs relating to services to be provided under renewal of an existing
contract or costs of designing an asset to be transferred under a specific contract not yet
approved);

(B) costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future;

(C) costs are expected to be recovered.

(19) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in line with the requirements which are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets may be capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses incurred during the period. The borrowing
costs include interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(20) Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset,
it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it
is intended to compensate.

(21) Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to a pension
plan that is managed by an independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets
are deposited under the committee’s name in the specific bank account and hence, not
associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Therefore fund assets are not
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Pension benefits for employees of
the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are provided in accordance with the respective local
regulations.
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For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a
monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the
plan. The Company recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in
which the contribution becomes due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make contribution
to the plan based on the requirements of local regulations.

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected
Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Re-
measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are
recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss
on the earlier of:

(A) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(B) the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payment.

(22) Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries is recognized
based on the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the equity
instruments is determined by using an appropriate pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase
in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense
recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

The cost of restricted stocks issued is recognized as salary expense based on the fair value of
the equity instruments on the grant date, together with a corresponding increase in other capital
reserves in equity, over the vesting period. The Group recognized unearned employee salary
which is a transitional contra equity account; the balance in the account will be recognized as
salary expense over the passage of vesting period.

(23) Income taxes

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the
subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’ meeting.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(A) Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(B) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

(A) Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

(B) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized accordingly.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(24) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at acquisition
date fair value. For each business combination, the acquirer measures any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are accounted for as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and are classified under administrative
expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at the
acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized in accordance
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. However, if the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it
should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the amount of the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the non-controlling interest over the net fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If this aggregate is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and is
not larger than an operating segment before aggregation.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative recoverable amounts of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty arising from these assumptions and estimates could result in material
adjustments to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(1) Judgement
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements:
A. Revenue recognition — royalties
In accordance with IRFS 15, the Group identifies performance obligations and determine
whether the licensing provides a customer with a right to access the Group’s IP over time

or with a right to use the Group’s IP at a point in time and recognizes royalty revenue when
performance obligations have been satisfied.
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(2) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date bear a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. These estimates and
assumptions are discussed below.

A. Estimate of variable consideration

With the Group’s business practices, the Group expects to provide a price concession. This
price concession will depend on the situation of the industry at the time and the customer.
The expected value method is used to estimate variable consideration to predict the amount
of the consideration that the Group will be entitled to. When the aforementioned method
for estimating variable consideration is included in the transaction price, the scope is
limited to the accumulated amount of the revenue recognized, which is likely to not be
significantly reversed in the subsequent period when the uncertainty associated with the
contracts are eliminated.

B. Accounts receivables—estimate of impairment loss

The Group estimates the impairment loss of accounts receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash
flows that expects to receive (forward-looking information). However, as the impact from
the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the
undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details.

C. Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the balance
sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the income approach (i.e. the discounted cash flows model) or market
approach. Changes in assumptions used in the valuation model could affect the reported
fair value of the financial instruments. Please refer to Note 12 for more details.
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D. Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date less incremental costs that would be directly
attributable to the disposal of the asset or cash generating unit. The value in use calculation
is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows projections are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is
not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

E. Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense
already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for
possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which
it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience
of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide
variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company's
domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which
the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences
together with future tax planning strategies.
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6. Contents of significant accounts

1)

()

3)

Cash and cash equivalents
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Cash on hand & petty cash $294 $291
Checking and saving accounts 237,907 171,288
Total $238,201 $171,579
Accounts receivable and Accounts receivable-related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Accounts receivable $152,928 $155,920
Less: allowance for sales returns and discounts (572) (2,856)
Loss allowance (1,880) (44,110)
Subtotal 150,476 109,224
Accounts receivable from related parties - 11
Total $150,476 $109,235

Accounts receivable were not pledged.

Accounts receivable are generally on 30-90 day terms. The total carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are NT$152,928 thousand and NT$155,931 thousand,
respectively. Please refer to Note 6 (14) for more details on loss allowance of accounts
receivable for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Please refer to Note 12 for more
details on credit risk management.

Inventories, net
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Work in progress $12 $15
Finished goods 633 1,670
Total $645 $1,685

The cost of inventories recognized in expenses amounted to NT$2,690 thousand and
NT$3,930 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, including
the write-down of inventories of NT$957 thousand and NT$394 thousand, respectively.

No inventories were pledged.
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(4) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, noncurrent

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Equity instrument investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, noncurrent:
Listed company stocks
NEWRETAIL CO., LTD. $13,132 $14,718
Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD.(NOTE) 12 -
Emerging market stocks
SNSPLUS, INC. 3,802 5,351
Private company stocks
AUER MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT CORP. 40,600 27,822
TAIWAN SMART CARD CO. 3,598 3,848
DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTAINMENT CORP. 2,171 4,253
FUNFIA INC. - -
Total $63,315 $55,992

Note: The Group acquired 2 thousand shares of Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. amounted to
NT$12 thousand in December 2020.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged.
(5) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The following table lists the investments accounted for using the equity method of the Group:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Percentage Percentage
Carrying of ownership  Carrying of ownership
Investees amount (%) amount (%)
Investments in associates:
Chia-e International Inc. $- 28.21% $- 28.21%
A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. 1,143 49% 2,906 49%
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY
(BENING) CO., LTD. 540,865 49% 625,708 49%
$542,008 $628,614

159



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Note: On April 25, 2018, the Company’s board of directors approved the capital injection plan

of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as
SOFTSTAR BENING) SOFTSTAR BEIJING, a subsidiary of the Group, was seeking
to increase its capital in order to introduce long-term partners. All of the shares were
subscribed by CMGE TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as
CMGE), an overseas affiliate of China Mobile Group. The total amount of capital
injection was RMB$213,000 thousand. After the capital injection, CMGE holds 51% of
total shares in SOFTSTAR BEIJING. The Company holds 49% of total shares in
SOFTSTAR BEWING through its subsidiary, SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC.
On June 3, 2019, the Company has lost control of SOFTSTAR BEIJING, derecognizing
SOFTSTAR BENING and its wholly owned subsidiary SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. in the consolidated report; instead, the investment is
measured at fair value and recognized under investment accounted for using the equity

method. Please refer to Note 6 (21) for the further explanation.

Information on the material associate of the Group:

Company name: SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD.

Nature of the relationship with the associate: SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEWJING) CO.,
LTD. is in the business of information processing services. The Group invested in
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEWING) CO., LTD. for the purpose of business needs.

Principal place of business (country of incorporation): Mainland China

Reconciliation of the associate’s summarized financial information presented to the carrying

amount of the Group’s interest in the associate:

The summarized financial information of the associate is as follows:

As of December 31
2020 2019
Current assets $851,552 $1,018,977
Non-current assets 225,425 354,615
Current liabilities (306,227) (465,919)
Non-current liabilities - -
Equity 770,750 907,673
Property of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Subtotal 377,667 444,760
Intangible assets 142,936 159,918
Goodwill 20,262 21,030
Carrying amount of the investment $540,865 $625,708
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For the year ended
December 31, 2020

Operating revenue $25,741
Profit or loss from continuing operations (107,174)
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income $107,174

The Group assesses the recoverable amounts of its investment in Chia-e International Inc.,
and recognized an impairment loss of NT$9,426 thousand in 2019.

The Group’s investments in Chia-e International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are not
individually material. The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in Chia-e
International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are NT$1,143 thousand and NT$2,906 thousand,
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The aggregate financial information of the
Group’s investments in Chia-e International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31

2020 2019
Profit or loss from continuing operations $(8,195) $(10,912)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive loss $(8,195) $(10,912)

The Group recognized the investment income(loss) based on the financial information of the
investees recognized in investments accounted for under the equity method. Such financial
information are as follow:

Investment gain/(loss)
For the years ended
December 31

2020 2019
Chia-e International Inc. $- $(1,303)
A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. (1,763) (2,937)
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEIJING) CO., LTD. (Note) (69,498) (62,733)
Total $(71,261) _ $(66,973)

Note: Investment loss included a NT$16,982 thousand amortization between the book value
and fair value of its intangible assets.

The aforementioned associates had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at

December 31, 2020 and 2019. No investments accounted for using the equity method were
pledged.
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(6) Property, plant and equipment

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Owner occupied property, plant and equipment $8,147 $12,070

Machinery Office Leasehold
and equipment equipment improvements Total

Cost:
As of January 1, 2020 $9,936 $15,881 $17,782 $43,599
Additions 438 1,520 - 1,958
Disposals - (924) (4,085) (5,009)
Transfers (404) (447) 232 (619)
As of December 31, 2020 $9,970 $16,030 $13,929 $39,929
As of January 1, 2019 $18,237 $17,234 $21,428 $56,899
Additions 1,660 821 408 2,889
Disposals (882) (1,132) - (2,014)
Transfers (206) 206 - -
Exchange differences 161 24 81 266
Disposal of subsidiaries (9,034) (1,272) (4,135) (14,441)
As of December 31, 2019 $9,936 $15,881 $17,782 $43,599
Depreciation and impairment:
As of January 1, 2020 $6,443 $12,984 $12,102 $31,529
Depreciation 1,620 1,558 2,247 5,425
Disposals - (574) (3,979) (4,553)
Transfers (420) (431) 232 (619)
As of December 31, 2020 $7,643 $13,537 $10,602 $31,782
As of January 1, 2019 $9,639 $12,048 $11,789 $33,476
Depreciation 2,331 2,350 3,800 8,481
Disposals (809) (1,096) - (1,905)
Transfers (490) 490 - -
Exchange differences 71 14 70 155
Disposal of subsidiaries (4,299) (822) (3,557) (8,678)
As of December 31, 2019 $6,443 $12,984 $12,102 $31,529
Net carrying amounts as of:
December 31, 2020 $2,327 $2,493 $3,327 $8,147
December 31, 2019 $3,493 $2,897 $5,680 $12,070

Property, plant and equipment were not pledged.
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(7) Intangible assets

Computer

Trademarks software  Game Royalty ~ Goodwill Total
Cost:
As of January 1, 2020 $6,870 $31,946 $- $2,712 $41,528
Addition-acquired separately - 3,385 9,063 - 12,448
Deduction-sold - (4,448) - - (4,448)
Deduction-derecognized (6,870) - - - (6,870)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $30,883 $9,063 $2,712 $42,658
As of January 1, 2019 $6,870 $42,815 $18,473 $2,712 $70,870
Addition-acquired separately - 7,925 - - 7,925
Deduction-sold - (11,128) (4,243) - (15,371)
Exchange differences - 214 - - 214
Disposal of subsidiaries - (7,880) (14,230) - (22,110)
As of December 31, 2019 $6,870 $31,946 $- $2,712 $41,528
Amortization and impairment:
As of January 1, 2020 $6,870 $26,246 $- $- $33,116
Amortization - 6,512 9,063 - 15,575
Deduction-sold - (4,392) - - (4,392)
Deduction-derecognized (6,870) - - - (6,870)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $28,366 $9,063 $- $37,429
As of January 1, 2019 $6,870 $32,941 $18,473 $- $58,284
Amortization - 9,076 - - 9,076
Deduction-derecognized - (11,128) (4,243) - (15,371)
Exchange differences - 141 - - 141
Disposal of subsidiaries - (4,784) (14,230) - (19,014)
As of December 31, 2019 $6,870 $26,246 $- $- $33,116
Net carrying amount as of;:
December 31, 2020 $- $2,517 $- $2,712 $5,229
December 31, 2019 $- $5,700 $- $2,712 $8,412

Amortization expense of intangible assets under the statement of comprehensive income:

For the years ended
December 31

2020 2019
Operating costs $9,063 $-
Administrative expense $917 $1,597
Research and development expense $5,595 $7,489
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Other payables

Salary payable

Professional service fees payable

Insurance payable
Advertising payable

Other accrued expenses

Total

Long-term borrowings

Details of long-term loans are as follows:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
$23,316 $41,904
3,593 3,662
2,198 2,455
445 345
15,977 22,882
$45,529 $71,248

As of
December 31, Interest
Lenders 2020 Rate (%) Maturity date and terms of repayment
Taiwan Business Bank $5,000 1.95% Repayable quarterly from March 16, 2017 to
secured loan March 16, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Taiwan Business Bank 8,333  1.95% Repayable monthly from October 23, 2018 to
secured loan October 23, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Bank of Kaohsiung 6,805 1.89% Repayable monthly from December 19, 2018 to
secured loan December 19, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Taichung Commercial 11,000 2.03% Repaid NT2,000 thousand quarterly from April
Bank secured loan 1, 2019 to April 1, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Bank of Panhsin 4,242  2.02% Repayable monthly from May 29, 2019 to May
secured loan 29, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Hua Nan Bank secured 8,333  2.02% Repayable monthly from August 5, 2019 to
loan August 5, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Chang Hwa Bank 11,667 2.01% Repayable quarterly from September 20, 2019 to
secured loan September 20, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
First Bank unsecured 20,938 2.02% Repayable monthly from June 12, 2020 to June
loan 12, 2023. Interest paid monthly.

Shin Kong Bank 20,000 1.99% Repayable monthly from December 19, 2020 to
secured loan December 19, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Taiwan Cooperative 35,000 2.00% Repayable monthly from December 24, 2020 to
Bank secured loan December 24, 2025. Interest paid monthly.
Subtotal 131,318
Less: current portion (65,919)
Total $65,399

164



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

As of
December 31, Interest
Lenders 2019 Rate (%) Maturity date and terms of repayment
Taiwan Business Bank $9,000 2.2% Repayable quarterly from March 16, 2017 to
secured loan March 16, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Taiwan Business Bank 18,334 2.2% Repayable monthly from October 23, 2018 to
secured loan October 23, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Bank of Kaohsiung 13,479 2.2% Repayable monthly from December 19, 2018 to
secured loan December 19, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Taichung Commercial 21,000 2.3% Repaid NT2,000 thousand quarterly from April
Bank secured loan 1, 2019 to April 1, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Bank of Panhsin 14,263 2.3% Repayable monthly from May 29, 2019 to May
secured loan 29, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Hua Nan Bank secured 13,333 2.3% Repayable monthly from August 5, 2019 to
loan August 5, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Chang Hwa Bank 18,333  2.26% Repayable quarterly from September 20, 2019 to
secured loan September 20, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Subtotal 107,742
Less: current portion (50,350)
Total $57,392

Please refer to Note 8 for further details on pledged long-term borrowings.

(10) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopt a defined contribution plan in accordance
with the Labor Pension Act of the R.O.C. Under the Labor Pension Act, and the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries will make monthly contributions of no less than 6% of the
employee’s monthly wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts. The Company and
its domestic subsidiaries have made monthly contributions of 6% of each individual

employee’s salaries or wages to employees’ pension accounts.

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019 are NT$6,528 thousand and NT$17,500 thousand, respectively.
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Defined benefits plan

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopt a defined benefit plan in accordance with
the Labor Standards Act of the R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units
of service years and the average salaries in the last month of the service year. Two units per
year are awarded for the first 15 years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the
completion of the 15th year. The total units shall not exceed 45 units. Under the Labor
standards Act, The Company and its domestic subsidiaries contribute an amount equivalent
to 2% of the employees’ total salaries and wages on a monthly basis to the pension fund
deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the administered pension fund committee. At
the end of each year, if the balance in the designated labor pension reserve funds is inadequate
to cover the benefit estimated to be paid in the following year, the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries will make up the difference in one appropriation before the end of March in the
following year.

The Ministry of Labor is in charge of establishing and implementing the fund utilization plan
in accordance with the regulations for revenues, expenditures, safeguard and utilization of the
labor retirement fund. The pension fund is invested in-house or under mandate, based on a
passive-aggressive investment strategy for long-term profitability. The Ministry of Labor
establishes checks and risk management mechanism based on the assessment of risk factors
including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, in order to maintain adequate manager
flexibility to achieve targeted return without over-exposure of risk. With regard to utilization
of the pension fund, the minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial
statement shall not be less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-
year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. Treasury funds can be used
to cover the deficits after the approval of the competent authority. As the Company does not
participate in the operation and management of the pension fund, no disclosure on the fair
value of the plan assets categorized in different classes could be made in accordance with
paragraph 142 of 1AS 19. The Group expects to contribute NT$297 thousand to its defined
benefit plan during the 12 months after December 31, 2020.

The average-weighted duration of the defined benefits plan obligation as at December 31,
2020 and 2019, are 11 years and 12 years.

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Current period service costs $342 $376
Interest income or expense 147 212
Total $489 $588
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Reconciliation of present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans
and fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

As of
December 31, December 31,  January 1,
2020 2019 2019
Present value of the pension obligation
under defined benefit pension plans $32,946 $37,189 $38,906
Fair value of plan assets (12,049) (16,203) (17,678)
Net defined benefit liabilities, noncurrent $20,897 $20,986 $21,228

Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Defined Net defined
benefit Fair value of benefit liability
obligation plan assets /(asset)
As of January 1, 2019 $38,906 $(17,678) $21,228
Current period service costs 376 - 376
Net interest expense (income) 389 177) 212
Subtotal 765 (177) 588
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from
changes in financial assumptions 1,289 - 1,289
Experience adjustments (951) (666) (1,617)
Subtotal 338 (666) (328)
Payments from the plan (2,820) 2,820 -
Contributions by employer - (502) (502)
As of December 31, 2019 37,189 (16,203) 20,986
Current period service costs 342 - 342
Net interest expense (income) 260 (113) 147
Subtotal 602 (113) 489
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from
changes in financial assumptions 1,056 - 1,056
Experience adjustments (593) (552) (1,145)
Subtotal 463 (552) (89)
Payments from the plan (5,308) 5,308 -
Contributions by employer - (489) (489)
As of December 31, 2020 $32,946 $(12,049) $20,897
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The following significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the
defined benefit obligation:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Discount rate 0.40% 0.70%
Expected rate of salary increases 2.00% 2.00%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is, as

shown below:
2020 2019
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit

obligation obligation obligation obligation
Discount rate increase by 0.25% $- $(917) $- $(1,078)
Discount rate decrease by 0.25% 950 - 1,118 -
Future salary increase by 0.25% 850 - 1,007 -
Future salary decrease by 0.25% - (826) - (978)

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for example:
change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses compared to the previous period.

(11) Equities
(A) Common stock
The Company’s authorized capital were NT$1,300,000 thousand and NT$1,000,000
thousand, and issued capital were NT$630,643 thousand and NT$492,945 thousand as of

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, each at a par value of NT$10. Each share has
one voting right and a right to receive dividends.
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On April 30, 2015, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance no
more than 10,000 thousand shares of common stock through private placement issuance.
The subscription price of the private placement common stock was NT$84.61 per share,
totaling 2,000 thousand shares. The private placement date was March 25, 2016. The
capital increase by cash is for the purpose of enriching working capital and repaying bank
loans. The Company received NT$169,220 thousand through private placement issuance
and has completed registration for change. Apart from the fact that private placement
common stock is subject to the Securities and Exchange Act’s restrictions of transfer and
must reapply for public offering after three years for public transaction, the remaining
rights and obligations are the same as other issued common stock.

On November 1, 2018, the provisional shareholders' meeting of the Company approved
the issuance of an additional 1,500 thousand shares of restricted employee stock and the
grant price is NT$0. The rights and obligations of the issuance of ordinary shares are the
same as those of other issued ordinary shares, except for the transfer rights in which
employees must first reach the vested conditions. The new share issuance has been
declared effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission on November 21, 2018, and
was issued on January 5, 2019 as the based date for capital increase. The registration was
completed.

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved the retirement of treasury
stock, totaling 25 thousand shares. The retirement date was set on July 29, 2020 and the
registration was completed on August 4, 2020.

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company redeemed and cancelled
6 thousand shares and 0 thousand shares of issued restricted stocks for employees,
respectively.

On June 10, 2019, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock through private placement issuance. The total number of shares issued by
private placement issuance is no more than 10 million shares, and the per value of each
share is NT$10. It is expected to be issued three times within one year from the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders date of resolution. On March 5, 2020, the shareholders' meeting
of the Company approved suspending the issuance and reported in the shareholders'
meeting of the Company on June 9, 2020.

On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock through private placement issuance. The total number of shares issued by
private placement issuance is no more than 10 million shares, and the per value of each
share is NT$10. It is expected to be issued three times within one year from the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders date of resolution.
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On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock from unappropriated earnings in the amount of NT$88,719 thousand, and
the per value of each share is NT$10. The base date for capital increase was November
3, 2020. In addition, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock from additional paid-in capital in the amount of NT$49,289 thousand, and
the per value of each share is NT$10. The base date for capital increase was December
26, 2020. Total of NT$13,801 thousand new ordinary shares were issued, and the
registration was completed and approved by competent authority.

Capital surplus
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Additional Paid-in Capital $69,895 $77,492
Restricted employee stock 42,465 85,500
Total $112,360 $162,992

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall not be used except for offset the
deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the capital
surplus generated from the excess of the issuance price over the per value of capital and
donations. The distribution could be made in cash or in the form of dividend shares to its
shareholders in proportion to the number of shares.

On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the distribution of
stock dividend from additional paid-in capital in the amount NT$49,289 thousand. 1
hundred new shares to be distributed for every 1 thousand shares. However, the Company
issued common stock from unappropriated earnings for 8,872 thousand shares first, which
caused outstanding shares increased. Therefore, the actual distribution rate is 84.7822
shares for every thousand shares.

(C) Treasury Stocks

On March 23,2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to repurchase treasury
stocks. It was expected to buy 600,000 shares between March 24, 2020 to May 22, 2020
in the price between NT$31 and NT$100 per share. As of May 22, 2020, the Company
have bought back 25 thousand shares in the amount of NT$1,023 thousand.

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved the retirement of treasury

stock, totaling 25 thousand shares. The retirement date was set on July 29, 2020 and the
registration was completed on August 4, 2020.
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(D) Retained earnings and dividend policies

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, current year’s earnings, if any,
shall be distributed in the following order:

(a) Payment of all taxes and dues;

(b) Offset prior years’ operation losses;

(c) Set aside 10% of the remaining amount after deducting items (a) and (b) as legal
reserve;

(d) Set aside or reverse special reserve in accordance with law and regulations; and

(e) The distribution of the remaining portion, if any, will be recommended by the Board
of Directors and resolved in the shareholders’ meeting.

The company's dividend distribution adopts conservative principle. Paying stock dividend
is preferred. If there is a surplus, it will be distributed to shareholders as cash dividends,
but the ratio of cash dividend distribution is expected to be lower than 50% of the total
dividend distribution.

According to the Company Act, the Company is required to set aside an amount from its
earnings to legal reserve unless such legal reserve reaches the total authorized capital. The
legal reserve can be used to make good the deficit of the Company. When the Company
incurs no loss, it may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds 25% of the paid-
in capital by issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of shares being
held by each of the shareholders.

In accordance with Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012865
and “Applicable question and answer for the provision of special reserves after the
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)”, the Group sets aside
and reverses special reserves.

Details of the 2019 earnings distribution and dividends per share approved by the
shareholder’s meeting on June 9, 2020 is as follows:

Appropriation  Dividend per
of earnings  share (NTD)

2019 2019
Legal reserve $32,541
Special reserve 152,214
Common stock cash dividend 9,858 $0.2
Common stock stock dividend 88,719 1.8
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Please refer to Note 6(16) for details on employees’ compensation and remuneration to
directors and supervisors.

(E) Non-controlling interests

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Beginning balance $43 $116
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests (484) (2,222)
Disposal of a subsidiary - (19)
Acquisition of new shares in a subsidiary not in
proportionate to ownership interest 655 2,168
Ending balance $214 $43

(12) Share-based payment plans

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to share-based payment as part of their
remunerations. The group grants the equity instruments to the employees in return for the
services they provide. These plans are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

(A) The Group applied for an additional issuance of restricted employee stock in 2018 and
issued on January 5, 2019 of NT$15,000 thousand, totaling 1,500 thousand shares, and
the share price was NT$105 per share. The share-based payment agreement is as follows:

Total numbers of Contract
Type of grant Date of grant options granted (unit)  period  Vesting Conditions
Restricted employee  December 5, 1,500,000 28 months  Achievement of
stock plan (Note 1) 2018 performance
conditions (Note 2)

Note 1. The restricted employee stock issued by the Group are not transferable during
the contract period, but they do not restrict voting rights and included in the
distribution of dividends. Employees who leave during the vested period are
required to return the shares, but the dividends obtained is not required to return.

Note 2: A portion of the restricted employee stock will be vested at the end of each year

if the employee’s performance reaches the target set by the company. The
maximum share vested will be 40%, 30% and 30% in each of the three years.
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The detail information of upon share-based payment agreement is as follows :

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Numbers Numbers
(thousand) (thousand)
As of January 1 900 -
Issued - 1,500
Cancelled (6) -
Less - vested (447) (600)
As of December 31 447 900

(B) The expenses recognized for employee services received for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, are shown in the following table:

For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019

Total expense arising from equity-settled share-based
payment transactions $31,642 $118,688

(13) Operating revenue

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods $2,408 $5,289
Rendering of service 537,991 559,183
Other operating revenue 5,089 3,999
Less: sales returns and allowances (119) (2,653)
Total $545,369 $565,818
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Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers during the year ended December 31, 2020
is as follows:

(A) Disaggregation of revenue
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Research and
Operating Development

Department Department Total

Sale of goods $2,289 $- $2,289
Rendering of services 174,720 368,360 543,080
Total $177,009 $368,360 $545,369
Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time $13,246 $141,600 $154,846

Over time 163,763 226,760 390,523
Total $177,009 $368,360 $545,369

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Research and
Operating Development

Department ~ Department Total

Sale of goods $2,636 $- $2,636
Rendering of services 169,545 393,637 563,182
Total $172,181 $393,637 $565,818
Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time $8,040 $106,326 $114,366

Over time 164,136 287,316 451,452
Total $172,176 $393,642 $565,818

(B) Contract balances
Net contract assets (liabilities) are as follows:

Ending Beginning

balance balance Difference %
Contract assets, current $53,217 $72,418 $(19,201) (27)%
Contract assets, noncurrent 25,842 3,999 21,843 546%
Contract liabilities, current (27,010) (47,690) 20,680 (43)%
Net contract assets (liabilities) $52,049 $28,727 $23,322
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Contract assets increased by NT$2,642 thousand from December 31, 2019 to December
31, 2020, mainly due to NT$16,176 thousand contract assets from film and television
licensing in 2019 is reclassified to accounts receivable due to the Company has
unconditional right to receive the consideration. In addition, NT$22,661 thousand
contract assets from film and television licensing in 2020 are reclassified to contract
assets, non-current due to the contract terms.

Contract liabilities decreased by NT$20,680 thousand from December 31, 2019 to
December 31, 2020, mainly due to the advance payment of mobile games licensing
contract received in 2019, which is recognized as revenue NT$18,771 thousand when the
mobile games launched in 2020.

(C) Transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group’s transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations amounted
to NT$27,010 thousand as of December 31, 2020. Management expects that the
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognized as
revenue within one year.

The Group’s transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations amounted
to NT$47,690 thousand as of December 31, 2019. Management expects that the
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognized as
revenue within one year.

(14) Expected credit losses/ (gains)

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Operating expenses — Expected credit losses/(gains)
Contract assets $- $12,228
Accounts receivable (42,205) 48,776
Total $(42,205) $61,004

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost are assessed as low
(same as the assessment result in the beginning of the period). Besides, the Group only
transacts with good credit financial institutions, such as banks. Therefore, the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at a loss ratio of 0%.
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The Group measures the loss allowance of its contract assets and trade receivables (including
notes receivable and accounts receivable) at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. The assessment of the Group’s loss allowance are as follows:

(A) the gross carrying amount of contract assets are NT$79,059 thousand and NT$76,417
thousand as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The loss allowance amounts
to NT$0 where an expected credit loss ratio of 0% is used.

(B) the Group groups its trade receivables by counterparties’ credit rating, geographical
region and industry sector, and its loss allowance is measured by using a provision matrix.

The details are as follow:

As of December 31, 2020

Group 1
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30 days 31-120 days 121-365 days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $49,078 $2,647 $2,669 $59,639 $114  $114,147
Loss ratio -% -% -% 0.20% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - - (116) (114) (230)
Subtotal $49,078 $2,647 $2,669 $59,523 $-  $113,917
Group 2
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $36,995 $521 $- $- $1,650 $39,166
Loss ratio -% -% -% -% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - - - (1,650) (1,650)
Subtotal $36,995 $521 $- $- $- $37,516
Total $151,433
As of December 31, 2019
Group 1
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365 days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $52,649 $1,976 $1,351 $1,191 $138 $57,305
Loss ratio -% 0.24% 5.19% 63.12% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - (5) (70) (752) (138) (965)
Subtotal $52,649 $1,971 $1,281 $439 $- $56,340
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Group 2
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $38,407 $- $3,275 $19,975 $36,166 $97,823
Loss ratio -% -% 23.05% 31.16% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - (755) (6,224) (36,166) (43,145)
Subtotal $38,407 $- $2,520 $13,751 $- $54,678

Total $111,018

Note: The Group’s notes receivable are not overdue.

(C) the Group measures the loss allowance of its other receivable at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized
NT$0 thousand and NT$0 thousand allowance loss, respectively.

The movement in the provision for impairment of contract assets and accounts receivable
during the December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Contract Accounts

Assets Receivable
As of January 1, 2020 $- $44,110
Reversal and write off due to receipt - (42,205)
Write off due to inability to receive - (25)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $1,880
Beginning balance $- $1,089
Addition/(reversal) for the current period 12,228 48,776
Write off due to inability to receive (12,228) (5,755)
As of December 31, 2019 $- $44,110

Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk.
(15) Operating leases
A. Group as a lessee
The Group leases various properties, including real estate (land and buildings), machinery

and equipment, transportation equipment, office equipment and other equipment. The
lease terms range from 1 to 5 years.
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The Group’s leases impact to the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
are as follow:

(A) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Buildings $29,147 $37,891

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s additions to
right-of-use assets amounting to NT$27,923 thousand and NT$830 thousand,
also with decrease of NT$18,469 thousand and NT$9,936 thousand, respectively.

Lease liabilities
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Lease liabilities $29,045 $37,889
Current $11,080 $25,430
Non-current $17,965 $12,459

Please refer to Note 6 (17)(C) for the interest on lease liabilities recognized
during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and refer to Note 12 (5)
Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(B) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

For the year ended
December 31,

2020 2019

Buildings $18,198 $28,413
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(C) Income and costs relating to leasing activities

For the year ended
December 31,

2020 2019
The expenses relating to short-term leases $683 $4,032
The expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
(Not including the expenses relating to short-term
leases of low-value assets) 1,349 327

(D) Cash outflow relating to leasing activities

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group’s total cash outflows
for leases amounting to NT$20,804 thousand and NT$33,718 thousand, respectively.

(16) Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expense by function
during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the years ended December 31,
2020 2019
Operating | Operating Operating | Operating
costs expenses | Total amount costs expenses | Total amount

Employee benefits expense
Salaries $- $160,374 $160,374 $- $328,835 $328,835
Labor and health insurance 12,789 12,789 19,110 19,110
Pension 7,017 7,017 18,089 18,089

Other employee benefits
8,530 8,530 15,764 15,764

expense

Depreciation 23,623 23,623 36,894 36,894
Amortization 9,063 6,512 15,575 9,076 9,076

According to the Articles of Incorporation, no less than 3% of profit of the current year is
distributable as employees’ compensation and no higher than 3% of profit of the current year
is distributable as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, the company's
accumulated losses shall have been covered. The Company may, by a resolution adopted by
a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number
of directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation in the form of shares or
in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the shareholders’
meeting. Information on the Board of Directors’ resolution regarding the employees’
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained from the “Market
Observation Post System” on the website of the TWSE.
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Based on the profit for the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company estimated the
amounts of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to be 3% of profit of the current year and 1% of profit of
the current year, respectively, recognized as employee benefits expense. As such, employees’
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31,
2020 amount to NT$2,928 thousand and NT$976 thousand, respectively. On March 12, 2021,
the Board of Directors meeting resolved to distribute NT$2,939 thousand and NT$980
thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors
of 2020, respectively.

On March 5, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to distribute NT$16,970 thousand
and NT$3,394 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors
and supervisors of 2019, respectively. No material differences exist between the estimated
amount and the actual distribution.

(17) Non-operating income and expenses

(A) Other income

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019

Interest income

Financial assets measured at amortized cost $189 $1,114
Rental income 1,520 -
Tax refund 17,218 -
Government support income 9,060 -
Other income 3,733 6,758
Total $31,720 $7,872

(B) Other gains and losses

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment $(128) $(18)
Gains on disposal of intangible assets 576 -
Gains on disposal of investments(Note) 1,285 641,077
Foreign exchange losses, net (3,062) (8,788)
Impairment loss from non-financial assets - (9,426)
Other (731) (4,648)
Total $(2,060) $618,197
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Note: The Company lost control of SOFTSTAR BEIJING and recognized investment
gain on June 3, 2019, please refer to Note 6 (21) for details.

(C) Finance costs

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019
Interest on borrowings from bank $2,287 $4,440
Interest on lease liabilities 449 1,209
Total $2,736 $5,649
(18) Components of other comprehensive loss
For the year ended December 31, 2020:
Income tax
relating to

components of

Reclassification Other other Other
Avrising during adjustments comprehensive  comprehensive  comprehensive
the period during the period loss, before tax loss loss, net of tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plans $89 $- $89 $- $89
Unrealized gains or losses from
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income 7,311 - 7,311 - 7,311
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from
translating the financial
statements of a foreign
operation (16,625) - (16,625) - (16,625)
Total of other comprehensive loss $(9,225) $- $(9,225) $- $(9,225)
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For the year ended December 31, 2019:

Reclassification

Other

Income tax
relating to
components of

other

Other

Arising during adjustments comprehensive  comprehensive  comprehensive
the period during the period loss, before tax loss loss, net of tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plans $328 $- $328 $- $328
Unrealized gains or losses from
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
loss (133,514) - (133,514) - (133,514)
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from
translating the financial
statements of a foreign
operation 9,154 - 9,154 - 9,154
Total of other comprehensive loss $(124,032) $- $(124,032) $- $(124,032)
(19) Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019
Current income tax expense:
Current income tax charge $22,769 $41,165
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior periods - -
Deferred tax expense (income):
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to origination 14,586 (29,115)
and reversal of temporary differences
Total income tax expense $37,355 $12,050
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Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
applicable tax rates is as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations $93,767 $335,867
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the $18,753 $67,173
country concerned
Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation (7,099) 5,531
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses from taxation 12,906 582
Tax effect of deferred tax assets/liabilities (9,974) (84,831)
Overseas withholding tax 22,769 23,595
Total income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $37,355 $12,050
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following:
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Beginning Ending
balance as of balance as of
January 1, Recognizedin  December 31,
2020 profit or loss 2020
Temporary differences
Unrealized bad debt expense $8,427 $(8,427) $-
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 1,230 (696) 534
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (707) 667 (40)
Fls_cal anq tax differences in amortization ] 206 206
of intangible assets
Defined benefit liability, non-current 3,591 - 3,591
Others (670) 1,323 653
Unused tax losses 20,721 (8,249) 12,472
Deferred tax income/ (expense) $(14,586)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $32,592 $18,006
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax assets $33,969 $18,046
Deferred tax liabilities $1,377 $40

183



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Beginning Ending
balance as of balance as of
January 1, Recognizedin  December 31,
2019 profit or loss 2019
Temporary differences
Unrealized bad debt expense $142 $8,285 $8,427
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 365 865 1,230
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - (707) (707)
Unrealized margin in sales return (12) 11 -
Defined benefit liability, non-current 3,574 17 3,591
Others (593) (77) (670)
Unused tax losses - 20,721 20,721
Deferred tax income/ (expense) $29,115
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $3,477 $32,592
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax assets $4,081 $33,969
Deferred tax liabilities $604 $1,377

The information of the unused tax losses is as follows:

Unused tax losses

Tax losses for As of December 31,
Year the period 2020 2019 Expiration year
2014 $15,029 $- $1,544 2024
2019 207,900 124,727 207,203 2029
$124,727 $208,747

The information of the unused tax losses for Taiwan subsidiaries is as follows:

Unused tax losses

Tax losses for As of December 31,
Year the period 2020 2019 Expiration year
2014 $13,395 Note $13,395 2024
2015 1,183 $1,106 20,089 2025
2016 113,084 60,497 80,936 2026
2017 27,848 27,848 50,061 2027
2018 74,143 74,143 78,239 2028
2019 26,998 26,998 26,998 2029
2020 1,835 1,835 - 2030
$192,427 $270,118

Note: Subsidiaries of the Group were dissolved in 2020, so their unused tax losses were also
eliminated.
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Unrecognized deferred tax assets

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect
of unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences amounting to NT$128,915
thousand and NT$198,262 thousand, respectively, as the future taxable profit may not be
available.

The assessment of income tax returns

As at December 31, 2020, the assessment of the income tax returns of the Company and its
subsidiaries is as follows:

The assessment of income tax returns
The Company Assessed and approved up to 2018
SUBSIDIARY - LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE Assessed and approved up to 2018
ENTERTAINMENT INC.
SUBSIDIARY- SOFTSTAR AGENCY CO., LTD. Assessed and approved up to 2018
SUBSIDIARY- KOBE CO., LTD. Assessed and approved up to 2018
SUBSIDIARY- GAMEBASE DIGITAL MEDIA Assessed and approved up to 2018
CORPORATION
SUBSIDIARY- SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. Assessed and approved up to 2018

(20) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019
(A) Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the Company (in thousand NT$) $56,896 $326,039
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 62,465 61,990
Basic earnings per share (NT$) $0.91 $5.26
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For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
(B) Diluted earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the Company after dilution (in thousand NT$) $56,896 $326,039
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 62,465 61,990
Effect of dilution:
Restricted employee stock 535 647
Employee compensation-stock (in thousands) 161 186
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

after dilution (in thousands) 63,161 62,823
Diluted earnings per share (NT$) $0.90 $5.19

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements.

(21) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

Loss control of a subsidiary

On April 25, 2018, the Company’s board of directors approved the capital injection plan of
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as SOFTSTAR
BEIJING) SOFTSTAR BEIWJING, a subsidiary of the Group, was seeking to increase its
capital in order to introduce long-term partners. All of the shares were subscribed by CMGE
TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as CMGE), an overseas affiliate
of China Mobile Group. The total amount of capital injection was RMB$213,000 thousand.
After the capital injection, CMGE holds 51% of total shares in SOFTSTAR BEIJING. The
Company holds 49% of total shares in SOFTSTAR BEINING through its subsidiary,
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. On June 3, 2019 the Company has lost control of
SOFTSTAR BENING, derecognizing SOFTSTAR BENING and its wholly owned subsidiary
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHALI) CO., LTD. in the consolidated report; instead,
the investment is measured at fair value and recognized under investment accounted for using
the equity method. The carrying amount of assets and liabilities of SOFTSTAR BEIJING as
of June 3, 2019 are as follows:
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Carrying
amount

Cash and cash equivalents $583,737
Contract assets, current 26,091
Notes and accounts receivable 13,229
Other receivables 6,835
Current income tax assets 182
Prepayment 35,590
Costs to fulfill a contract 160,496
Contract assets, noncurrent 95,601
Property, plant and equipment 5,763
Intangible assets 3,096
Right-of-use assets 9,914
Refundable deposits 1,965
Short-term borrowings (93,131)
Other payables (41,116)
Contract liabilities (201,025)
Other current liabilities (550,164)
Lease liabilities (10,174)
Total net assets 46,889
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests -
Net assets recognized on the disposal date $46,889
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Fair Value of remaining investments $688,441

Less: Carrying amount of net assets recognized on the disposal date (46,889)

Gains on disposal of investments $641,552

7. Related party transactions

Information of the related parties that had transactions with the Group during the financial
reporting period is as follows:
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Name and nature of relationship of the related parties

Name of the related parties

Nature of relationship of the related parties

NEWRETAIL CO., LTD.

TOKYO FASHION CO., LTD. (Note 4)

NEWLOGISTICS CO., LTD.

E-NET CO., LTD. (Note 1)

GLOBAL ANGEL INVESTMENTS
LIMITED

The Playground Limited, Taiwan Branch
(Note 2)

FUNFIA INC.

Bakesi Wine Group Co., Ltd.

DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTAINMENT
CORP.

A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd.

SOFTSAT TECHNOLOGY
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. (Note 3)

SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING)
CO., LTD. (Note 3)

The chairman of the Company and the key
management personnel of this company are
second-degree relatives

The chairman of the Company and the director of
this company are second-degree relatives

The chairman of the Company and the director of
this company are second-degree relatives

The chairman of the Company and the director of
this company are second-degree relatives

The chairman of the Company is the chairman of
this company

The key management personnel of the Company is
the chairman of this company

The key management personnel of the subsidiary of
the Company is the chairman of this company

The chairman of the Company is the chairman of
this company

The Company is the director of this company

Associate
Associate

Associate

Note 1: NEWCROSS CO., LTD. changed its name to E-NET CO., LTD. in August 2019. Due to
change of the chairman of the board on September 18, 2020, E-NET CO., LTD. was no
longer a related party of the Group since September 18, 2020.

Note 2: Due to changes in shareholder structure, The Playground Investment Limited, Taiwan
Branch was no longer a related party of the Group since February 2019.
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Note 3: The Group lost control of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. on June 3,
2019, and recognized the remaining 49% of the shares of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY
(BENING) CO., LTD. as investment accounted for using the equity method. SOFTSTAR
TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. and its 100% owned subsidiary SOFTSTAR
TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. became the associates of the Group from the
date of losing control.

Note 4: Due to change of the chairman of the board on September 18, 2020, TOKYO FASHION
CO., LTD. was no longer a related party of the Group since September 18,2020.

Significant transactions with the related parties

(1) Sales

For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019

Rendering of services
Other related parties $105 $875

The sales price to the above related parties was determined through mutual agreement. The
collection period from sales to the related party customers are 30~60 days, which is the same
with third party customers.

(2) Operating expenses

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019

Other related parties

FUNFIA INC. $- $3,927

DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTATIONENT CORP. - 1,782

NEWLOGISTICS CO., LTD. 745 -

GLOBAL ANGEL INVESTMENTS LIMITED 952 -

Others 301 633
Total $1,998 $6,342
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Other notes receivable-related parties

Other related parties
TOKYO FASHION CO., LTD.
E-NET CO., LTD.

Total

Accounts receivable-related parties

Other related parties

Other receivables-related parties

Other related parties
TOKYO FASHION CO., LTD.
E-NET CO., LTD.
NEW RETAIL CO., LTD.
Others

Total

Prepayment-related parties

Associate

A.R.T Games Co., Ltd.
Other related parties

NEWLOGISTICS CO., LTD.

GLOBAL ANGEL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Total

Prepayment-related parties relates to prepaid rent.
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As of December 31,
2020 2019
$- $387
- 2,736
$- $3,123
As of December 31,
2020 2019
$- $11
As of December 31,
2020 2019
$- $381
- 683
- 239
5 38
$5 $1,341
As of December 31,
2020 2019
$- $1,905
700 -
330 -
$1,030 $1,905
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(7) Accounts payable-related parties

Associates

SOTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHALI) CO., LTD.
SDFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEWING) CO., LTD.

Other related parties
Total

(8) Other payables-related parties

Other related parties

NEWLOGISTICS CO., LTD.

(9) Lease-related parties

(A) Right-of-use assets

Other related parties

(B) Lease liabilities

Other related parties

(C) Interest expenses

Other related parties

191

As of December 31,

2020 2019

$- $5,388
- 31,032
- 17

$- $36,437

As of December 31,

2020 2019

$- $67

As of December 31,

2020 2019

$21,021 $461

As of December 31,

2020 2019

$21,348 $466

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019

$40 $14
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(10) Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits $19,666 $36,046
Post-employment benefits 350 604
Termination benefits - 364
Other long-term benefits 474 775
Share-based payment 9,725 43,994
Total $30,215 $81,783
8. Assets pledged as security
The following table lists assets of the Group pledged as security:
Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,
Items 2020 2019 Secured liabilities
Other financial assets current-demand $14,031 21  Current portion of long-
deposits term borrowings
Other financial assets, noncurrent- 27,000 30,000 Long - term borrowings
demand deposits
Total $41,031 $30,021

9. Commitments and contingencies

None.

10. Loss due to major disasters

None.

11. Significant subseguent events

On January 29, 2021, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to acquire the private placement
stock of Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. The Company acquired 28,322 thousand shares in the
amount of NT$160,000 thousand and in the price of NT$5.65 per share, which increased the
Company’s ownership of Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. to 15.72%.
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12. Others
(1) Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets As of December 31,
2020 2019
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income $63,315 $55,992
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note 1) 439,118 326,286
Total 502,433 $382,278
Financial liabilities As of December 31,
2020 2019
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Accounts payable $119,674 $199,141
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 131,318 107,742
Lease liabilities 29,045 37,889
Total $280,037 $344,772
Note:

()

1) Including cash and cash equivalents (except for cash on hand), notes receivable, other
notes receivables-related parties, accounts receivable, accounts receivable-related
parties, other receivables, other receivables-related parties, other financial assets,
current, refundable deposits, and other financial assets, noncurrent.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Group identifies measures and
manages the aforementioned risks based on the Group’s policy and risk appetite.

The Group has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for financial
risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process by the
Board of Directors and Audit Committee must be carried out based on related protocols and
internal control procedures. The Group complies with its financial risk management policies
at all times.
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(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk).

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other
risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However, the
sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between
risk variables.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency

from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign
currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. Hedge
accounting is not applied as they did not qualify for hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore,
as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for strategic purposes, they are not hedged by
the Group.

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on
the Group’s profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period. The Group’s foreign currency risk is mainly
related to the volatility in the exchange rates for foreign currency A and foreign currency B.
The information of the sensitivity analyses as follows:

(A) When NTD strengthens/weakens against USD by 1%, the profit or loss for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is decreased/increased by NT$410 thousand and
NT$196 thousand, respectively.

(B) When NTD strengthens/weakens against RMB by 1%, the profit or loss for the years

ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is decreased/ increased by NT$2,213 thousand and
NT$1,921 thousand, respectively.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s loans and receivables at
variable interest rates, bank borrowings with fixed interest rates and variable interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable
loans and borrowings and entering into interest rate swaps. Hedge accounting does not apply
to these swaps as they do not qualify for it.

The interest rate sensitivity analysis is performed on items exposed to interest rate risk as at
the end of the reporting period, including borrowings with variable interest rates. At the
reporting date, a change of 10 basis points of interest rate in a reporting period could cause
the profit for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 to decrease/increase by NT$131
thousand and NT$108 thousand, respectively.

Equity price risk

The fair value of the Group’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The
Group’s listed and unlisted equity securities are classified under financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income (available-for-sale financial assets in 2019). The Group
manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group’s senior
management on a regular basis. The Group’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all
equity investment decisions.

As of December 31 2020 and 2019, an increase/decrease of 10% in the price of the listed
companies stocks classified as equity instruments investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income could have an impact of NT$1,694 thousand and NT$2,007
thousand on the equity attributable to the Group for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Please refer to Note 12.8 for sensitivity analysis information of other equity instruments whose
fair value measurement is categorized under Level 3.
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Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily for
accounts receivables and notes receivables) and from its financing activities, including bank
deposits and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all
counter parties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical
experience, prevailing economic condition and the Group’s internal rating criteria etc. Certain
counter parties’ credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing procedures, such

as requesting for prepayment.

As of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, accounts receivable and contract assets
from top ten customers represent 49.32% and 42.69% of the total accounts receivables of the
Group, respectively. The credit concentration risk of other accounts receivable is relatively
insignificant.

Credit risk from balances with banks, fixed income securities and other financial instruments
is managed by the Group’s treasury in accordance with the Group’s policy. The Group only
transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures, which are banks
and financial institutions, companies and government entities with good credit rating.
Consequently, there is no significant credit risk for these counter parties.

Liquidity risk management

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted payments and contractual maturity. The payment amount includes the
contractual interest. The undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with variable interest
rates is extrapolated based on the estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of the
reporting period.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

As of December 31, 2020
Accounts payable (including

other payables)

Long-term borrowings
(including estimated

interest)

Lease liabilities (Note)

As of December 31, 2019
Accounts payable (including

other payables)

Long-term borrowings
(including estimated

interest)

Lease liabilities (Note)

Less than
1 year 2to3years 4to5years >5years Total

$119,674 $- $- $- $119,674
67,229 40,505 26,205 - 133,939
11,969 7,748 7,731 3,701 31,149

$199,141 $- $- $- $199,141
51,485 58,687 - - 110,172
28,673 12,588 - - 41,261

Note: Including cash flows resulted from short-term leases or leases of low-value assets.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020:

As of January 31, 2020
Cash flows

Non-cash changes

As of December 31, 2020

Long-term
borrowings Total liabilities
Short-term (including from financing
borrowings current portion)  Lease liabilities activities
$- $107,742 $37,889 $145,631
- 23,576 (18,969) 4,607
- - 10,125 10,125
$- $131,318 $29,045 $160,363

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2019:

As of January 31, 2019
Cash flows

Disposal of subsidiaries
Non-cash changes

As of December 31, 2019

Guarantee
deposits received Long-term

(recognized in borrowings Total liabilities
Short-term other current (including from financing

borrowings liabilities) current portion)  Lease liabilities activities
$62,425 $47,605 $84,602 $75,115 $269,747
30,706 502,558 23,140 (29,359) 527,045
(93,131) (550,163) (10,174) (653,468)
- - - 2,307 2,307
$- $- $107,742 $37,889 $145,631
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(7) Fair values of financial instruments

(A) The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial
instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
following methods and assumptions were used by the Group to measure or disclose the
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, refundable
deposits, accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate their fair value
due to their short maturities.

For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and
conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including
listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the
reporting date.

Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private
placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company
equity securities) are estimated using the market method or income approach
valuation techniques. The market method valuation is based on parameters such as
prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of identical or comparable
entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs such as discount for lack
of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book ratio of similar entities).
The income method is based on the estimated recoverable amount of the present
value of similar financial assets that are expected to be received from cash dividends
or disposals of investments.

Fair value of debt instruments without market quotations, bank loans, bonds payable
and other non-current liabilities are determined based on the counterparty prices or
valuation method. The valuation method uses DCF method as a basis, and the
assumptions such as the interest rate and discount rate are primarily based on relevant
information of similar instrument (such as yield curves published by the GreTai
Securities Market, average prices for Fixed Rate Commercial Paper published by
Reuters and credit risk, etc.)
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(e) The fair value of derivatives which are not options and without market quotations, is
determined based on the counterparty prices or discounted cash flow analysis using
interest rate yield curve for the contract period. Fair value of option-based derivative
financial instruments is obtained using on the counterparty prices or appropriate
option pricing model (for example, Black-Scholes model) or other valuation method
(for example, Monte Carlo Simulation).

(B) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost is approximate their fair value.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12(8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments
of the Group.

(8) Fair value measurement hierarchy
(A) Fair value measurement hierarchy
All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are

described as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring

basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.
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(B) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities

The Group does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair

value on a recurring basis is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instrument measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income $3,814

$13,132

$46,369  $63,315

As of December 31, 2019

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instrument measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income $5,351

$14,718

$35,923  $55,992

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between

Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.
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Reconciliation for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for
movements during the period is as follows:

Assets
Measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Stocks
Beginning balances as of January 1, 2020 $35,923
Total gains and losses recognized for the year ended December 31, 2020
Amount recognized in OCI (presented in “Unrealized gains (losses) from
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income) 10,446
Ending balances as of December 31, 2020 $46,369
Assets

Measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Stocks
Beginning balances as of January 1, 2019 $147,520
Total gains and losses recognized for the year ended December 31, 2019
Amount recognized in OCI (presented in “Unrealized gains (losses) from
N ) . (111,597)
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Ending balances as of December 31, 2019 $35,923

Information on significant unobservable inputs to valuation

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of recurring fair value
measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Significant Relationship
Valuation unobservable  Quantitative  between inputs  Sensitivity of the input to
techniques inputs information  and fair value fair value
Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income
Stocks Income Discount for lack 16% The higher the 10% increase (decrease)
approach of marketability discount for lack in the discount for lack

of marketability, of marketability would
the lower the fair  result in (decrease)

value of the increase in the Group’s
stocks equity by NT$4,637
thousand
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As of December 31, 2019

Significant Relationship
Valuation unobservable  Quantitative between inputs  Sensitivity of the input to
techniques inputs information  and fair value fair value
Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income
Stocks Income Discount for lack  16% The higher the 10% increase (decrease)
approach of marketability discount for lack in the discount for lack

of marketability,  of marketability would
the lower the fair  result in (decrease)

value of the increase in the Group’s
stocks equity by NT$3,592
thousand

Valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

The Group’s Finance Department is responsible for validating the fair value
measurements and ensuring that the results of the valuation are in line with market
conditions, based on independent and reliable inputs which are consistent with other
information, and represent exercisable prices. The Department analyses the movements
in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed
as per the Group’s accounting policies at each reporting date.

(9) Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Information regarding the significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
is listed below:

(Expressed in thousands)
December 31, 2020

Foreign currencies Foreign exchange rate NTD

Financial assets
Monetary items:

uUSsD $1,662 28.48 $47,328

RMB 50,525 4.38 221,300
Financial liabilities
Monetary items:

uUsD 222 28.48 6,327
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December 31, 2019

Foreign currencies Foreign exchange rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items:
usD $1,854 29.99 $55,597
RMB 53,781 4.31 231,800
Financial liabilities
Monetary items:
usD 1,202 29.98 36,037
RMB 9,200 4.31 39,652

The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of foreign currency (after
conversion of functional currency).

The Group has a variety of functional currencies, therefore the monetary impact on financial
assets and liabilities impact for each individual currency cannot be disclosed. For the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, foreign exchange losses were NT$3,062 thousand and
NT$8,788 thousand, respectively.

(10) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

13. Additional disclosure

(1) Information at significant transactions

(A) Financing provided to other: None

(B) Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: None

(C) Securities held (excluding subsidiaries, associates and joint venture): Please refer to
Attachment 1.

203



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(D) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the
lower of NT$300 million and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(E) Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million
and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(F) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million
and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(G) Related party transactions for purchases and sales amounts exceeding the lower of
NT$100 million and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(H) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million
and 20 percent of capital stock: None.

(I) Financial instruments and derivative transactions: None.

(J) Business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries and between each
subsidiary, and the circumstances and amounts of any significant transactions: Please
refer to Attachment 2.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations, and other information (excluding investment in Mainland China): Please
refer to Attachment 3.

(3) Information on investments in mainland China
(A) Basic information: Please refer to Attachment 4.
(B) Directly or indirectly significant transactions through third regions with the investees in
Mainland China: None
(4) Major Shareholder Information

Shareholding information of major shareholders : Please refer to Attachment 5.

14. Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(1) Taiwan: this segment is mainly responsible for researching, licensing, and sales of products.

(2) Mainland China: this segment is mainly responsible for researching, licensing, and sales of
products in Mainland China.
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The main operating segments of the Group in Mainland China are SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY
(BENING) CO., LTD. and SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD., and the
group has lost direct or indirect control of the two companies on June 3, 2019. Please refer to Note
6 (21) for details on the loss of control of the subsidiary. Therefore, from the date of losing the
control of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEIJING) CO., LTD., the Group’s operating segments
only include operating department and research and development and licensing segment in
Taiwan.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured based on accounting policies consistent
with those in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are managed on a
group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segment are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.

(1) The following table presents segment profit and loss of the Group’ operating segments:
(Expressed in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2020
Taiwan China

Research and Research and
development development Adjustment

Operating  and licensing and licensing and
Revenue Department segment segment elimination Total
External customer $177,009 $368,360 $- $- $545,369
Inter-segment 17,184 60,229 - (77,413) -
Total revenue $194,193 $428,589 $- $(77,413) $545,369
Segment (loss) profit $36,218 $101,886 $- $- $138,104

(Expressed in thousands)
For the year ended December 31, 2019
Taiwan China
Research and Research and
development development Adjustment

Operating  and licensing and licensing and
Revenue Department segment segment elimination Total
External customer $172,180 $323,590 $70,048 $- $565,818
Inter-segment 12,186 54,209 83,652 (150,047) -
Total revenue $184,366 $377,799 $153,700 $(150,047) $565,818
Segment (loss) profit $32,054 $(306,150) $56,516 $- $(217,580)

205



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Inter-segment revenue is eliminated on consolidation and recorded under the “adjustment and

elimination” column, all other adjustments and eliminations are disclosed below.

The following table presents segment assets of the Group’s operating segments as at

December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Operating segment assets

Taiwan

Research and

development Reportable
Operating and licensing  operating Adjustment
Department segment segments  and elimination Consolidated
December 31, 2020 $97,211  $1,761,479  $1,858,690 $(641,593)  $1,217,097
December 31, 2019 $77,015  $1,866,976  $1,943,991 $(705,050) $1,238,941
Operating segment liabilities
Taiwan
Research and
development Reportable
Operating and licensing  operating Adjustment
Department segment segments  and elimination Consolidated
December 31, 2020 $88,275 $304,991 $393,266 $(49,057) $344,209
December 31,2019 $73,694 $418,537 $492,231 $(58,230) $434,001

Other reconciliations of reportable segments

Total profit or loss for reportable segments
Other profit or loss
Profit before tax from continuing operations

206

For the years ended

December 31,

2020 2019
$138,104 $(217,580)
(44,337) 553,447
$93,767 $335,867




©)

(4)

English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers:

Taiwan
Mainland China
Other

Total

For the years ended
December 31,

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customer.

Non-current assets:

Taiwan
Mainland China
Total

Information about major customers

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E

2020 2019
$67,343 $83,673
261,750 333,892
216,276 148,253

$545,369 $565,818

As of December 31,

2020 2019

$187,716 $194,534
540,865 625,708
$728,581 $820,242

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019

$90,656 $76,592
58,202 73,245
56,708 55,197
52,050 44,054
48,121 43,969
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(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

Relationship December 31, 2020
Names of Type of securities Name of securities with the Company Shares Carrying amount Percentage of Note
companies held (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) Financial statement account (in thousand) (Note 3) ownership (%) Fair value (Note 4)

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Stock AUER MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT CORP. - Financial assets at fair value through other 2,696 $40,600 19.48% $40,600 N
ComprehenSIVe income, non-current

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Stock TAIWAN SMART CARD CO. . Financial assets at fair value through other 2,552 3,598 15.95% 3,598 N
comprehensive income, non-current

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Stock DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTAINMENT CORP. . Financial assets at fair value through other 479 2,171 17.43% 2,171 N
comprehensive income, non-current

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Stock FUNFIA INC. Other related party | nancial assets at fair value through other 600 - 1151% - N
comprehensive income, non-current

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Emergingstock  |SNSPLUS, INC. . Financial assets at fair value through other 266 3,802 1.78% 3,802 N
comprehensive income, non-current

Kabe Co., Ltd. Listed stock NEWRETAIL CO., LTD. Other related party |/ nancial assets at fair value through other 1,315 13,132 2.74% 13,132 N
comprehensive income, non-current

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. | Listed stock Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. Financial assets at fair value through other 2 12 0.00% 12 N
comprehensive income, non-current

$63,315

Note 1: Securities on the list refer to securities such as stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and securities derived from those items included in IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Note 2: Fields do not have to be filled in if the security issuer is not a related party.

Note 3: Securities which were acquired by using fair value method, please fill in amount based on calculating after adjustment from fair value minus accumulated impairment; fill in the rest amount based on original

acquired cost or after amortization minus accumulated impairment.

Note 4: Listed securities due to guarantees, pledged loans, or others who are restricted by agreement shall specify in the remarks column the number of guarantees or the number of shares borrowed, the amount of the

guarantee or the amount of the loan, and restrictions on use.
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Attachment 2: Significant intercompany transactions between consolidated entities

Business Transactions
No. Relationship As a percentage of consolidated revenues
(Note 1) Company Counterparty (Note 2) Account Amount Term (Note 3)
0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. |LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. 1 Sales Revenue $60,317 Negotiated by both parties 11.06%
0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. |LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. 1 Operating Cost 17,086 Negotiated by both parties 3.13%
0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. |LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. 1 Accounts Receivable 31,277 Negotiated by both parties 2.57%

Note 1: Information about related party transactions should be stated. The numbers of each company are illustrated as follows:

1. 0 is for the parent company.
2. Each subsidiary is numbered from 1.

Note 2: Transactions are categorized into three types as follows: (There is no need to repeat the disclosure of the same transaction between the parent company and each subsidiary.
For example, if the parent company has disclosed the transaction with the subsidiary, the subsidiary does not need to disclose it; if transactions between subsidiaries has been
disclosed by one company, the other company does not need to disclose the transaction.

1. Parent company and subsidiary.
2. Subsidiary and Parent company.

3. Subsidiary and subsidiary.

Note 3: Transaction amount is stated as a percentage of total revenues. Percentages of assets or liabilities accounts are calculated as ending balance divided by consolidated assets,

and percentages of profit or loss accounts are calculated as accumulated amount for the year divided by consolidated revenues.
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Original investment

Net income

Investment

Investment as of December 31, 2020 . Note
amount (loss) income
Ending Beginning | Number of shares | Percentage of Book of investee (loss) recognized
Investor company Investee company Location Main business and products balance balance (in thousand) ownership (%) value (Note 1) (Note 1)
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. Cl?lim] Investment holding $163,387 | $163,387 5,059 100% $552,388 $(63,016) $(63,016) Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE . Software wholesale and -
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. ENTERTAINMENT INC. Taiwan information software services 95,000 95,000 2,850 100% 5,453 2,729 2,729 Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. Taiwan |Performing arts 13,500 10,000 - 100% 876 (84) (84) Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC Marsware Entertainment Inc Taiwan |'\etwork software development - 30,000 - - - 7,533 7,533 Subsidiary(Note 3)
' ' and technical services ' ' ’ y
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. Taiwan | Nework software development 47,000 47,000 4,700 100% 1,570 (147) (147) Subsidiary
and technical services
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Kobe Co., Ltd. Taiwan [General investment 98,792 98,792 - 100% 13,369 (117) (117) Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |Gamebase Digital Media Corporation Taiwan | SOftware publishing and 60,000 50,000 6,100 | 93.85% 5,981 (7,115) (6,630) Subsidiary
information software services
. Network software development Investm_ents accoupted
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. Taiwan . X 12,250 12,250 1,225 49% 1,143 (3,598) (1,763) for using the equity
and technical services method
Investments accounted
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Chia-e International Inc. Taiwan |Investment holding 20,000 20,000 814 28.21% - (4,597) - for using the equity
method
" . Second-tier
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. Mauritius |Investment holding - 47,302 - - - - - -
subsidiary(Note 4)
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. SOFTSTAR GLOBAL INC. Mauritius |Investment holding 162,277 162,277 5,327 100% - 8,323 8,323 Second-tier subsidiary
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED Samoa |Investment holding 29,888 29,888 980 100% 5,845 (414) (414) Second-tier subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE perfecten Corporation Taiwan Network software development ) 50.000 ) : ) : ) Second-tier
ENTERTAINMENT INC. P and technical services ' subsidiary(Note 5)

Note 1: If the listed company set up the overseas investment company and consolidated financial statements are primary financial statements under local regulations, information about overseas investees can be disclosed only to the extent of the overseas investment company.
Note 2: If not qualified for the situation stated in Note 1, the above table should be made under rules as follows:

(1)Information about the Company's investments should be filled in the "Investee", “Location", “Main business", "Original investment" and “Investment as of December 31, 2020" columns. The relationship between the investee and the Company

should be filled in the "Note" column.
(2)The net income for the year of each investee should be filled in the "Net income (loss) of investee" column.
(3)Only the investment income (loss) of subsidiaries or investees accounted for using the equity method recognized by the Company should be filled in the "Investment income (loss)
recognized" column. The investment income (loss) recognized should include investment income (loss) recognized by the investee.

Note 3: MARSWARE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was dissolved in November 2018 and returned the share capital on March 30, 2020.

Note 4: MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. (MWI) completed the liquidation procedure on May 22, 2020.
Note 5: PERFECTEN CORPORATION was dissolved in November 2018 and returned the share capital on June 8, 2020.
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ATTACHMENT 4: Investment in Mainland China

English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

1. The following table presents names, main businesses and products, total amount of paid-in capital, method of investment, accumulated outflow of investment from Taiwan, investment income recognized, carrying amount,

and accumulated inward remittance of earnings on investment of investees in Mainland China

Accumulated

Accumulated

Investment Accumulated
outflow outflow N
ote
Method of of investment of investment income (loss) Carrying inward remittance Note 2(2
ote
Main business Total amount of | investment | from Taiwan as at Investment flows from Taiwan as of Net income (loss) Percentage of recognized value as of of earnings as of ( @)
Investee Company and products paid-in capital | (Note 1) January 1, 2020 | Outflow | Inflow December 31, 2020 |of investee Company | ownership (Note 2) December 31, 2020 | December 31, 2020
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Information processing
i $32,856 2 $32,856 $- $- $32,856 $(107,174) 49% $(69,498) $540,865 $- A
(BENING) CO., LTD. service
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Information processing
X 134,694 2 22,294 - - 22,294 (795) 49% (390) (115,105) - A
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. service
SOFTSTAR MOBILE Development of computer
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY |hardware and network 31,846 2 31,846 - 256 31,590 7,294 - 7,294 - - | B(Note 4)

(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

technology

2. Investment quota for Mainland China:

Accumulated investment in Mainland China as of
December 31, 2020

Investment amounts authorized by Investment
Commission, MOEA

Upper limit on investment in accordance with Ministry of
Economic Affairs regulations (Note 5)

$86,740

$285,526

$523,733

Note 1: The method for engaging in investment in Mainland China include the following :

(1) Direct investment in Mainland China with capital increase through companies registered in third region.

(2) Indirectly investment in Mainland China through companies registered in a third region (Please specify the name of company in third region)

(3)Other method.

Note 2: The investment income (loss) recognized in current period :

(1)1t should be noted if it is in preparation which there is no investment profit or loss.

(2)The investment income (loss) were determined based on the following basis:
A.The financial statement was audited by an international certified public accounting firm in cooperation with an R.O.C. accounting firm.
B.The financial statement was audited by the auditors of the parent company.

C.Others.

Note 3: The amount is stated in New Taiwan Dollars.
Note 4: SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. completed the liquidation procedure on January 15, 2020.
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Note 5: The upper limit of investment amount in Mainland China is the higher of 60% of the net value or 60% of consolidated net value.

English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

ATTACHMENT 5: Major Shareholder Information

Major Shareholder Name

Share

Holding shares

Holding percentage(%)

ANGEL FUND(ASIA) INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Ruihe Co., Ltd.

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Fulong Group Co., Ltd.

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Angel Fund (ASIA) Investment Ltd.

5,875,157
3,540,274
3,318,858
3,186,247

10.10%
6.08%
5.70%
5.48%
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English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese

Auditor Report of Independent Auditors

To SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of SOFTSTAR
ENTERTAINMENT INC. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
parent company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and notes to the parent company only financial statements,
including the summary of significant accounting policies (together “the parent company only

financial statements”).

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, in conformity with the requirements
of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company and in accordance with the Norm of Professional
Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of 2020 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Revenue Recognition —Royalties

The Company’s royalties are revenue from licensing its solely developed intellectual property (IP) to
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others that grant use in game development, game operations and film content. As the circumstances
and developed products of each license agreement vary, it is necessary to identify performance
obligations and determine whether the licensing nature provides a customer with a right to access the
Company’s IP over time or with a right to use the Company’s IP at a point in time. Also, it is important
to consider the expected development period of the games, game operation cycles, industry practices
and historical experiences to estimate the duration of revenue allocation and variable consideration
estimation, and to regularly review the reasonableness of estimation assumptions. As the Company’s
revenue recognition of royalties is significant and requires management judgement, we therefore
consider this as a key audit matter.

In response to the risk of material misstatement regarding recognition of royalties, our audit
procedures included, but were not limited to:

5. Understanding the approach in which royalty revenue is recognized, evaluating and testing the
internal controls regarding the recognition of royalties;

6. Obtaining the license agreements, identifying performance obligations, defining the transaction
prices, and determining whether revenues are recognized over time or at a point in time;

7. Obtaining the details of recognition of royalties and confirming whether the performance
obligations of the license agreement have been fulfilled; obtaining the details of royalty revenue
allocation of games development and confirming the correctness of the development period and
revenue allocation stated in the license agreements;

8. Review the reasonableness of the estimated allocation periods and the correctness of the
calculation of royalty revenues allocation provided by the Company.

We also considered the appropriateness of the parent company only financial statements disclosure
regarding royalty revenue and contract liabilities in Note 5 and 6.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company
Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee or supervisors, are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
IS not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent
company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

7. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

8. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.

9. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

10. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the
Company. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

11. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the parent company only financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

215



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of 2020 parent company only financial statements and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Yu, Chien-Ju
Yang, Chih-Huei

Ernst & Young, Taiwan
March 12, 2021

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position and results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not
those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practice to audit such financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

As of As of
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Assets Notes 2020 2019 Liabilities and Equity Notes 2020 2019
Current assets Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 4 and 6 $167,540 $114,752 Contract liabilities, current 4 and 6 $6,039 $24,805
Contract assets, current 4,6and7 62,573 72,418 Accounts payable 69,729 82,875
Accounts receivable, net 4 and 6 140,380 99,065 Accounts payable-related parties 7 2,686 43,564
Accounts receivable-related parties, net 4, 6and 7 31,277 28,740 Other payables 6 37,698 61,846
Other receivables 4 3 - Other payables-related parties 7 256 -
Other receivables-related parties 7 1,070 9,572 Current income tax liabilities 4 and 6 14,779 17,549
Current income tax assets 556 4,149 Lease liabilities, current 4,6and 7 9,388 20,496
Prepayment 19,745 46,246 Current portion of long-term borrowings 4,6and 8 65,919 50,350
Other financial assets, current 8 14,033 21 Other current liabilities 1,135 1,330
Total current assets 437,177 374,963 Total current liabilities 207,629 302,815
Non-current assets Non-current liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through other Long-term borrowings 4,6and 8 65,399 57,392
comprehensive income, non-current 4and 6 50,183 41,274 Deferred tax liabilities 4and 6 40 1,377
Investments accounted for using the
equity method 4and 6 580,780 657,713 Lease liabilities, non-current 4and 6 8,983 9,832
Contract assets, non-current 4and 6 25,842 3,999 Net defined benefit liabilities 4 and 6 20,897 20,986
Property, plant and equipment 4and 6 7,465 10,396 Other noncurrent liabilities 4and 6 - 2,540
Right-of-use assets 4 and 6 18,636 30,348 Total non-current liabilities 95,319 92,127
Intangible assets 4 and 6 2,141 10,230
Deferred tax assets 4 and 6 18,046 33,969 Total liabilities 302,948 394,942
Refundable deposits 7,056 5,651
Prepayment for investments 1,296 1,296  Equity
Other financial assets, non-current c 27,000 30,000 Common stock 4 and 6 630,643 492,945
Total non-current assets 738,445 824,876 Additional paid-in capital 4and 6 112,360 162,992
Retained earnings 4and 6
Legal reserve 47,123 14,582
Special reserve 281,771 129,557
Unappropriated earnings 98,402 325,404
Other components of equity (297,625) (320,583)
Total equity 872,674 804,897
Total assets $1,175,622 $1,199,839  Total liabilities and equity $1,175,622 $1,199,839

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

217



English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings per Share)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Item Notes 2020 2019
Net sales 4,5 6and 7 $428,552 $377,307
Cost of goods sold 7 (61,954) (142,888)
Gross profit 6and 7 366,598 234,419
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing expenses (26,808) (62,593)
General and administrative expenses (70,472) (101,915)
Research and development expenses (166,552) (260,016)
Expected credit losses 6 34,672 (61,000)
Subtotal (229,160) (485,524)
Operating income 137,438 (251,105)
Non-operating income and expenses
Other income 6 22,432 5,463
Other gains and losses 6 (1,646) (12,287)
Finance costs 6 (2,660) (4,212)
Share of profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using equity method 6 (61,495) 582,144
Subtotal (43,369) 571,108
Profit before income tax 94,069 320,003
Income tax expense 4 and 6 (37,173) 6,036
Net income 56,896 326,039
Other comprehensive income (loss) 4and 6
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 89 328
Unrealized gains or losses from financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive loss 8,897 (111,730)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (1,586) (21,784)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from translating the financial statements
of foreign operations (16,625) 9,154
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax (9,225) (124,032)
Total comprehensive income $47,671 $202,007
Earnings per share (NTD) 4and 6
Earnings per share-basic $0.91 $5.26
Earnings per share-diluted $0.90 $5.19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

218



English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Retained Earnings

Others Components of Equity

Exchange
Differences
Resulting from
Translating the

Unrealized Gains
or Losses from
Financial Assets at

Financial Fair Value
Statements of Through Other Unearned stock-
Additional Unappropriated Foreign Comprehensive Based Employee
Description Common Stock Paid-in Capital Legal Reserve Special reserve Earnings Operations Loss Compensation Treasury Share Total
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $477,945 $179,197 $1,925 $15,648 $126,566 $(7,874) $(149,537) $(157,500) $- $486,370
Appropriation and distribution of 2018 retained
earnings
Legal reserve - - 12,657 - (12,657) - - - - -
Special reserve - - - 113,909 (113,909) - - - - -
Net income in 2019 - - - - 326,039 - - - - 326,039
Other comprehensive income (loss) in 2019 - - - - 328 9,154 (133,514) - - (124,032)
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - 326,367 9,154 (133,514) - - 202,007
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries - (1,205) - - (963) - - - - (2,168)
Share-based payment transactions 15,000 (15,000) - - - - - 118,688 - 118,688
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $492,945 $162,992 $14,582 $129,557 $325,404 $1,280 $(283,051) $(38,812) $- $804,897
Balance as of January 1, 2020 $492,945 $162,992 $14,582 $129,557 $325,404 $1,280 $(283,051) $(38,812) $- $804,897
Appropriation and distribution of 2019 retained
earnings
Legal reserve - - 32,541 - (32,541) - - - - -
Special reserve - - - 152,214 (152,214) - - - - -
Cash dividends - - - - (9,858) - - - - (9,858)
Stock dividends 88,719 - - - (88,719) - - - - -
Changes in other capital surplus -
Stock dividends from additional paid-in capital 49,289 (49,289) - - - - - - - -
Net income in 2020 - - - - 56,896 - - - - 56,896
Other comprehensive income (loss) in 2020 - - - - 89 (16,625) 7,311 - - (9,225)
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - 56,985 (16,625) 7,311 - - 47,671
Repurchase of treasury share - - - - - - - - (1,023) (1,023)
Retirement of treasury share (250) (773) - - - - - - 1,023 -
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries - - - - (655) - - - - (655)
Share-based payment transactions (60) (570) - - - - - 32,272 - 31,642
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $630,643 $112,360 $47,123 $281,771 $98,402 $(15,345) $(275,740) $(6,540) $- $872,674

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.
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Description 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax $94,069 $320,003
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 21,300 24,962
Amortization 11,189 8,518
Expected credit losses (34,672) 61,000
Interest expense 2,660 4,212
Interest income (154) (963)
Share-based payments expense 31,642 118,688
Share of net loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 61,495 (582,144)
Gain disposal of property, plant and equipment (52) (56)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets (576) -
Gain on disposal of investment - (18)
Impairment loss from non-financial assets - 9,426
Loss on lease modification 23 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contract assets (11,998) 14,226
Accounts receivable, net 890 (78,770)
Accounts receivable-related parties, net (2,537) (13,039)
Other receivables 3) 183
Other receivables-related parties 3,971 (1,263)
Prepayment 27,324 30,537
Contract liabilities (18,766) 10,830
Accounts payable (13,146) 24,866
Accounts payable-related parties (40,878) 42,143
Other payables (23,763) 23,713
Other payables-related parties 256 (2,849)
Other current liabilities (195) 255
Net defined benefit liabilities - 86
Cash provided by operations 108,079 14,546
Interest received 154 963
Interest paid (2,672) (4,175)
Income tax paid (22,587) (23,177)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 82,974 (11,843)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (12) -
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (13,500) (25,000)
Increase in prepayments for investments - (1,296)
Capital reduction by cash on investements accounted for using the equity method 4,530 37,553
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,657) (1,080)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 52 72
Increase in guarantee deposits paid (1,405) -
Acquisition of intangible assets (3,156) (12,446)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 632 -
Other financial assets (11,012) 36,620
Net cash (used in)/provided by activities (25,528) 34,423
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings - 65,000
Decrease in short-term borrowings - (95,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 80,000 80,000
Repayment of long-term borrowings (56,424) (56,860)
Cash dividends (9,858) -
Treasury stock transactions (1,023) -
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities (17,353) (20,928)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,658) (27,788)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 52,788 (5,208)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 114,752 119,960
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $167,540 $114,752




English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

1. History and organization

Formerly known as Cyber Power Systems, Inc., SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. (“the
Company”) was incorporated in August 1998 in the Republic of China and it changed its name to
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. the same year. The Company main lines of business
include online games, game software, instructional software, and research, design and sales of
computer peripherals. On August 8, 2001, the Company listed its shares of stock on the Taipei
Stock Exchange (TPEX). The Company’s registered office and the main business location is at
6F, No. 85, Section 4, Ren’ai Road, Taipei, Republic of China (R.O.C.).

2. Date and procedures of authorization of financial statements for issue

The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 12, 2021.

3. Newly issued or revised standards and interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first time certain standards and
amendments

The Company applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are
recognized by Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) and become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The nature and impact of the new standard and
amendment had no material impact on the Company.

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) which are endorsed by FSC, but not yet adopted by the Company
as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

Effective Date issued
by IASB

a |Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to 1 January 2021

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Items | New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(@) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

The final phase amendments mainly relate to the effects of the interest rate benchmark
reform on the companie’s financial statements:

A. A company will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes to contractual cash flows as required by the reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the alternative

benchmark rate;

B. A company will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;

and

C. A company will be required to disclose information about new risks arising from the
reform and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The abovementioned amendments that are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 have no material impact on the Company.

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by
FSC, and not yet adopted by the Company as at the end of the reporting period are listed

below.
Iltems | New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date issued
by IASB

a |IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28| To be determined by
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or IASB
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Ventures

b |IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023

¢ |Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current —| 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1

d [Narrow-scope amendments of IFRS, including Amendments| 1 January 2022
to IFRS 3, Amendments to IAS 16, Amendments to 1AS 37
and the Annual Improvements

e |Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies — Amendments to 1 January 2023
IAS 1

f |Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to 1AS 8 1 January 2023
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

IFRS 10“Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28“Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an
associate or a joint venture. 1AS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions
of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest
attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires
full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended
so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is
recognized in full.

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution
of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an
investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant
accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this
model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a group of insurance contracts at the
total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The fulfilment
cash flows comprise of the following:

(1) estimates of future cash flows;

(2) Discount rate: an adjustment to reflect the time value of money and the financial risks
related to the future cash flows, to the extent that the financial risks are not included
in the estimates of the future cash flows; and

(3) arisk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The carrying amount of a company of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting
period shall be the sum of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred
claims. Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation
for contracts with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a
simplified approach (Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.
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(d)

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and it was amended in June 2020. The amendments
include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years to annual
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 (from the original effective date of 1 January 2021);
provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the costs of
applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to explain.
IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard — IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — from annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to 1AS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current.

Narrow-scope amendments of IFRS, including Amendments to IFRS 3, Amendments to
IAS 16, Amendments to IAS 37 and the Annual Improvements

A. Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

The amendments updated IFRS 3 by replacing a reference to an old version of the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting with a reference to the latest version,
which was issued in March 2018. The amendments also added an exception to the
recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential “day 2” gains or losses
arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities. Besides, the amendments clarify
existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be affected by
replacing the reference to the Conceptual Framework.

B. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS
16)
The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant
and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

C. Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
The amendments clarify what costs a company should include as the cost of fulfilling
a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous.

D. Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020
Amendment to IFRS 1
The amendment simplifies the application of IFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a

first-time adopter after its parent in relation to the measurement of cumulative
translation differences.
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Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies the fees a company includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability.

Amendment to Illustrative Examples Accompanying IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 modifies the
treatment of lease incentives relating to lessee’s leasehold improvements.

Amendment to 1AS 41

The amendment removes a requirement to exclude cash flows from taxation when
measuring fair value thereby aligning the fair value measurement requirements in 1AS
41 with those in other IFRS Standards.

(e) Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improve accounting policy disclosures that to provide more useful
information to investors and other primary users of the financial statements.

() Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8

The amendments introduce the definition of accounting estimates and included other
amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
to help companies distinguish changes in accounting estimates from changes in
accounting policies.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by
FSC at the date when the Company’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local
effective dates are to be determined by FSC. As the Company is still currently determining
the potential impact of the standards and interpretations listed under , it is not practicable to
estimate their impact on the Company at this point in time.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

(1) Statement of compliance
The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended December

31, 2020 and 2019 have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (the Regulations).
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Basis of preparation

According to article 21 of the Regulations, the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
presented in the parent company only financial reports will be the same as the allocations of
profit or loss and of other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent presented
in the financial reports prepared on a consolidated basis, and the owners' equity presented in the
parent company only financial reports will be the same as the equity attributable to owners of
the parent presented in the financial reports prepared on a consolidated basis. Therefore, the
investments in subsidiaries will be disclosed under “Investments accounted for using the equity
method” in the parent company only financial report and change in value will be adjusted.

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The parent company
only financial statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless
otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s parent company only financial statements are presented in NT$, which is also
the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company entities at their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
closing rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the
following:

(A) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a
qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are
included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.

(B) Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted
for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.

(C) Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s
net investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into NTD at the closing rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses are translated at an
average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized
in other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in
a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an associate or jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint
control, only the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and expressed in its functional currency.

Current and non-current distinction

An asset is classified as current when:

(A) The Company expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal
operating cycle.

(B) The Company holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading.

(C) The Company expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period.

(D) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

(A) The Company expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle.

(B) The Company holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading.

(C) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

(D) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do
not affect its classification.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid time deposits (including ones that have maturity within twelve months) or investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 9 Financial Instruments:
Financial Instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

(A) Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The Company accounts for regular way purchase or sales of financial assets on the trade
date.

The Company classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss considering
both factors below:

(@) the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met
and presented as note receivables, trade receivables, other financial assets, current,
refundable deposits and other financial assets, non-current etc., on balance sheet as at the
reporting date:

(@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance)
and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
when the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to
recognize the impairment gains or losses.
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Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for:

(@) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets,
the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost
of the financial asset from initial recognition.

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial
assets, the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of
the following conditions are met:

(@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are described as below:

(@ A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial
asset is derecognized or reclassified.

(b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

(c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for:

a. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial
assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the
amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

b. Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those
financial assets, the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized
cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
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Besides, for certain equity investments within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 applies, the Company made an irrevocable election to present the
changes of the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts
presented in other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit
or loss (when disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other
components of equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these
investments should be presented as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income on the balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are
recognized in profit or loss unless the dividends clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of investment.

Financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets were classified as measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income based on aforementioned criteria. All other
financial assets were measured at fair value through profit or loss and presented on the
balance sheet as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Such financial assets are measured at fair value, the gains or losses resulting from
remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss which includes any dividend or interest
received on such financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
asset measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance on debt instrument investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized in other
comprehensive income and not reduce the carrying amount in the statement of financial
position.

The Company measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that
reflects:

(@) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

(b) the time value of money; and

(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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The loss allowance is measures as follow:

(@) Atan amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition is
no longer met.

(b) Atanamount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

(c) For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of
IFRS 15, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

(d) For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16 (before
1 January 2020: IAS 17), the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

At each reporting date, the Company needs to assess whether the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a
default occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial
recognition. Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized when:

(@) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

(b) The Company has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset have been transferred

(c) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or
loss.
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(D) Financial liabilities and equity

Classification between liabilities or equity

The Company classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions of a financial liability, and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction
are accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Compound instruments

The Company evaluates the terms of the convertible bonds issued to determine whether
it contains both a liability and an equity component. Furthermore, the Company assesses
if the economic characteristics and risks of the put and call options contained in the
convertible bonds are closely related to the economic characteristics and risk of the host
contract before separating the equity element.

For the liability component excluding the derivatives, its fair value is determined based
on the rate of interest applied at that time by the market to instruments of comparable
credit status. The liability component is classified as a financial liability measured at
amortized cost before the instrument is converted or settled.

For the embedded derivative that is not closely related to the host contract (for example,
if the exercise price of the embedded call or put option is not approximately equal on each
exercise date to the amortized cost of the host debt instrument), it is classified as a liability
component and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it
qualifies for an equity component. The equity component is assigned the residual amount
after deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately
determined for the liability component. Its carrying amount is not remeasured in the
subsequent accounting periods. If the convertible bond issued does not have an equity
component, it is accounted for as a hybrid instrument in accordance with the requirements
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bond based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognized.

On conversion of a convertible bond before maturity, the carrying amount of the liability
component being the amortized cost at the date of conversion is transferred to equity.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss. A
financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

(@) itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the near term;

(b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

(c) it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).

If a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid (combined)
contract may be designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss; or a
financial liability may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss when doing so
results in more relevant information, because either:

(@) iteliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or

(b) a Company of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
Company is provided internally on that basis to the key management personnel.

Gains or losses on the subsequent measurement of liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss including interest paid are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and
borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after
initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or transaction costs.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
profit or loss.

(E) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

(A) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(B) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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(9) Investments accounted for using the equity method

According to Art. 21 of Regulation Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, the Company’s investments in its subsidiaries are presented as Investments
accounted for using equity method with necessary adjustments so that the net income and
other comprehensive income of individual financial report equal the net income and other
comprehensive income attributed to the parent of consolidated financial report, and that the
shareholder’s equity of individual financial report equals the shareholder’s equity attributed
to the parent of consolidated financial report. Considering the accounting treatment for
investment in subsidiaries specified in IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Reports”, and the
different accounting treatments for different level of investees, necessary adjustments are
made by debiting or crediting “Investments accounted for using equity method”, “Share of
profit or loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method”,
and “Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method”.

The Company’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method other
than those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale. An associate is an entity over
which the Company has significant influence. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangements have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the balance sheet at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Company’s share of net assets
of the associate or joint venture. After the interest in the associate or joint venture is reduced
to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that
the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Company and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s
related interest in the associate or joint venture.

When changes in the net assets of an associate or joint venture occur and not those that are
recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income and do not affects the Company’s
percentage of ownership interests in the associate or joint venture, the Company recognizes
such changes in equity based on its percentage of ownership interests. The resulting capital
surplus recognized will be reclassified to profit or loss at the time of disposing the associate
or joint venture on a pro rata basis.
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When the associate or joint venture issues new stock, and the Company’s interest in an
associate is reduced or increased as the Company fails to acquire shares newly issued in the
associate or joint venture proportionately to its original ownership interest, the increase or
decrease in the interest in the associate or joint venture is recognized in Additional paid in
capital and investments accounted for using the equity method. When the interest in the
associate or joint venture is reduced, the cumulative amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or other appropriate items. The
aforementioned capital surplus recognized is reclassified to profit or loss on a pro rata basis
when the Company disposes the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Company.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture is impaired in accordance
with IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. If this is the case the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate or joint venture and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of
profit or loss of an associate’ in the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In determining the value in use of the investment, the Company
estimates:

(@) Its share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate or joint venture, including the cash flows from the operations of the
associate or joint venture and the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment; or

(b) The present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to
be received from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

Because goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate or
joint venture is not separately recognized, it is not tested for impairment separately by
applying the requirements for impairment testing goodwill in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Company measures
and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss,
furthermore, if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the Company continues
to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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(10) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for
construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognized such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that
are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of 1AS 16
Property, plant and equipment. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the
following assets:

Machinery and equipment 1~5 years
Office equipment 3~5 years
Right-of-use assets 1~5 years
Leasehold improvements 2~6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(11) Leases

The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Company assesses whether,
throughout the period of use, has both of the following:

(A) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified

asset; and
(B) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.
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For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Company accounts for each lease component
within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a
contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease
components shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier,
would charge the Company for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an
observable stand-alone price is not readily available, the Company estimates the stand-alone
price, maximising the use of observable information.

Company as a lessee

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the
Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Company is
the lessee of those lease contracts.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement
date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date:

(A) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

(B) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

(C) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

(D) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

(E) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability on an amortised cost

basis, which increases the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using an
effective interest method; and reduces the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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At the commencement date, the Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of
the right-of-use asset comprises:

(A) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(B) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

(C) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(D) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Company measures the right-of-use
asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. That
is, the Company measures the right-of-use applying a cost model.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease
term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase
option, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the
end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Company depreciates the right-
of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The Company applies IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the right-of-use
asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Except for those leases that the Company accounted for as short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, the Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet
and separately presents lease-related interest expense and depreciation charge in the
statements comprehensive income.

For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Company elects to recognize the lease
payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the

lease term or another systematic basis.

Company as a lessor

At inception of a contract, the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as
an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset.
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For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15.

The Company recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred.

(12) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Trademark and licences

Trademark and licences acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Trademark and licences are intangible assets with finite useful lives and are amortized over
three to twenty years.
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Computer software

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life (3 to 5 years).

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Trademark Licences Computer software
Useful lives Finite Finite Finite
Amortization method used Amortized on a Amortized on a straight- Amortized on a straight-
straight-line basis over line basis over the line basis over the
the period of the estimated useful life estimated useful life
trademark
Internally generated or ~ Acquired Acquired Acquired

acquired

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
an asset in the scope of 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn
increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.
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A cash generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually at the same time, irrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment. If an impairment loss is to be recognized, it is first allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (group of
units), then to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (group of units). Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot
be reversed in future periods for any reason.

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.

(14) Treasury stocks

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and
deducted from equity. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognized in equity.

(15) Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue arising from contracts are primarily related to royalties. Licensing
content includes licensing its solely developed intellectual property (IP) to others that grant
use in game development, game operations and film content and online game operation
services. The accounting policies are explained as follow:

Sale of goods

The Company manufactures and sells products. Sales are recognized when control of the
goods is transferred to the customer and the goods are delivered to the customers. The main
products of the Company are game software and related peripherals and revenue is recognized
based on the consideration stated in the contract.

The credit period of the Company’s sale of goods is from 30 to 90 days. For most of the
contracts, when the Company transfers the goods to customers and has a right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional, these contracts are recognized as accounts receivables.
The Company usually collects the payments shortly after transfer of goods to customers;
therefore, there is no significant financing component to the contract.
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Rendering of services

(A) The Company provides services related to game licensing. The Company identifies

(B)

(©)

performance obligations and determines whether the licensing provides a customer with a
right to access the Company’s IP over time or with a right to use the Company’s IP at a
point in time. Based on experience, the Company uses the expected value method to
estimate variable consideration. The scope is limited to the accumulated amount of the
revenue recognized which is likely to not be significantly reversed in the subsequent period,
when the uncertainty associated with the contracts are eliminated. For some contracts, if
the Company has fulfilled the performance obligation but does not have a right to an
unconditional consideration, these contacts should be presented as contract assets. Besides,
loss allowance for contract assets was assessed in accordance with IFRS 9. For some
rendering of services contracts, when part of the consideration was received from customers
upon signing the contract, and the Company owns the obligation to provide the services
subsequently, these contracts should be recognized as contract liabilities.

The Company provides services related to online games. The Company sells online game
time points to subsequently provide services, therefore sales amount from online game
time points is recognized as a contract liabilities and revenue is subsequently recognized
based on actual usage.

The Company usually fulfills its obligation and reclasses the contract liabilities to revenue
within an year, thus, no significant financing component arose.

The Company provides services related to the operation of online games. When the
players recharge their game credits, they can subsequently use the credits to buy virtual
items in the game. The Company recognizes the proceeds received from the sales of game
points as contract liabilities. Revenue is recognized in accordance with the estimated
lifetime of the virtual items after players recharge their game credits and subsequently
use the credits to by virtual items.

The Company usually fulfills its obligation and reclasses the contract liabilities to revenue
within an year, thus, no significant financing component arose.

Costs to fulfill a contract

The Company determines fulfillment costs should be capitalized if all the following criteria
are met:

(A) costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract the entity can specifically

(B)
(©)

identify (e.g., costs relating to services to be provided under renewal of an existing
contract or costs of designing an asset to be transferred under a specific contract not yet
approved);

costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future;

costs are expected to be recovered.
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(16) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in line with the requirements which are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets may be capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses incurred during the period. The borrowing
costs include interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(17) Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate.

(18) Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company is entitled to a pension plan that is managed by an
independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets are deposited under the
committee’s name in the specific bank account and hence, not associated with the Company.
Therefore fund assets are not included in the Company’s parent company only financial
statements. Pension benefits for employees of the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are
provided in accordance with the respective local regulations.

For the defined contribution plan, the Company will make a monthly contribution of no less
than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the plan. The Company
recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in which the contribution
becomes due.

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected
Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Re-
measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are
recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss
on the earlier of:

(A) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(B) the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs or termination benefits
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payment.

(19) Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions between the Company is recognized based on the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the equity instruments is determined
by using an appropriate pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase
in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense
recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

The cost of restricted stocks issued is recognized as salary expense based on the fair value of
the equity instruments on the grant date, together with a corresponding increase in other capital
reserves in equity, over the vesting period. The Company recognized unearned employee
salary which is a transitional contra equity account; the balance in the account will be
recognized as salary expense over the passage of vesting period.

(20) Income taxes

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the
subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’ meeting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(A) Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(B) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

(A) Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

(B) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized accordingly.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s parent company only financial Statements requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty arising from these assumptions and estimates could
result in material adjustments to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.
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Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements:

A. Revenue recognition — royalties

In accordance with IRFS 15, the Company identifies performance obligations and
determine whether the licensing provides a customer with a right to access the Company’s
IP over time or with a right to use the Company’s IP at a point in time and recognizes
royalty revenue when performance obligations have been satisfied.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date bear a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. These estimates and
assumptions are discussed below.

A. Estimate of variable consideration

With the Company’s business practices, the Company expects to provide a price
concession. This price concession will depend on the situation of the industry at the time
and the customer. The expected value method is used to estimate variable consideration to
predict the amount of the consideration that the Company will be entitled to. When the
aforementioned method for estimating variable consideration is included in the transaction
price, the scope is limited to the accumulated amount of the revenue recognized, which is
likely to not be significantly reversed in the subsequent period when the uncertainty
associated with the contracts are eliminated.

B. Accounts receivables—estimate of impairment loss

The Company estimates the impairment loss of accounts receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash
flows that expects to receive (forward-looking information). However, as the impact from
the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the
undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details.
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C. Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the balance
sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the income approach (i.e. the discounted cash flows model) or market
approach. Changes in assumptions used in the valuation model could affect the reported
fair value of the financial instruments. Please refer to Note 12 for more details.

D. Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date less incremental costs that would be directly
attributable to the disposal of the asset or cash generating unit. The value in use calculation
IS based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows projections are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company
is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

E. Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international
business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
counties in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by
the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective company's domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which
the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences
together with future tax planning strategies.
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6. Contents of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Cash on hand & petty cash $239 $235
Checking and saving accounts 167,301 114,517
Total $167,540 $114,752
(2) Accounts receivable and Accounts receivable-related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Accounts receivable $142,030 $142,920
Less: loss allowance (1,650) (43,855)
Subtotal 140,380 99,065
Accounts receivable from related parties 31,277 28,740
Less: loss allowance - -
Subtotal 31,277 28,740
Total $171,657 $127,805

Accounts receivable were not pledged.

Accounts receivable are generally on 30-90 day terms. The total carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are NT$173,307 thousand and NT$171,660 thousand,
respectively. Please refer to Note 6 (13) for more details on loss allowance of accounts
receivable for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Please refer to Note 12 for more

details on credit risk management.

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, noncurrent

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Equity instrument investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, noncurrent:
Listed stocks
UNIPLUS ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. $12 $-
Emerging market stock
SNSPLUS, INC. 3,802 $5,351
Private company stocks
AUER MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT CORP. 40,600 27,822
TAIWAN SMART CARD CO. 3,598 3,848
DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTAINMENT CORP. (Notel) 2,171 4,253
FUNFIA INC. - -
Total $50,138 $41,274

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged.
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(4) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The following table lists the investments accounted for using the equity method of the
Company:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Percentage of Percentage of
Carrying ownership Carrying ownership
Investees amount (%) amount (%)
Investments in subsidiaries:
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. $552,388 100% $632,029 100%
Kobe Co., Ltd. 13,369 100% 15,072 100%
Gamebase Digital Media Corporation 5,981 93.85% 3,266 92.73%
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE
ENTERTAIMENT INC. 5,453 100% 2,724 100%
SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. 1,570 100% 1,716 100%
SOFTSTAR AGENCY CO., LTD. 876 100% - 100%
Subtotal 579,637 654,807
Investments in associates:
Chia-e International Inc. - 28.21% - 28.21%
A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. 1,143 49% 2,906 49%
Total $580,780 $657,713

(A) On December 14, 2017, the Company purchased 80% of Gamebase Digital Media
Corporation’s shares from CITE PUBLISHING LTD. for operational strategy purposes.
In addition, in August 2018, Gamebase Digital Media Corporation increased its capital
by NT$10,000 thousand in cash. The capital increase represents 1,000 thousand shares,
all of which were subscribed by the Company. After the capital increase, the Company
owns 86.67% of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation’s shares. Gamebase Digital Media
Corporation increased its capital by NT$5,000 thousand, NT$5,000 thousand, NT$10,000
thousand and NT$5,000 thousand in Jaunary, March, May and October 2019,
respectively, totalling NT$25,000 thousand and 2,500 thousand shares. The new shares
were subscribed by the Company and the registration process is completed. After the
capital increase, the Company owns 92.73% of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation’s
shares. Gamebase Digital Media Corporation increased its capital by NT$5,000 thousand
and NT$5,000 thousand in March and December 2020, respectively, totaling NT$10,000
thousand and 1,000 thousand shares. The new shares were subscribed by the Company
and the registration process is completed. After the capital increase, the Company owns
93.85% of Gamebase Digital Media Corporation’s shares.
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(B) SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. was dissolved in December 2020, and is still in the
liquidation process.

(C) SOFTSTAR AGENCY CORPORATION increased its capital by NT$3,000 thousand
and NT$500 thousand in March and December 2020, respectively, totalling NT$3,500
thousand and 350 thousand shares. The new shares were subscribed by the Company and
the registration process is completed.

(D) The subsidiaries are recognized under “Investment accounted for using the equity
method” in the individual financial reports, and the necessary evaluation
adjustments are made.

(E) No investments accounted for using the equity method were pledged.
(F) Investment in associates

The Company assesses the recoverable amounts of its investment in Chia-e International Inc.,
and recognized an impairment loss of NT$9,426 thousand in 2019.

The Company’s investments in Chia-e International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are not
individually material. The aggregate carrying amount of the Company’s interests in Chia-e
International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are NT$1,143 thousand and NT$2,906 thousand
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. The aggregate financial information of the Company’s
investments in Chia-e International Inc. and A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. are as follows:

For the years ended
December, 31

2020 2019
Profit or loss from continuing operations $(8,195) $(10,912)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive loss $(8,195) $(10,912)

The Company recognized the investment income(loss) based on the financial information of
the investees recognized in investments accounted for under the equity method. Such financial
information are as follow:
Loss on investment
For the years ended
December 31

2020 2019
Chia-e International Inc. $- $(1,303)
A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. (1,763) (2,937)
Total $(1,763) $(4,240)

The aforementioned associates had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at
December 31, 2020. No investments accounted for using the equity method were pledged.
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(5) Property, plant and equipment

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Owner occupied property, plant and equipment $7,465 $10,396

Machinery and Office Leasehold
equipment equipment improvements Total

Cost:
As of January 1, 2020 $9,936 $6,874 $13,892 $30,702
Additions 438 1,219 - 1,657
Disposals - (406) (221) (627)
Transfers (404) 404 - -
As of December 31, 2020 $9,970 $8,091 $13,671 $31,732
As of January 1, 2019 $9,537 $7,522 $13,778 $30,837
Additions 761 205 114 1,080
Disposals (155) (1,060) - (1,215)
Transfers (207) 207 - -
As of December 31, 2019 $9,936 $6,874 $13,892 $30,702
Depreciation and impairment:
As of January 1, 2020 $6,450 $5,278 $8,578 $20,306
Depreciation 1,620 981 1,987 4,588
Disposals - (406) (221) (627)
Transfers (428) 428 - -
As of December 31, 2020 $7,642 $6,281 $10,344 $24,267
As of January 1, 2019 $5,404 $4,714 $6,448 $16,566
Depreciation 1,693 1,116 2,130 4,939
Disposals (155) (1,044) - (1,299)
Transfers (492) 492 - -
As of December 31, 2019 $6,450 $5,278 $8,578 $20,306
Net carrying amounts as of:
December 31, 2020 $2,328 $1,810 $3,327 $7,465
December 31, 2019 $3,486 $1,596 $5,314 $10,396

Property, plant and equipment were not pledged.
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(6) Intangible assets

Computer

Trademarks Copyright software Total
Cost:
As of January 1, 2020 $3,951 $5,429 $27,605 $36,985
Addition-acquired separately - - 3,156 3,156
Deduction-sales - - (673) (673)
Deduction-derecognized (3,591) - - (3,951)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $5,429 $30,088 $35,517
As of January 1, 2019 $3,951 $- $31,507 $35,458
Addition-acquired separately - 5,429 7,017 12,446
Deduction-disposals - - (10,919) (10,919)
As of December 31, 2019 $3,951 $5,429 $27,605 $36,985
Amortization and impairment:
As of January 1, 2020 $3,951 $362 $22,442 $26,755
Amortization - 5,067 6,122 11,189
Deduction-sales - - (617) (617)
Deduction-derecognized (3,951) - - (3,951)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $5,429 $27,947 $33,376
As of January 1, 2019 $3,951 $- $25,205 $29,156
Amortization - 362 8,156 8,518
Deduction-derecognized - - (10,919) (10,919)
As of December 31, 2019 $3,951 $362 $22,442 $26,755
Net carrying amount as of:
December 31, 2020 $- $- $2,141 $2,141
December 31, 2019 $- $5,067 $5,163 $10,230

Amortization expense of intangible assets under the statement of comprehensive income:

For the years ended
December, 31

2020 2019
Operating costs $- $-
Research and development expenses $5,595 $1,029
General and administrative expenses $5,594 $7,489
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Other payables

Salary payable

Professional service fees payable

Insurance payable
Other accrued expenses
Total

Long-term borrowings

Details of long-term loans are as follows:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
$19,437 $39,815
2,980 3,447
1,724 1,879
13,557 16,705
$37,698 $61,846

As of
December 31, Interest
Lenders 2020 Rate (%) Maturity date and terms of repayment
Taiwan Business Bank 5000 1.95% Repayable quarterly from March 16, 2017 to
secured loan March 16, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Taiwan Business Bank 8,333  1.95% Repayable monthly from October 23, 2018
secured loan to October 23, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Bank of Kaohsiung secured 6,805 1,89% Repayable monthly from December 19, 2018
loan to December 19, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Taichung Commercial Bank 11,000 2.03% Repaid NT2,000 thousand quarterly from
secured loan April 1, 2019 to April 1, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Bank of Panhsin secured 4,242  2,02% Repayable monthly from May 29, 2019 to
loan May 29, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Hua Nan Bank secured loan 8,333  2.02% Repayable monthly from August 5, 2019 to
August 5, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Chang Hwa Bank secured 11,667 2.01% Repayable quarterly from September 20,
loan 2019 to September 20, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
First Bank unsecured loan 20,938  2.02% Repayable monthly from June 12, 2020 to
June 12, 2023. Interest paid monthly.
Shin Kong Bank secured 20,000 1.99% Repayable monthly from December 19,
loan 2020 to December 19, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Taiwan Cooperative Bank 35,000 2.00% Repayable monthly from December 24,
secured loan 2020 to December 24, 2025. Interest paid
monthly.
Subtotal 131,318
Less: current portion (65,919)
Total $65,399
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As of
December 31, Interest
Lenders 2019 Rate (%) Maturity date and terms of repayment
Taiwan Business Bank $9,000 2.2% Repayable quarterly from March 16, 2017 to
secured loan March 16, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Taiwan Business Bank 18,334 2.2% Repayable monthly from October 23, 2018
secured loan to October 23, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Bank of Kaohsiung secured 13,479 2.2% Repayable monthly from December 19, 2018
loan to December 19, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Taichung Commercial Bank 21,000 2.3% Repaid NT2,000 thousand quarterly from
secured loan April 1, 2019 to April 1, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Bank of Panhsin secured 14,263 2.3% Repayable monthly from May 29, 2019 to
loan May 29, 2021. Interest paid monthly.
Hua Nan Bank secured loan 13,333 2.3% Repayable monthly from August 5, 2019 to
August 5, 2022. Interest paid monthly.
Chang Hwa Bank secured 18,333  2.26% Repayable quarterly from September 20,
loan 2019 to September 20, 2022. Interest paid
monthly.
Subtotal 107,742
Less: current portion (50,350)
Total $57,392

Please refer to Note 8 for further details on pledged long-term borrowings.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company adopts a defined contribution plan in accordance with the Labor Pension Act
of the R.O.C. Under the Labor Pension Act, and the Company will make monthly
contributions of no less than 6% of the employee’s monthly wages to the employees’
individual pension accounts. The Company has made monthly contributions of 6% of each

individual employee’s salaries or wages to employees’ pension accounts.

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019 are NT$4,985 thousand and NT$5,282 thousand, respectively.
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Defined benefits plan

The Company adopts a defined benefit plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act of
the R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units of service years and the
average salaries in the last month of the service year. Two units per year are awarded for the
first 15 years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the completion of the 15th
year. The total units shall not exceed 45 units. Under the Labor standards Act, The Company
contributes an amount equivalent to 2% of the employees’ total salaries and wages on a
monthly basis to the pension fund deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the
administered pension fund committee. At the end of each year, if the balance in the designated
labor pension reserve funds is inadequate to cover the benefit estimated to be paid in the
following year, the Company will make up the difference in one appropriation before the end
of March in the following year.

The Ministry of Labor is in charge of establishing and implementing the fund utilization plan
in accordance with the regulations for revenues, expenditures, safeguard and utilization of the
labor retirement fund. The pension fund is invested in-house or under mandate, based on a
passive-aggressive investment strategy for long-term profitability. The Ministry of Labor
establishes checks and risk management mechanism based on the assessment of risk factors
including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, in order to maintain adequate manager
flexibility to achieve targeted return without over-exposure of risk. With regard to utilization
of the pension fund, the minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial
statement shall not be less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-
year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. Treasury funds can be used
to cover the deficits after the approval of the competent authority. As the Company does not
participate in the operation and management of the pension fund, no disclosure on the fair
value of the plan assets categorized in different classes could be made in accordance with
paragraph 142 of IAS 19. The Company expects to contribute NT$297 thousand to its defined
benefit plan during the 12 months after December 31, 2020.

The average-weighted duration of the defined benefits plan obligation as at December 31,
2020 and 2019, are 11 years and 12 years.

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Current period service costs $342 $376
Interest income or expense 147 212
Total $489 $588

257



English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans
and fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

As of
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019
Present value of the pension obligation
under defined benefit pension plans $32,946 $37,189 $38,906
Fair value of plan assets (12,049) (16,203) (17,678)
Net defined benefit liabilities, noncurrent $20,897 $20,986 $21,228

Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Net defined
Defined benefit
benefit Fair value of liability/
obligation plan assets (assets)
As of January 1, 2019 $38,906 $(17,678) $21,228
Current period service costs 376 - 376
Net interest expense (income) 389 (177) 212
Subtotal 765 (177) 588
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from
changes in financial assumptions 1,289 - 1,289
Experience adjustments (951) (666) (1,617)
Subtotal 338 (666) (328)
Payments from the plan (2,820) 2,820 -
Contributions by employer - (502) (502)
As of December 31, 2019 37,189 (16,203) 20,986
Current period service costs 342 - 342
Net interest expense (income) 260 (113) 147
Subtotal 602 (113) 489
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from
changes in financial assumptions 1,056 - 1,056
Experience adjustments (593) (552) (1,145)
Subtotal 463 (552) (89)
Payments from the plan (5,308) 5,308 -
Contributions by employer - (489) (489)
As of December 31, 2020 $32,946 $(12,049) $20,897
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The following significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the
defined benefit obligation:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Discount rate 0.40% 0.70%
Expected rate of salary increases 2.00% 2.00%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is, as

shown below:
2020 2019
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit

obligation obligation obligation obligation
Discount rate increase by 0.25% $- $(917) $- $(1,078)
Discount rate decrease by 0.25% 950 - 1,118 -
Future salary increase by 0.25% 850 - 1,007 -
Future salary decrease by 0.25% - (826) - (978)

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for example:
change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses compared to the previous period.

(10) Equities
(A) Common stock

The Company’s authorized capital was NT$1,300,000 thousand NT$1,000,000 thousand
and issued capital were NT$630,643 thousand and NT$492,945 thousand, and the number
of shares was 63,064 thousand and 49,295 thousand as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, each at a par value of NT$10. Each share has one voting right and a right to
receive dividends.
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On April 30, 2015, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance no
more than 10,000 thousand shares of common stock through private placement issuance.
The subscription price of the private placement common stock was NT$84.61 per share,
totaling 2,000 thousand shares. The private placement date was March 25, 2016. The
capital increase by cash is for the purpose of enriching working capital and repaying bank
loans. The Company received NT$169,220 thousand through private placement issuance
and has completed registration for change. Apart from the fact that private placement
common stock are subject to the Securities and Exchange Act’s restrictions of transfer
and must reapply for public offering after three years for public transaction, the remaining
rights and obligations are the same as other issued common stock.

On November 1, 2018, the provisional shareholders' meeting of the Company approved
the issuance of an additional 1,500 thousand shares of restricted employee stock and the
grant price is NT$0. The rights and obligations of the issuance of ordinary shares are the
same as those of other issued ordinary shares, except for the transfer rights in which
employees must first reach the vested conditions. The new share issuance has been
declared effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission on November 21, 2018, and
was issued on January 5, 2019 as the based date for capital increase. The registration was
completed.

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved the retirement of treasury
stock, totaling 25 thousand shares. The retirement date was set on July 29, 2020 and the
registration was completed on August 4, 2020.

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company redeemed and cancelled
6 thousand shares and 0 thousand shares of issued restricted stocks for employees,
respectively.The registration was completed on March 20, 2020.

On June 10, 2019, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock through private placement issuance. The total number of shares issued by
private placement issuance is no more than 10 million shares, and the per value of each
share is NT$10. It is expected to be issued three times within one year from the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders date of resolution. On March 5, 2020, the shareholders' meeting
of the Company approved suspending the issuance and reported in the shareholders'
meeting of the Company on June 9, 2020.

On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock through private placement issuance. The total number of shares issued by
private placement issuance is no more than 10 million shares, and the per value of each
share is NT$10. It is expected to be issued three times within one year from the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders date of resolution.
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(B)

On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock from unappropriated earnings in the amount of NT$88,719 thousand, and
the per value of each share is NT$10. The base date for capital increase was November
3, 2020. In addition, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the issuance of
common stock from additional paid-in capital in the amount of NT$49,289 thousand, and
the per value of each share is NT$10. The base date for capital increase was December
26, 2020. Total of NT$13,801 thousand of new ordinary shares was issued, and the
registration was completed and approved by competent authority.

Capital surplus
As of December,
2020 2019
Additional Paid-in Capital $69,895 $77,492
Restricted employee stock 42,465 85,500
Total $112,360 $162,992

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall not be used except for offset the
deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the capital
surplus generated from the excess of the issuance price over the per value of capital and
donations. The distribution could be made in cash or in the form of dividend shares to its
shareholders in proportion to the number of shares.

On June 9, 2020, the shareholders' meeting of the Company approved the distribution of
stock dividend from additional paid-in capital in the amount NT$49,289 thousand.l
hundred new shares to be distributed for every 1 thousand shares. However, the Company
issued common stock from unappropriated earnings for 8,872 thousand shares first, which
caused outstanding shares increased. Therefore, the actual distribution rate is 84,7822
shares for every thousand shares.

(C) Treasury stock

On March 23,2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to repurchase treasury
stocks. It was expected to buy 600,000 shares between March 24, 2020 to May 22, 2020
in the price between NT$31 and NT$100 per share. As of May 22, 2020, the Company
have bought back 25 thousand shares in the amount of NT$1,023 thousand.

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved the retirement of treasury

stock, totaling 25 thousand shares. The retirement date was set on July 29, 2020 and the
registration was completed on August 4, 2020.
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(D) Retained earnings and dividend policies

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, current year’s earnings, if any,
shall be distributed in the following order:

(a) Payment of all taxes and dues;

(b) Offset prior years’ operation losses;

(c) Set aside 10% of the remaining amount after deducting items (a) and (b) as legal
reserve;

(d) Set aside or reverse special reserve in accordance with law and regulations; and

(e) The distribution of the remaining portion, if any, will be recommended by the Board
of Directors and resolved in the shareholders’ meeting.

The company's dividend distribution adopts conservative principle. Paying stock dividend
is preferred. If there is a surplus, it will be distributed to shareholders as cash dividends,
but the ratio of cash dividend distribution is expected to be lower than 50% of the total
dividend distribution.

According to the Company Act, the Company is required to set aside an amount from its
earnings to legal reserve unless such legal reserve reaches the total authorized capital.
The legal reserve can be used to make good the deficit of the Company. When the
Company inccurs no loss, it may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds 25%
of the paid-in capital by issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of
shares being held by each of the shareholders.

In accordance with Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012865
and “Applicable question and answer for the provision of special reserves after the
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)”, the Company sets
aside and reverses special reserves.

Details of the 2019 earnings distribution and dividends per share as approved by the
shareholder’s meeting on June 10, 2020 is as follows:

Appropriation  Dividend per
of earnings  share (NTD)

2019 2019
Legal reserve $32,541
Special reserve 152,214
Common stock cash dividend 9,858 $0.2
Common stock stock dividend 88,719 1.8

Please refer to Note 6(15) for details on employees’ compensation and remuneration to
directors and supervisors.
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(11) Share-based payment plans

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to share-based payment as part of their
remunerations. The company grants the equity instruments to the employees in return for the
services they provide. These plans are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

(A) The Company applied for an additional issuance of restricted employee stock in 2018 and
issued on January 5, 2019 of NT$15,000 thousand, totaling 1,500 thousand shares, and
the share price was NT$105 per share. The share-based payment agreement is as follows:

Total numbers of Contract
Type of grant Date of grant options granted (unit) ~ period  Vesting Conditions

Restricted employee  December 5, 1,500,000 28 months  Achievement of
stock plan (Note 1) 2018 performance
conditions (Note 2)

Note 1. The restricted employee stock rights issued by the Company are not transferable
during the contract period, but they do not restrict voting rights and included in
the distribution of dividends. Employees who leave during the vested period are
required to return the shares without the need to return the dividends obtained.

Note 2: A portion of the restricted employee stock will be vested at the end of four
months, sixteen months and twenty-eight months if the employee’s performance
reaches the target set by the company. The maximum share vested will be 40%,
30% and 30% in each of the three periods.

The detail information of upon share-based payment agreement is as follow:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
numbers numbers
(Thousand (Thousand
shares) shares)
As of January 1 900 -
Issued - 1500
Cancelled (6) -
Less: vested (447) (600)
As of December 31 447 900
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(B) The expenses recognized for employee services received for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, are shown in the following table:

For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019

Total expense arising from equity-settled share-based
payment transactions $31,642 $118,688

(12) Operating revenue

For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of service $428,552 $377,307

Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers during the year ended December 31, 2020
is as follows:

(A) Disaggregation of revenue

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point in time $141,600 $81,751
Over time 286,952 295,556
Total $428,552 $377,307
(B) Contract balances
Net contract assets (liabilities) are as follows:
Ending Beginning
balance balance Difference %
Contract assets, current $62,573 $72,418 $(9,845) (14)%
Contract assets, noncurrent 25,842 3,999 21,843 546%
Contract liabilities, current (6,039) (24,805) 18,766 (76)%
Net contract assets $82,376 $51,612 $30,764
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Contract assets increased by NT$11,998 thousand from December 31, 2019 to December
31, 2020, mainly due to a NT$22,661 thousand contract assets from film and television
licensing in 2020 are classified to contract assets, non-current due to contract terms.

Contract liabilities decreased by NT$18,766 thousand from December 31, 2019 to
December 31, 2020 was mainly due to advance payment of mobile games licensing
contract received in 2019, which is recognized as a revenue of NT$18,771 thousand when
the mobile games launch in 2020.

(C) Transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations

The Company’s transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations
amounted to NT$6,039 thousand as of December 31, 2020. Management expects that the
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognized as
revenue within one year.

The Company’s transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations
amounted to NT$24,805 thousand as of December 31, 2019. Management expects that
the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognized
as revenue within one year.

(13) Expected credit losses/ (gains)

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Operating expenses — Expected credit losses/(gains)
Contract assets $- $12,228
Accounts receivable (42,205) 48,772
Other receivables — Related party 7,533 -
Total $(34,672) $61,000

The Company measures the loss allowance of its contract assets and trade receivables
(including notes receivable and accounts receivable) at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. The assessment of the Company’s loss allowance as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

(A) The gross carrying amount of contract assets are NT$88,415 thousand and NT$76,417

thousand as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The loss allowance amounts
to NT$0 where an expected credit loss ratio of 0% is used.
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(B) The Company groups its trade receivables by counterparties’ credit rating, geographical
region and industry sector, and its loss allowance is measured by using a provision matrix.
The details are as follow:

As of December 31, 2020

Group 1
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $69,326 $2,526 $2,655 $59,634 $- $134,141
Loss ratio -% -% -% -% -%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - - - - -
Subtotal $69,326 $2,526 $2,655 $59,634 $- $134,141
Group 2
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $36,995 $521 $- $- $1,650 $39,166
Loss ratio -% -% -% -% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - - - (1,650) (1,650)
Subtotal $36,995 $521 $- $- $- $37,516
Total $171,657
As of December 31, 2019
Group 1
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365 days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $70,514 $1,139 $1,103 $1,081 $- $73,837
Loss ratio -% -% -% 65.68% -%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - - (710) - (710)
Subtotal $70,514 $1,139 $1,103 $371 $- $73,127
Group 2
Not yet due Overdue
(Note) <=30days 31-120 days 121-365days >=365 days Total
Gross carrying amount $38,407 $- $3,275 $19,975 $36,166 $97,823
Loss ratio -% -% 23.05% 31.16% 100%
Lifetime expected credit losses - - (755) (6,224) (36,166) (43,145)
Subtotal $38,407 $- $2,520 $13,751 $- $54,678
Total $127,805

Note: The Company’s notes receivable are not overdue.
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(C) The Company measures the loss allowance of its other receivable at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company
recognized NT$0 thousand and NT$0 thousand allowance loss as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

The movement in the provision for impairment of contract assets and accounts receivable
during the December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Contract Accounts

Assets Receivable
As of January 1, 2020 $- $43,855
Addition/(reversal) for the current period - -
Write off due to inability to receive - (42,205)
As of December 31, 2020 $- $1,650
As of January 1, 2019 $- $710
Addition/(reversal) for the current period 12,228 48,772
Write off due to inability to receive (12,228) (5,627)
As of December 31, 2019 $- $43,855

Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk.
(14) Operating leases
A. Company as a lessee (applicable to the disclosure requirement under IFRS 16)
The Company leases various properties, including real estate (land and buildings),
machinery and equipment, transportation equipment, office equipment and other

equipment. The lease terms range from 1 to 5 years.

The Company’s leases impact to the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows are as follow:

(A) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
(c) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Buildings $18,636 $30,348

The Company’s right-of-use assets increased by NT$10,657 thousand and NT$0
thousand, and decreased by NT$5,656 thousand and NT$0 thousand as from
January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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(d) Lease liabilities

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Lease liabilities $18,371 $30,328
Current $9,388 $20,496
Non-current $8,983 $9,832

Please refer to Note 6 (13)(C) for the interest on lease liabilities recognized
during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and refer to Note 12 (5)
Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(B) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Buildings $16,712 $20,023

(C) Income and costs relating to leasing activities

For the year ended
December 31,

2020 2019 (Note)

The expenses relating to short-term leases $423 $470
The expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
(Not including the expenses relating to short-term

leases of low-value assets) 246 171

(D) Cash outflow relating to leasing activities
During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s total cash

outflows for leases amounting to NT$18,022 thousand and NT$21,569 thousand,
respectively.
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(15) Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expense by
function during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the years ended December 31,
2020 2019
Operating | Operating Total Operating | Operating Total
costs expenses | amount Costs expenses | amount

Employee benefits expense

Salaries $- | $129,278 | $129,278 $- | $235,818 | $235,818

Labor and health insurance - 10,023 10,023 - 10,227 10,227

Pension - 5,474 5,474 - 5,870 5,870

Directors’ remuneration - 3,226 3,226 - 4,889 4,889

Other employee benefits expense - 6,975 6,975 - 6,736 6,736
Depreciation - 21,300 21,300 - 24,962 24,962
Amortization - 11,189 11,189 - 8,518 8,518

The number of employees for the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 130 and
137, respectively, of which the number of directors were not concurrent employees was 6
and 6, respectively.

The Company’s average employee benefit expenses for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019 were NT$1,149 thousand and NT$1,974 thousand, respectively.

The Company’s average salary expenses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
were NT$979 thousand and NT$1,800 thousand, respectively. The Company’s average
salary expenses adjustment for the year ended December 31, 2020 changed by (45.61)%.

There is no compensation to supervisors for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
as the company set up an audit committee instead of appointing supervisors.

According to the Articles of Incorporation, no less than 3% of profit of the current year is
distributable as employees’ compensation and no higher than 3% of profit of the current year
is distributable as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, the company's
accumulated losses shall have been covered. The Company may, by a resolution adopted
by a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total
number of directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation in the form of
shares or in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the
shareholders’ meeting. Information on the Board of Directors’ resolution regarding the
employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained
from the “Market Observation Post System” on the website of the TWSE.
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Based on the profit for the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company estimated the
amounts of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to be 3% of profit of the current year and 1% of profit of
the current year, respectively, recognized as employee benefits expense. As such,
employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended
December 31, 2020 amount to NT$2,928 thousand and NT$976 thousand, respectively. On
March 12, 2021, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to distribute NT$2,939 thousand
and NT$980 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors
and supervisors of 2020, respectively.

On March 5, 2020, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to distribute NT$16,970
thousand and NT$3,394 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to
directors and supervisors of 2020, with no material variance with the estimated amount
accrued in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The Company set the compensation policy for directors and employees, the amount of
distributed compensation was determined by the salary price level of the industry ~ the
responsibilities and authority of the position and the individual contribution to the operating
goal. The determination of compensation to directors and executive officers is based on the
operation results and contributions, domestic and foreign industry trends was considered
also. The distribution of directors’ and executive officers’ compensations were approved
through the compensation committee, and resolved by the meeting of the board of directors.

(16) Non-operating income and expenses
(A) Other income

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019

Interest income

Financial assets measured at amortized cost $154 $963
Rental income 665 -
Tax refund 11,191 -
Government support income (Note) 8,424 -
Other income 1,998 4,500
Total $22,432 $5,463

Note: The Government provided subsidies of salaries and operating funds due to
the COVID-19 pandemic.
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(B) Other gains and losses

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment $52 $56
Gains on disposal of investments - 18
Foreign exchange losses, net (2,252) (2,925)
Impairment loss from non-financial assets - (9,426)
Other 554 (10)
Total $(1,646) $(12,287)

(C) Finance costs

For the years ended

December 31,
2020 2019
Interest on borrowings from bank $2,287 $3,327
Interest on lease liabilities 373 885
Total $2,660 $4,212
(17) Components of other comprehensive loss
For the year ended December 31, 2020:
Income tax
relating to
Reclassification components of
adjustments Other other Other
Arising during during the comprehensive  comprehensive  comprehensive
the period period loss, before tax loss loss, net of tax

Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $89 $- $89 $- $89
Unrealized gains or losses from financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 8,897 - 8,897 - 8,897
Share of unrealized gains or losses from
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive loss of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method (1,586) - (1,586) - (1,586)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from
translating the financial statements of a
foreign operation (16,625) - (16,625) - (16,625)

Total of other comprehensive loss $(9,225) $- $(9,225) $- $(9,225)
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For the year ended December 31, 20109:

Income tax
relating to
Reclassification components of
adjustments Other other Other
Avrising during during the comprehensive  comprehensive  comprehensive
the period period loss, before tax loss loss, net of tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $328 $- $328 $- $328
Unrealized gains or losses from financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive loss (111,730) - (111,730) - (111,730)
Share of unrealized gains or losses from
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive loss of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method (21,784) - (21,784) - (21,784)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences resulting from
translating the financial statements of a
foreign operation 9,154 - 9,154 - 9,154
Total of other comprehensive loss $(124,032) $- $(124,032) $- $(124,032)
(18) Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
For the years ended
December 31,
2020 2019
Current income tax expense:
Current income tax charge $22,587 $23,079
Deferred tax expense (income):
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to origination
and reversal of temporary differences 14,586 (29,115)
Total income tax (income) expense $37,173 $(6,036)
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Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by

applicable tax rates is as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations $94,069 $320,003
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the
country concerned $18,814 $64,001
Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation (7,099) 5,531
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses from taxation 12,906 582
Tax effect of deferred tax assets/liabilities (10,035) (99,228)
Overseas withholding tax 22,587 23,078
Total income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $37,173 $(6,036)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following:
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Beginning Ending
balance as of balance as of
January 1, Recognizedin  December 31,
2020 profit or loss 2020
Temporary differences
Unrealized bad debt expense $8,427 $(8,427) $-
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 1,230 (696) 534
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (707) 667 (40)
Defined benefit liability, non-current 3,591 - 3,591
Others (670) 2,119 1,449
Unused tax losses 20,721 (8,249) 12,472
Deferred tax income/ (expense) $(14,586)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $32,592 $18,006
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax assets $33,969 $18,046
Deferred tax liabilities $1,377 $40
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For the year ended December 31, 2019
Beginning
balance as of

Ending
balance as of

January 1, Recognizedin  December 31,

2019 profit or loss 2019
Temporary differences
Unrealized bad debt expense $142 $8,285 $8,427
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 365 865 1,230
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - (707) (707)
Unrealized margin in sales return (12) 11 -
Defined benefit liability, non-current 3,574 17 3,591
Others (593) (77) (670)
Unused tax losses - 20,721 20,721
Deferred tax income/ (expense) $29,115
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $3,477 $32,592
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax assets $4,081 $33,969
Deferred tax liabilities $604 $1,377

The information of the unused tax losses is as follows:

Unused tax losses

Tax losses for As of December 31,
Year the period 2020 2019 Expiration year
2014 $15,029 $- $1,544 2024
2019 207,900 124,727 207,203 2029
$124,727 $208,747

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect
of unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences amounting to NT$12,473 thousand
and NT$21,028 thousand, respectively, as the future taxable profit may not be available.

The assessment of income tax returns

As at December 31, 2020, the income tax returns of the Company have been assessed and

approved up to 2018.
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(19) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019

(A) Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company (in thousand NT$)

$56,896 $326,039

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for basic earnings per share (in thousands)

62,465 61,990

Basic earnings per share (NT$)

$0.91 $5.26

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019

(B) Diluted earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company after dilution (in thousand NT$)

$56,896 $326,039

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for basic earnings per share (in thousands)

Effect of dilution:

Restricted employee stock

Employee compensation-stock (in thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
after dilution (in thousands)

Diluted earnings per share (NT$)

62,465 61,990
535 647
161 186

63,161 62,823

$0.90 $5.19

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements.
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7. Related party transactions

Information of the related parties that had transactions with the Company during the financial
reporting period is as follows:

Name and nature of relationship of the related parties

Name of the related parties Nature of relationship of the related parties
G.T. INTERNET INFORMATION CO., The chairman of the Company and the key management
LTD. personnel of this company are second-degree relatives

TOKYO FASHION CO., LTD. (Notel)  The chairman of the Company and the director of this
company are second-degree relatives

E-NET CO., LTD. (Note2) The chairman of the Company and the director of this
company are second-degree relatives
BAKESI WINE GROUP CO., LTD. The chairman of the Company is the chairman of this
company
GLOBAL ANGEL INVESTMENTS The chairman of the Company is the chairman of this
LIMITED company
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE Subsidiary

ENTERTAINMENT INC.
MARSWARE ENTERTAINMENT INC. Subsidiary
(Note3)
SOFTSTAR AGENCY CO., LTD. Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO.,
LTD. (Note4) Subsidiary
The Playground Limited, Taiwan Branch  The key management personnel of the Company is the
(Noteb) chairman of this company
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Associate
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. (Note6)

SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) Associate
CO., LTD. (Note6)

A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. Associate
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Notel : Due to change of the chairman of the board on September 18, 2020, TOKYO FASHION
CO., LTD. was no longer a related party of the Group since September 18, 2020.

Note2 : NEWCROSS CO., LTD. changed its name to E-NET CO., LTD. in August 2019. Due to
change of the chairman of the board on September 18, 2020, E-NET CO., LTD. was no
longer a related party of the Group since September 18, 2020.

Note3 : The liquidation process of MARSWARE ENTERTAINMENT INC. has been
completed since March 16 2020.

Noted : The liquidation process of SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. has been completed since January 21 2020.

Note5 - Due to changes in shareholder structure, The Playground Investment Limited, Taiwan
Branch was no longer a related party of the Group since February 20109.

Note6 - The Group lost control of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. on June
3, 2019, and recognized the remaining 49% of the shares of SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY
(BENING) CO., LTD. as investment accounted for using the equity method. SOFTSTAR
TECHNOLOGY (BENING) CO., LTD. and its 100% owned subsidiary SOFTSTAR
TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. became the associates of the Group from
the date of losing control.

Significant transactions with the related parties

(1) Rendering of services

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERAINMENT INC. $60,317 $53,847
Other related parties
The Playground Investment Limited, Taiwan Branch - 780
Others - 11
Total $60,317 $54,638

The sales price to the above related parties was determined through mutual agreement. The
collection period from sales to the related party customers are 30~60 days, which is the same
with third party customers.
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Operating costs

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. $17,086 $12,185
Associate
SOTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEWNING) CO., LTD. - 73,120
SDFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. - 11,425
Total $17,086 $96,730

Operating costs relate to subsidiary database fees and royalty costs.

Accounts receivable-related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. $31,277 $28,729
Other related parties - 11
Total $31,277 $28,740
Contract assets
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. $9,355 $-
Other receivables-related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. $1,070 $-
Marsware Entertainment Inc. - 4,531
Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. - 3,650
Others - 1,071
Other related parties - 320
Total $1,070 $9,572

Other receivables-related parties relates to subsidiary assistance of daily operations.
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(6) Prepayment-related parties

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Associate
A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. $- $1,905
Global Angel Investments Limited 165 -
Total $165 $1,905

Prepayment-related parties relates to game outsourcing costs and rent prepayment.

(7) Accounts payable-related parties

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. $2,686 $7,145
Associate
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEWING) CO., LTD. - 31,032
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. - 5,387
Total $2,686 $43,564
(8) Other payables-related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. $256 $-

(9) Property transaction

The company purchases intangible assets-copyright from related parties, the amount is as

follows:
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. $- $5,068
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(10) Other
Other transactions between the Company and subsidiaries are shown below:

For the years ended
December 31,

Item 2020 2019
Other income $4,138 $1,151
Rental income 665 134
Advertising fee - (17,756)
Depreciation 5,067 (362)
Total $9,870 $(16,833)

Other transactions between the Company and associate are shown below:

For the years ended
December 31,

Item 2020 2019
Service Fee $- $3,979
Miscellaneous expenses 65 -
Total $65 $(3,939)

Other transactions between the Company and other related parties are shown below:

For the years ended
December 31,

Item 2020 2019
Rental income $- $1,926
Service fee 952 (5,709)
Communication fee 200 (156)
Miscellaneous expenses 14 -
Total $1,166 $(3,939)

(11) Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended
December 31,

2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits $18,782 $29,052
Post-employment benefits 350 604
Termination benefits - 364
Share-based payment 9,725 43,994
Other long-term benefits 474 775
Total $29,331 $74,789
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8. Assets pledged as security

The following table lists assets of the Company pledged as security:

Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,

Items 2020 2019 Secured liabilities
Other financial assets current-demand Current portion of long-
deposits $14,031 21 term borrowings
Other financial assets, noncurrent- Long - term borrowings
demand deposits 27,000 30,000
Total $41,031 $30,021

9. Commitments and contingencies

None.

10. Loss due to major disasters

None.

11. Significant subseguent events

On January 29, 2021, the Board of Directors meeting resolved to acquire the private placement
stock of Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. The Company acquired 28,322 thousand shares in the
amount of NT$160,000 thousand and in the price of NT$5.65 per share, which increased the
Company’s ownership of Uniplus Electronics CO., LTD. to 15.72%.

12. Others

(1) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets As of December 31,
2020 2019
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income $50,183 $41,274
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note 1) 388,120 287,566
Total $438,303 $328,840
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Financial liabilities As of December 31,
2020 2019
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Accounts payable $110,369 188,285
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 131,318 107,742
Lease liabilities 18,371 30,328
Total $260,058 $326,355
Note:

1) Including cash and cash equivalents (except for cash on hand), notes receivable, other
notes receivables-related parties, accounts receivable, accounts receivable-related
parties, other receivables, other receivables-related parties, other financial assets,
current, refundable deposits , and other financial assets, noncurrent.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Company identifies
measures and manages the aforementioned risks based on the Company’s policy and risk
appetite.

The Company has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for
financial risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process
by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee must be carried out based on related protocols
and internal control procedures. The Company complies with its financial risk management
policies at all times.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk).

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other
risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However the
sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between
risk variables.
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Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to
the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different
currency from the Company’s functional currency) and the Company’s net investments in

foreign subsidiaries.

The Company has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign
currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. Hedge
accounting is not applied as they did not qualify for hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore,
as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for strategic purposes, they are not hedged by
the Company.

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on
the Company’s profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period. The Company’s foreign currency risk is mainly
related to the volatility in the exchange rates for foreign currency A and foreign currency B.
The information of the sensitivity analyses as follows:

(A) When NTD strengthens/weakens against USD by 1%, the profit or loss for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is decreased/increased by NT$311 thousand and
increased/decreased by NT$269 thousand, respectively.

(B) When NTD strengthens/weakens against RMB by 1%, the profit or loss for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is decreased/increased by NT$2,165 thousand and
NT$1,478 thousand, respectively.

Equity price risk

The fair value of the Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The
Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are classified under financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The Company manages the equity price risk through
diversification and placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the
equity portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis. The

Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.
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As of December 31 2020 and 2019, an increase/decrease of 10% in the price of the listed
companies stocks classified as equity instruments investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income will be increase/decrease by NT$384 thousand and NT$535
thousand on the equity attributable to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

Please refer to Note 12(8) for sensitivity analysis information of other equity instruments
whose fair value measurement is categorized under Level 3.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily
for accounts receivables) and from its financing activities, including bank deposits and other
financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all
counter parties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical
experience, prevailing economic condition and the Company’s internal rating criteria etc.
Certain counter parties’ credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing
procedures, such as requesting for prepayment.

As of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, accounts receivable and contract assets
from top ten customers represent 36.93% and 35.64% of the total accounts receivables of the
Company, respectively. The credit concentration risk of other accounts receivable and
contract assets are relatively insignificant.

Credit risk from balances with banks, fixed income securities and other financial instruments
1s managed by the Company’s treasury in accordance with the Company’s policy. The
Company only transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures,
which are banks and financial institutions and companies with good credit rating.
Consequently, there is no significant credit risk for these counter parties.

Liquidity risk management

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings. The table
below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the
contractual undiscounted payments and contractual maturity. The payment amount includes
the contractual interest. The undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with variable
interest rates is extrapolated based on the estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of
the reporting period.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

As of December 31, 2020

Accounts payable (including
other payables)

Long-term borrowings
(including estimated
interest)

Lease liabilities (Note)

As of December 31, 2019

Accounts payable (including
other payables)

Long-term borrowings
(including estimated
interest)

Lease liabilities (Note)

Less than
1 year 2to3years 4toS5years >5years Total
$110,369 $- $- $- $110,369
67,229 40,505 26,305 - 133,939
9,971 3,771 3,771 1,886 19,399
Less than
1 year 2to3years 4toS5years  >5years Total
$188,285 $- $- $- $188,285
51,485 58,687 - - 110,172
21,361 9,965 - - 31,326

Note: Including cash flows resulted from short-term leases or leases of low-value assets.

(6) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020:

As of January 1, 2020
Cash flows
Non-cash changes

As of December 31, 2020

Long-term
borrowings Total liabilities
Short-term (including from financing
borrowings current portion)  Lease liabilities activities
$- $107,742 $30,328 $138,070
- 23,576 (17,353) 6,223
- - 5,396 5,396
$- $131,318 $18,371 $149,689
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Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Long-term
borrowings Total liabilities
Short-term (including from financing
borrowings current portion)  Lease liabilities activities
As of January 1, 2019 $30,000 $84,602 $50,371 $164,973
Cash flows (30,000) 23,140 (20,928) (27,788)
Non-cash changes - - 885 885
As of December 31, 2019 $- $107,742 $30,328 $138,070

(7) Fair values of financial instruments

(A) The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial
instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
following methods and assumptions were used by the Company to measure or disclose
the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

(@) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, refundable
deposits, accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate their fair value
due to their short maturities.

(b) For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and
conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including
listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the
reporting date.

(c) Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private
placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company
equity securities) are estimated using the market method or income approach
valuation techniques. The market method valuation is based on parameters such as
prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of identical or comparable
entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs such as discount for lack
of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book ratio of similar entities).
The income method is based on the estimated recoverable amount of the present
value of similar financial assets that are expected to be received from cash dividends
or disposals of investments.
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(d) Fair value of debt instruments without market quotations, bank loans, bonds payable
and other non-current liabilities are determined based on the counterparty prices or
valuation method. The valuation method uses DCF method as a basis, and the
assumptions such as the interest rate and discount rate are primarily based on relevant
information of similar instrument (such as yield curves published by the GreTai
Securities Market, average prices for Fixed Rate Commercial Paper published by
Reuters and credit risk, etc.)

(e) The fair value of derivatives which are not options and without market quotations, is
determined based on the counterparty prices or discounted cash flow analysis using
interest rate yield curve for the contract period. Fair value of option-based
derivative financial instruments is obtained using on the counterparty prices or
appropriate option pricing model (for example, Black-Scholes model) or other
valuation method (for example, Monte Carlo Simulation).

(B) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost is approximate their fair value.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12(8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments
of the Company.

(8) Fair value measurement hierarchy
(A) Fair value measurement hierarchy
All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are

described as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring

basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.
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(B) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities

The Company does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring
basis. Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instrument measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income $3,814 $-  $46,369 $50,183

As of December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instrument measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income $5,351 $- $35923 $41,274

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

Reconciliation for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for
movements during the period is as follows:

Assets

Measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Stocks
Beginning balances as of January 1, 2020 $35,923
Total gains and losses recognized for the year ended December 31, 2020
Amount recognized in OCI (presented in “Unrealized gains (losses) from
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income) 10,446
Ending balances as of December 31, 2020 $46,369
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Assets

Measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Stocks
Beginning balances as of January 1, 2019 $147,520
Total gains and losses recognized for the year ended December 31, 2019
Amount recognized in OCI (presented in “Unrealized gains (losses) from
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income) (111,597)
Ending balances as of December 31, 2019 $35,923

Information on significant unobservable inputs to valuation

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of recurring fair value
measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Relationship
Valuation Significant Quantitative  between inputsand  Sensitivity of the input to
techniques  unobservable inputs  information fair value fair value

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair
value through other

comprehensive income

Stocks

As of December 31, 2019

Financial assets:

Financial assets at fair

value through other

comprehensive income

Stocks

Discount for lack of
marketability

Significant

unobservable inputs

The higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the
lower the fair value

of the stocks

Relationship
between inputs and

fair value

10% increase (decrease) in
the discount for lack of
marketability would result in
(decrease) increase in the
Company’s equity by
NT$4,637 thousand

Sensitivity of the input to

fair value

Discount for lack of
marketability
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Valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

The Company’s Finance Department is responsible for validating the fair value
measurements and ensuring that the results of the valuation are in line with market
conditions, based on independent and reliable inputs which are consistent with other
information, and represent exercisable prices. The Department analyses the movements
in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed
as per the Company’s accounting policies at each reporting date.

(9) Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Information regarding the significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
is listed below:
(Expressed in thousands)
December 31, 2020

Foreign currencies Foreign exchange rate NTD

Financial assets
Monetary items:

uUsD $1,314 28.49 $37,431

RMB 49,440 4.38 216,548
Financial liabilities
Monetary items:

uUSsD $222 28.48 $6,327

RMB - - -

December 31, 2019

Foreign currencies Foreign exchange rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items:
uUsD $304 30.02 $9,135
RMB 43,502 4.31 187,495
Financial liabilities
Monetary items:
uUsD $1,202 29.98 $36,037
RMB 9,200 4.31 39,652
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The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of foreign currency (after
conversion of functional currency).

The Company has a variety of functional currencies, therefore the monetary impact on
financial assets and liabilities impact for each individual currency cannot be disclosed. For the
year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, foreign exchange losses were NT$2,252 thousand
and NT$2,925 thousand, respectively.

(10) Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

13. Additional disclosure

(1) Information at significant transactions

(A) Financing provided to other: None

(B) Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: None

(C) Securities held (excluding subsidiaries, associates and joint venture): Please refer to
Attachment 1.

(D) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the
lower of NT$300 million and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(E) Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million
and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(F) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million
and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(G) Related party transactions for purchases and sales amounts exceeding the lower of
NT$100 million and 20 percent of the capital stock: None.

(H) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million
and 20 percent of capital stock: None.

() Financial instruments and derivative transactions: None.

(J) Business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries and between each
subsidiary, and the circumstances and amounts of any significant transactions: Please
refer to Attachment 2.
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(2) Information on investees

Names, locations, and other information (excluding investment in Mainland China): Please
refer to Attachment 3.

(3) Information on investments in mainland China
(A) Basic information: Please refer to Attachment 4.
(B) Directly or indirectly significant transactions through third regions with the investees in

Mainland China: None

(4) Information on major shareholders

Information on major shareholders: Please refer to Attachment 5.
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

Relationship December 31, 2020
Names of Type of securities Name of securities with the Company Shares Carrying amount Percentage of Note
companies held (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) Financial statement account (in thousand) (Note 3) ownership (%) Fair value (Note 4)

Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Stock AUER MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT CORP. - 2,696 $40,600 19.48% $40,600 N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Stock TAIWAN SMART CARD CO. - 2,552 3,598 15.95% 3,598 N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Stock DOUBLE EDGE ENTERTAINMENT CORP. - 479 2,171 17.43% 2,171 N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Stock FUNFIA INC. Other related party 600 - 11.51% - N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Emerging stock SNSPLUS, INC. - 266 3,802 1.78% 3,802 N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

Kobe Co., Ltd. Listed stock NEWRETAIL CO., LTD. Other related party 1,315 13,132 2.74% 13,132 N
comprehensive income, non-current
Financial assets at fair value through other

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Listed stock UNIPLUS ELECTRONICS CO,, LTD. - 2 12 0.00% 12 N
comprehensive income, non-current

$63,315

Note 1: Securities on the list refer to securities such as stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and securities derived from those items included in IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Note 2: Fields do not have to be filled in if the security issuer is not a related party.

Note 3: Securities which were acquired by using fair value method, please fill in amount based on calculating after adjustment from fair value minus accumulated impairment; fill in the rest amount based on original

acquired cost or after amortization minus accumulated impairment.

Note 4: Listed securities due to guarantees, pledged loans, or others who are restricted by agreement shall specify in the remarks column the number of guarantees or the number of shares borrowed, the amount of the

guarantee or the amount of the loan, and restrictions on use.
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Attachment 2: Significant intercompany transactions between consolidated entities

Business Transactions
No. Relationship As a percentage of consolidated revenues
(Note 1) Company Counterparty (Note 2) Account Amount Term (Note 3)

LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT . . )

0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. c 1 Operating Revenue $60,317| Negotiated by both parties 11.06%
INC.
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT . . .

0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. ING 1 Operating Costs 17,086| Negotiated by both parties 3.13%
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT

0 SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. c 1 Accounts Receivable 31,277| Negotiated by both parties 2.57%
INC.

Note 1: Information about related party transactions should be stated. The numbers of each company are illustrated as follows:

1. 0 is for the parent company.

2. Each subsidiary is numbered from 1.

Note 2: Transactions are categorized into three types as follows: (There is no need to repeat the disclosure of the same transaction between the parent company and each subsidiary.

For example, if the parent company has disclosed the transaction with the subsidiary, the subsidiary does not need to disclose it; if transactions between subsidiaries has been

disclosed by one company, the other company does not need to disclose the transaction.

1. Parent company and subsidiary.
2. Subsidiary and Parent company.

3. Subsidiary and subsidiary.

Note 3: Transaction amount is stated as a percentage of total revenues. Percentages of assets or liabilities accounts are calculated as ending balance divided by consolidated assets,

and percentages of profit or loss accounts are calculated as accumulated amount for the year divided by consolidated revenues.
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ATTACHMENT 3: Names, locations and related information of investee companies (Not including investment in Mainland China)

Net income

ENTERTAINMENT INC.

and technical services

Original investment amount Investment as of December 31, 2019 (l0ss) Investment income Note
Ending Beginning Number of shares P((e)rvcvir;tra;%? of Book value of investee (loss) recognized
Investor company Investee company Location Main business and products balance balance (in thousand) (%) P (Note 1) (Note 1)
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. f;gr:;s” Investment holding $163,387 | $163,387 5,059 100% $552,388 $(63,016) $(63,016) Subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE . Software wholesale and o s
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. ENTERTAINMENT INC. Taiwan information software services 95,000 95,000 2,850 100% 5,453 2,729 2,729 Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. Taiwan |Performing arts 13,500 10,000 - 100% 876 (84) (84) Subsidiary
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. | Marsware Entertainment Inc. Taiwan | Network software development ; 30,000 ; ; ; 7,533 7533 | Subsidiary (Note 3)
and technical services
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.  |SOFTSTAR CREATIVE INC. Taiwan | Network software development 47,000 47,000 4,700 100% 1,570 (147) (147) Subsidiary
and technical services
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Kobe Co., Ltd. Taiwan |General investment 98,792 98,792 - 100% 13,369 (117) (117) Subsidiary
. . . . Software publishing and o -
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Gamebase Digital Media Corporation Taiwan information software services 60,000 50,000 6,100 93.85% 5,981 (7,115) (6,630) Subsidiary
: Network software development Investm_ents accoupted
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. A.R.T. Games Co., Ltd. Taiwan . . 12,250 12,250 1,225 49% 1,143 (3,598) (1,763) for using the equity
and technical services method
Investments accounted
SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Chia-e International Inc. Taiwan |Investment holding 20,000 20,000 814 28.21% - (4,597) - for using the equity
method
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. Mauritius |Investment holding - 47,302 - - - - - Second-tier (Note 4)
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. SOFTSTAR GLOBAL INC. Mauritius |Investment holding 162,277 162,277 5,327 100% - 8,323 8,323 Second-tier subsidiary
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED Samoa |Investment holding 29,888 29,888 980 100% 5,845 (414) (414) | Second-tier subsidiary
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE Perfecten Corporation Taiwan | Network software development : 50,000 : : : ) _ | Second-tier subsidiary

(Note 5)

Note 1: If the listed company set up the overseas investment company and consolidated financial statements are primary financial statements under local regulations, information about overseas investees can be disclosed only to the extent of the overseas investment company.
Note 2: If not qualified for the situation stated in Note 1, the above table should be made under rules as follows:
(1)Information about the Company's investments should be filled in the "Investee", "Location”, "Main business”, "Original investment" and "Investment as of December 31, 2018" columns. The relationship between the investee and the Company

should be filled in the “Note" column.

(2)The net income for the year of each investee should be filled in the "Net income (loss) of investee" column.

(3)Only the investment income (loss) of subsidiaries or investees accounted for using the equity method recognized by the Company should be filled in the "Investment income (loss)
recognized" column. The investment income (loss) recognized should include investment income (loss) recognized by the investee.

Note 3: MARSWARE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was dissolved in November 2018 and returned the share capital on March 30, 2020.

Note 4: MAURITIUS WEBSTAR INC. (MWI) completed the liquidation procedure on May 22, 2020.
Note 5: PERFECTEN CORPORATION was dissolved in November 2018 and returned the share capital on June 8, 2020.

English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
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ATTACHMENT 4: Investment in Mainland China

1. The following table presents names, main businesses and products, total amount of paid-in capital, method of investment, accumulated outflow of investment from Taiwan, investment income recognized, carrying amount,

and accumulated inward remittance of earnings on investment of investees in Mainland China

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Stated)

Accumulated outflow

Accumulated outflow

Investment

Accumulated

(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

technology

Method of of investment of investment income (loss) Carrying inward remittance
. . Total amount | . . . . . . Note
Main business of investment | from Taiwan as at Investment flows from Taiwan as of Net income (loss) Percentage of recognized value as of of earnings as of (Note 2(2))
December 31, December 31,
Investee Company and products paid-in capital | (Note 1) January 1, 2020 | Outflow | Inflow December 31, 2020 |of investee Company [  ownership (Note 2) 2020 2020
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Information processing
32,856 2 32,856 - - 32,856 107,174 49% 69,498 540,865 - A
(BEWING) CO., LTD. service $ $ $ $ $ § ) ’ § ) $ $
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Information processing
134,694 2 22,294 - - 22,294 795 49% 390 115,105 - A
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. service (79%5) ’ (3%0) ( )
SOFTSTAR MOBILE Development of computer
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY |hardware and network 31,846 2 31,846 - 256 31,590 7,294 - 7,294 - - B (Note 4)

2. Investment quota for Mainland China:

Accumulated investment in Mainland China as of
December 31, 2020

Investment amounts authorized by Investment
Commission, MOEA

Upper limit on investment in accordance with Ministry of

Economic Affairs regulations (Note 5)

$86,740

$285,526

$523,733

Note 1: The method for engaging in investment in Mainland China include the following :
(1) Direct investment in Mainland China with capital increase through companies registered in third region.
(2) Indirectly investment in Mainland China through companies registered in a third region (Please specify the name of company in third region)

(3)Other method.

Note 2: The investment income (loss) recognized in current period :
(1)1t should be noted if it is in preparation which there is no investment profit or loss.
(2)The investment income (loss) were determined based on the following basis:

A.The financial statement was audited by an international certified public accounting firm in cooperation with an R.O.C. accounting firm.
B.The financial statement was audited by the auditors of the parent company.

C.Others.

Note 3: The amount is stated in New Taiwan Dollars.
Note 4: SOFTSTAR MOBILE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. completed the liquidation procedure on January 15, 2020.
Note 5: The upper limit of investment amount in Mainland China is the higher of 60% of the net value or 60% of consolidated net value.
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ATTACHMENT 5: Major Shareholder Information

Major Shareholder Name

Share

Holding shares

Holding percentage(%)

ANGEL FUND(ASIA) INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Ruihe Co., Ltd.

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Fulong Group Co., Ltd.

Investment account in Yuanta Commercial Bank entrusted by Angel Fund (ASIA) Investment Ltd.

5,875,157
3,540,274
3,318,858
3,186,247

10.10%
6.08%
5.70%
5.48%
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V. Parent Company Only Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, and Independent Auditors’ Report

VL. In the case of financial difficulties of the Company and its affiliates in the most
recent year and up to the date of publication, specify its effect on the Company's
financial position: None.
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Chapter 7 Review of Financial Conditions, Operating Results, and
Risk Management

I. Analysis of Financial Status

Review and Analysis Statement for Financial Analysis

Comparative Analysis of Financial Conditions

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Differences
Item 2020 2019 Amount %

Current assets 488,516 418,699 69,817 16.67

Financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive 63,315 55,992 7,323 13.08

income, noncurrent

Investments accounted for

using the equity method 542,008 628,614 (86,606) (13.78)

Property, plant and equipment 8,147 12,070 (3,923) (32.50)

Intangible assets 5,229 8,412 (3,183) (37.84)

Other non-current assets 82,882 85,154 (2,272) (2.67)

Other financial assets - Non- 27,000 30,000 (3,000) (10.00)

current

Total Assets 1,217,097 1,238,941 (21,844) (1.76)
Current liabilities 239,595 341,474 (101,879) (29.84)
Noncurrent liabilities 104,614 92,527 12,087 13.06

Total liabilities 344,209 434,001 (89,792) (20.69)

Common stock 630,643 492,945 137,698 27.93

Additional paid-in capital 112,360 162,992 (50,632) (31.06)

Retained earnings 427,296 469,543 (42,247) (9.00)

Other equity (297,625) (320,583) 22,958 (7.16)

Total equity attributable to the 872,674 804,897 67.777 R 42

parent company

Non-Controlling Interests 214 43 171 397.67

Total equity 872,888 804,940 67,948 8.44

Note: The Company shall explain the primary reason and its effect regarding major changes in assets, liabilities,
and shareholders' equity (with changes over 20% and the amount involving in such changes has reached
NT$10 million) for the past two years. For material effects, explain the counterplan in the future.

1. Explanations for items with major changes:

(1) Current liabilities: Whereas control of Beiruan was lost in June, 2019, Beiruan will not be merged, and
consequently accounts payable and other payables decreased and contract liabilities were transferred to
income.

(2) Capital stock and capital reserve: Common stock increased this year due to retained earnings and capital
reserve for 2019 were transferred to capital in BOD for 2020.

2. Future corresponding plan: Not applicable.
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II. Analysis of Operation Results

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year

0 | e | e | ot

Operating Revenue 545,369 565,818 (20,449) (3.61)
Operating Costs (89,939) (91,002) 1,063 (1.17)
Gross profit(loss) 455,430 474,816 (19,386) (4.08)
Operating Expenses (317,326) (692,396) 375,070 (54.17)
Operating Income (Loss) 138,104 (217,580) 355,684 (163.47)
Non-Operating Items (44,337) 553,447 (597,784) (108.01)
Profit(Loss) before income tax 93,767 335,867 (242,100) (72.08)
Income Tax Expenses (37,355) (12,050) (25,305) 210

Net income (loss) for the period 56,412 323,817 (267,405) (82.58)
Net income attributable to 56,896 326,039 (269,143) (82.55)
Net income attributable to non- (484) (2,222) 1,738 (78.22)

Note: The Company shall explain the primary reason regarding major changes in operating revenue,
operating net income and net income before tax (with changes over 20% and the amount
involving in such changes has reached NT$10 million) for the past two years.

1. Primary reason for items with major changes in the past two years

(1) Operating expense and operating profit (loss): Mainly due to high restricted stock expenses
recognized for 2019 and recovery of estimated credit loss in this year.

(2) Non-operating income and expenses: Mainly due to the loss of control of the subsidiary Softstar
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. in June 2019 and recognition of its disposal benefits.

(3) Income tax expense: Increase due to exhaust of accumulated loss deduction and no provision of
temporary differences upon assessment.

2. Estimated quantity of sales and its basis:
There is no statistic for sales because no financial forecasting was prepared by the Company.

3. Possible effects and the counterplan for the future financial business of the Company:

In the future, the Company will reinforce its top seven IP operations including "Sword and Fairy"
and "Xuan Yuan Sword" through the development of mobile games, single player games, and online
games, as well as invest in the audiovisual and cultural and creative field. The Company will ensure
the presence of the Company's products in all fields and platforms through the licensing cooperation
with top-tier companies in Taiwan and Mainland China and maintain the quality of high investment
and high level to obtain the support from the market and players.
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III. Analysis of Cash Flow
Review and Analytical Statement for Cash Flow
Analysis of Cash Flow

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Balance of cash - |Net cash flow from . Cash balance (deficit) Remedial measures for cash
.. ) . Cash inflow deficit
beginning (1) | operating activities in the year (3) amount I P—— i |
(Note) for the year (2) y (H+@2)+@3) nv;lsarrlrlen lgl?rf;a
171,579 97,529 (30,907) 238,201 - -

1 - Analysis of variance in cash flows for 2020:
(1) Operating activities: The net cash inflow from operating activities for the period was mainly due to
the decrease in labor costs and the increase in accounts receivable.
(2) Investing activities: The net cash outflow from investing activities for the period was mainly due to
the acquisition of intangible assets.
(3) Financing activities: The net cash outflow from financing activities for the period was primarily due to
the distribution of cash dividends and the repurchase of treasury stocks.

2 ~ Remedial measures for cash deficit and liquidity analysis:
(1) Remedial measures for cash deficit: None.

(2) Liquidity analysis:

Year b cember 31, 2020| December 31, 2019 | Merease (Decrease)
Item Yo
Cash flow ratio (%) 40.71% 4.63% 779.27
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) (1.46)% 2.27% (164.48)
Cash flow reinvestment ratio (%) 11.62% 2.08% 458.65

Increase or decrease of change analysis:

Cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio: Due to the increase in net cash inflow for operating
activities in 2019.

Cash flow adequacy ratio: Due to the decrease in capital expense in the last five years.

3 ~ Analysis of the cash liquidity of the coming year:

Projected net cash | Projected Projected cash |Remedial measures for
Beginning cash flow from cash outflow | balance (deficit) | projected cash deficit
balance (1) operating activities | during the amount Investment| Financial
during the year (2) year (3) (DH+(2)+(3) plans plans
238,201 300,353 (259,400) 279,154 N/A N/A

1. Analysis of changes in cash flow for the year:

(1) Operating activities: Net cash inflow from operating activities during the period was
primarily due to the projected launching of multiple new games in 2021.

(2) Investing activities: Net cash outflow from investing activities during the period was
primarily due to reinvestment and the projected purchases of fixed assets and intangible
assets.

(3) Financing activities: The net cash outflow from financing activities for the period was
primarily due to the estimated repayment of loans and the distribution of employee and
director remuneration and cash dividends.

2. Remedial measures for cash deficit and liquidity analysis: None.
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IV. Major Capital Expenditure Items: None.

V. Company Reinvestment Policy for the Most Recent Fiscal Year, Main Reasons for
Profits/Losses Generated Thereby, Plan for Improving Reinvestment Profitability,
and Investment Plans for Coming Year

)

(1

(1

Reinvestment policy

The Company primarily engages in game development, game agency, and IP licensing.
Regarding the reinvestment layout, the Company mainly focuses on the game
development/agency companies within the same industry as the Company as the core, or
companies with related business, complement advantages, and synergies as investing
targets.

Main reasons for profit or loss and the plan for improvement

Currently, the reinvestment companies of the Company are mostly game development
companies; therefore, if products are still under development or the revenue from listed
products have decreased during the year, losses would occur due to R&D labor expenses
and product outsourcing expenses. Companies for reinvestment reinforcing their control on
development schedule and budget to complete games and licensing for operation shall be
the plan for improvement.

Investment plans for the coming year: February 2021,the company invested Uniplus
Electronics Co. Ltd NT 160,012 thousand for 28,323,569 shares and shareholding ratio
15.72% -

VI. Analysis of Risk Management for the Past Year up to the Date of Printing the
Annual Report:

(1

(1

(1)

Impact of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and inflation in the most recent
year on the Company's profit and loss, and future response measures:
1. Interests expenses of the Company form an insignificant part of net operating revenue;
therefore, changes in interest rate have no significant effect on the Company.

2. Regarding foreign currency assets of the Company, specialists from the Finance
Department are responsible for regular evaluation, and shall keep close contact with the
foreign exchange department of corresponding banks to keep abreast the trend of
changes in exchange rates, so as to minimize the effects of exchange rate fluctuation
risks on the revenue and profit of the Company.

3. There has been no effect on the Company operation arising from inflation in 2020.

Policy regarding high-risk and highly leveraged investments, loaning of funds,
endorsements/guarantees, and derivatives transactions; the primary reasons for the profit
or loss, and future response measures:
1. High-risk investments and highly leveraged investments
Currently, the Company does not engage in any high-risks or highly leveraged
investments.
2. Loaning of funds, and endorsements/guarantees
No capital lending and endorsement or guarantee has taken place from 2020 and 2021
and up to the date of publication of this annual report.
3. Derivatives transactions
Currently, the Company does not engage in any derivatives transactions.

Future R&D plans and R&D expenditure to be invested:
1. R&D Plan:
(2) In October last year, next generation boutique single player "Xuan Yuan Sword VII"
was launched. In this summer, this product will be launched in Europe, America
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and even the world through platforms such as PS, XBOX, GOG and Win10 Store
Besides, delicate Sword and Fairy VII will be launched this year. Then, players in
Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong will be satisfied. Sword and Fairy VII
will develop a host platform and several language versions, exlarge the market and
extend brand vigor to further develop business opportunities of IP derivatives.

(2) Product R&D plans: Our existing R&D team is mainly focusing on brand promotion
as its development direction, improve brand recognition, strengthen the connection
with our fans, continue to launch IP series work, and, design new products specific
to market changes arising from the post-epidemic era this year. Launch TV series
of the same name and mobile games through IP authorization and multi-industry
cooperation and maximum brand benefit. With respect to product expansion,
besides PC games and mobile games, development toward the cross-platform field,
such as game consoles for PS4, Xbox One, etc. is also the development direction of
the Company.

(3) Technology R&D plans: Xuan Yuan Sword V11 gathers Unreal Engine and technical
strength for multi-platform development. In future, accelerate development through
various innovative development tools, except self-developed games. Low the cost
of products iteration, further control efficiency and development speed according
to the need for multiple platforms and languages and minimize the risk of new IP
creation.

Continuously intensity the use of Unity 3D engine and add 2D dynamics using
Spine tool first in the webpage and the fine arts part of mobile game to make 2D
roles more vivid.

2. R&D expenditures excepted to be reinvested will be approximately NT$ 130 million

(V)
V)
(Vi)
(Vi)

(Vi)
(IX)
X)

(X1)

(XII)

in 2021.

Impact of changes of important domestic and international policies and laws on the
Company’s finance and business, and response measures: None.

Impact of changes in technology and industry on the Company’s finance and business,
and response measures: None.

Impact of changes of corporate images on crisis management and response measures:
None.

Projected benefits and possible risks in engaging in mergers or acquisitions and response
measures: None.

Projected benefits and possible risks in expanding plants and response measures: None.
Risks posed by concentrated procurement and sales and response measures: None.

Effect and Risk of Transfer or Change of Shares held by directors, supervisors and
shareholders with 10% or more share ownership: and response measures: None.

Impacts and risks arising from changes of management rights and response measures:
None.

Disclosure of issues in dispute, monetary amount of claims, filing date, parties involved,
and status of any litigation or other legal proceedings within the latest fiscal year and as
of the date of the annual report where the Company and/or any of its directors, supervisors,
president, person in charge, shareholders with 10% or more share ownership, or affiliates
are involved in a pending litigation, legal proceedings or administrative proceedings, or
a final judgment or ruling which may have a material adverse effect on the Company's
shareholder equity or price of securities: None.
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(XI) Other Material risks and response measures:
Information Security Risk Assessment and Analysis:

Electronization has changed the traditional way of work but also brought new forms of
crimes method, which has become the emerging criminal model. Hacking cases by
hackers occur one after another. The possibility of information system being hacked
increases gradually due to insufficiently rigorous information security structure or
insufficient mechanism control regarding systems, internet, or privacy management,
resulting in the increase of personal information leakage, which may bring risks such
as litigation, fines, and operating suspension to corporates. In addition to having
Regulations for Information Security Management in place and establishing regulations
and procedures regarding information security management, the Company performs
regular disaster drill and remote data back-up, reinforces the promotion of information
security to its employees to minimize impacts of the risks from information security.
Impacts of information system damages on the Company and the response measures
are as follow:

1. Establish the information system structure on the mainframe with high usability and
establish the remote data back-up mechanism to ensure the continual services as its
first priority. Also, deliver the back-up media for remote preservation. Carry out
material system disaster drill regularly, and enhance the adaptability of users regarding
crisis management. Focus on the review and improvement on defects through practical
operations and drills.

Regarding the protections provided for information security threats, such as virus
infection from the browsed websites, e-mails with malware, portable storage media,
and malware downloads, the Company has established the defense and detection
system and has installed basic anti-virus systems for all terminals. The Company
performs its monitoring and protection by way of central control, sets up equipment
for barring spams, and enhances virus scanning for e-mails, so as to minimize the risks
of being infected and attacked by malware.

3. Internet security includes access control, firewall, systems for intrusion detection and
blocking attacks, application protection, internet monitoring and report system, and
repair work, to reduce loopholes and the possibility of being attacked. Personnel from
the Department of Information of the Company receive information security programs
regularly to improve the crisis awareness of employees regarding information security.

4. For personal information protection, besides establishing a special task force and
setting out all protective measures, the Company requires all operating departments to
minimize the collection of relevant data in principle. Improve the masking off of our
database regarding non-necessary users and check personal information in fixed time.
All usage of and access to personal information shall be subject to approvals in
compliance with the requirements. Abandonment and destruction of storage media
shall be handled by an independent third party, and photos of such abandoned and
destroyed storage media shall be kept for future references.

For 2020 and 2021 and as of the date of printing the annual report, the Company is not
aware of any significant internet attacks or matters, and there have been no significant
adverse effects on our operations, and the Company has not been involved in any relevant
legal cases or regulatory investigation.

VII. Other Important Matters: None.
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Chapter 8 Special Disclosure
[. Summary of Affiliated Companies
(I) Consolidated Business Report Covering Affiliated Companies

1. Organizational chart of affiliates:
December 31, 2020

Softstar Entertainment Inc.

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 93.85%
INI}%szASCT%lz/E Softstar Softstar Kobe Co., Gamebase
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. ENTERTAINME Agency Co., Creative Inc. Ltd. Dégltal N{?dla
NT INC. Ltd. (Note 1) orporation
49% 100% 100%
SOFTSTAR SOFTSTAR GLOBAL SOFTSTAR
Tg};?gnggYmD INC.(Note 2) ANIMATION
( ) CO., LTD. LIMITED
100%)
SOFTSTAR
TECHNOLOGY
(SHANGHAI) CO.,
LTD.

Note 1: Application for dissolution in December 2020 is still in process.
Note 2: Application for cancellation in October 2021 is still in process.

As of the date of publication in 2021:

(1) LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was located at 5F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; increased the capital by TWD 20 million to
TWD 48.50 million; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

(2) Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. was renamed Vision Power Entertainment Co., Ltd.; was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital to
TWD 1 million to cover the losses.
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(3) Kobe Digit Co., Ltd. was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

(4) Shareholding ratio of the Company in Gamebase Digital Media Corporation changed to 100%; Gamebase Digital Media Corporation was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section
2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital to TWD 2 million to cover the losses; the number of directors decreased from 3 to 1 and Tsai, Ming-Hung was the director.

(5) The Company established three companies in Samoa: TIME VISION INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED and MIGHTY LEADER

LIMITED.

(6) Shareholder of Softstar Entertainment Inc. was changed to BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.
(7) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED was changed to Softstar Entertainment Inc.

2. Information on Affiliated Companies

As of 12/31/2020; Unit: NT$ thousands

Date of Paid-in
Affiliated Company Incorporation Address . Scope of Business or Production
Capital
(vyyy/mm/dd)
Softstar International Inc. P.0.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL 2000/04/19 |West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY 1-1205, 163,387 |General investment
INC. Cayman Islands
SF, Dahua Tiantan Building, Sanyi Temple, Renmin
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY S o o e . .
(BEIING) CO., LTD. 2000/09/19 Iéir}[;versny South Road, Haidian District, Beijing 32,856 |Data processing services
Room 22301-768, Building 14, No. 498
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY . ’ 0 ’ . .
(SHANGHATI) CO., LTD. 2001/06/14 glcl);lnsiloujlng Road, Shanghai Free Trade Zone, 134,694 |Information software services
Softstar Global Inc.(Note 2) 2004/05/31 Eu1t§ 802, SSt James Court St Denis Street, Port 162,277 |General investment
ouis, Mauritius
Softstar Animation Limited 2016/05/11 |Offshore Chambers, P.O.Box 217, Apia, Samoa 29,888 |General investment
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE . o Software  wholesaling  and
ENTERTAINMENT INC. 2014/04/10 |7/F, No.29, Section 1, Anhe Road, Taipei 28,500 nformation software services
Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. 2015/02/04 |23F-1, No. 200, Section 1, Keelung Road, Taipei City 13,500 |Performing activities
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Network software development

Softstar Creative Inc. (Note 1) 2016/02/03 |15F, No. 200, Section 1, Keelung Road, Taipei City 47,000 . .
and technical services
Kobe Co., Ltd. 2009/06/19 |15F, No. 200, Section 1, Keelung Road, Taipei City 99,200 |General investment
Gamebasp Digital Media 2011/05/26 |15F-1, No. 200, Section 1, Keelung Road, Taipei City 65,000 Softwarq publishing . and
Corporation information software services

Note 1: Application for dissolution in December 2020 is still in process.
Note 2: Application for cancellation in October 2021 is still in process.

As of the date of publication in 2021:

(1) LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was located at 5F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; increased the capital by TWD 20 million to
TWD 48.50 million; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.
(2) Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. was renamed Vision Power Entertainment Co., Ltd.; was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital

to TWD 1 million to cover the losses.

(3) Kobe Digit Co., Ltd. was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

(4) Shareholding ratio of the Company in Gamebase Digital Media Corporation changed to 100%; Gamebase Digital Media Corporation was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section
2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital to TWD 2 million to cover the losses; the number of directors decreased from 3 to 1 and Tsai, Ming-Hung was the director.

(5) The Company established three companies in Samoa: TIME VISION INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED and MIGHTY LEADER

LIMITED.

(6) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. was changed to BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.
(7) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED was changed to SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC.

3. Information on Same Shareholders under Presumption of a Relationship of Control or Subordination: None.

4. Industries Covered by the Overall Business Operated by Affiliated Companies: Game-related development, agency, sales operations and

licensing.
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5. Directors, Supervisors, and Presidents of Aftiliated Companies

As of 12/31/2020; Unit: 1,000 shares

Shareholding
Affiliated Company Title Name or Representative Number of | Shareholding
shares ratio
Softstar International Inc.
SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL Chairman |Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 5,059 100.00%
INC.
Chairman |Hsiao Chien, representative for CMGE Technology Group Limited Note 3 51.00%
. CMGE Technology Group Limited o
Director Representative: Liang Yen, Hsien, Han-Ti Note 3 >1.00%
SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY Director SOFTSTAR. INTERNATIONAL INC. . Note 3 49.00%
(BELIING) CO., LTD Representatives: Tu, Chun-Kuang, Yao, Chuang-Hsien
” ) President |YAO, CHUANG-HSIEN Note 3 -
. CMGE Technology Group Limited o
Supervisors Representative: Ye, Miao-Liang Note 3 >1.00%
Supervisors |Hsieh, Ping-Hui, representative for Softstar International Inc. Note 3 49.00%
E}i(:;;ig;zse E;go Chien, representative for SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEIJING) CO., Note 3 100.00%
?ﬁgﬁgﬁiﬁEggNgbOGY President  |CHANG,HSIAO-CHUAN Note 3 i
" ) . Ye, Miao-Liang, representative for SOFTSTAR TECHNOLOGY (BEIJING) CO.,
Supervisors LTD Note 3 100.00%
Softstar Global Inc.(Note 2) Chairman |Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for Softstar International Inc. 5,327 100.00%
Softstar Animation Limited Chairman |Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for Softstar International Inc. 980 100.00%
Chairman Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 2,850 100.00%
LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE Director Chen, Yao-Tien and Hsieh, Ping-Hui, representatives for SOFTSTAR 2,850 100.00%
ENTERTAINMENT INC ENTERTAINMENT INC.
’ President CHEN, YAO-TIEN 0 0
Supervisors |Hsieh, Fang-Shu, representatives for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 2,850 100.00%
Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. Chairman Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Note 3 100.00%
Chairman Tu, Chun-Kuang, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 4,700 100.00%
Softstar Creative Inc. (Note 1) . Tsai, Ming-Hung and Lin, Hui-Chen, representatives for SOFTSTAR o
Director ENTERTAINMENT INC. 4,700 100.00%
Kobe Co., Ltd. Chairman Hsieh, Ping-Hui, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. Note 3 100.00%
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Chairman Tsai, Ming-Hung, representative for SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 6,100 93.85%
Gamebase Digital Media Director Tu, Chpn—Kuang, represeqtative foir SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. 6,100 93.85%
Corporation He, Fei-P'eng, representative for City-state Cultural Services Co., Ltd. 400 6.15%

President Tsay, Ming-Hung 0 0

Supervisors |LIN, HUI-ZHEN 0 0

Note 1: Application for dissolution in December 2020 is still in process.
Note 2: Application for cancellation in October 2020 is still in process.

Note 3: This is a limited company with no issued shares.
As of the date of publication in 2021:

(1) LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was located at 5F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; increased the capital by TWD 20 million to
TWD 48.50 million; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

(2) Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. was renamed Vision Power Entertainment Co., Ltd.; was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased
to TWD 1 million to cover the losses.
(3) Kobe Digit Co., Ltd. was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; director Hsich, Ping-Hui was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

the capital

(4) Shareholding ratio of the Company in Gamebase Digital Media Corporation changed to 100%; Gamebase Digital Media Corporation was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section
2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital to TWD 2 million to cover the losses; the number of directors decreased from 3 to 1 and Tsai, Ming-Hung was the director.
(5) The Company established three companies in Samoa: TIME VISION INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED and MIGHTY LEADER

LIMITED.

(6) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. was changed to BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.
(7) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED was changed to SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC.
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6. Financial Position and Operating Results of Affiliated Companies

December 31, 2020
Unit: Thousand NT$

. Operatin Income
Affiliated Company Capital Total . To.ta.ll. Net Worth Operating IIr)lcomeg (Loss)
Assets | Liabilities Revenue
(Loss) after Tax

Softstar International Inc.
SOFTSTAR 163,387 | 552,634 246 | 552,388 - (1,765)| (63,016)
INTERNATIONAL INC.
Softstar Global Inc.
(Note 2) 162,277 - - - - - 8,323
Softstar Animation Limited| 29,888 7,528 1,683 5,845 36 (376) (414)
LOFTSTAR
INTERACTIVE 28,500 89,100 83,647 5,453 | 186,215 (2,880) 2,729
ENTERTAINMENT INC.
Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. 13,500 896 20 876 - (84) (84)
Softstar Creative Inc.
(Note 1) 47,000 1,654 84 1,570 - (147) (147)
Kobe Co., Ltd. 99,200 13,379 10 13,369 - (117) (117)
Gamebase Digital Media | o5 500 |  g 1171|4628 3483  7.978| (8.900)| (7.115)
Corporation

Note: on December 31, 2020, the exchange rate of US dollar to NT dollar was 1:28.48 (balance sheet) and
1:29.53 (income statement).
On December 31, 2020, the exchange rate USD to NTD was 1:4.38 (balance sheet) and 1:4.28 (income

statement).

Note 1: Application for dissolution in December 2020 is still in process.

Note 2: Application for cancellation in October 2020 is still in process.

As of the date of publication in 2021:
(1) LOFTSTAR INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT INC. was located at S5F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South
Road, Taipei; increased the capital by TWD 20 million to TWD 48.50 million; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui was changed to

Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

(2) Softstar Agency Co., Ltd. was renamed Vision Power Entertainment Co., Ltd.; was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11,

Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased
(3) Kobe Digit Co., Ltd. was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; director Hsieh, Ping-Hui
was changed to Chuang, Jen-Chu'an.

the capital to TWD 1 million to cover the losses.

(4) Shareholding ratio of the Company in Gamebase Digital Media Corporation changed to 100%; Gamebase Digital Media

Corporation was located at 4F, No. 8, Lane 11, Section 2, Dunhua South Road, Taipei; decreased the capital to TWD 2

million to cover the losses; the number of directors decreased from 3 to 1 and Tsai, Ming-Hung was the director.

(5) The Company established three companies in Samoa: TIME VISION INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BEST CLASSIC

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED and MIGHTY LEADER LIMITED.

(6) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC. was changed to BEST CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.
(7) Shareholder of SOFTSTAR ANIMATION LIMITED was changed to SOFTSTAR INTERNATIONAL INC.
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(IT) Consolidated Financial Statements Covering Affiliated Companies: Same as the consolidated
financial statements (refer to Pages 112~212).

(IIT) Statement on Consolidated Financial Statements Covering Aftiliated Companies

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC. and Subsidiaries

Statement on Consolidated Financial Statements Covering Affiliated Companies

In 2020 (from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020), the companies required to be included in the consolidated financial
statements of affiliates under the "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises™ are all the same as companies required to be included in the
consolidated financial statements of parent and subsidiary companies as provided in the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) 10, and relevant information that should be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of affiliates
has all been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of parent and subsidiary companies. Aurora hereby produces

this declaration to the effect that no preparation for the separate consolidated financial statements of affiliates is required.

Very truly yours,

SOFTSTAR ENTERTAINMENT INC.

Chairman: Tu, Chun-Kuang

March 12, 2021

(1V) Affiliation Report: N/A.
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I1. Private Placement Securities in the Most Recent Years

Item

1st private placement in 2020 (Note 1)
Date of issue: Not yet placed

Type of privately placed securities (Note 2)

Common shares

Date and amount of approval by the shareholders'
meeting
(Note 3)

Approved by the Board of Directors on March 5, 2020; the number of privately placed common
shares to be issued did not exceed 10 million; to be proposed in the annual shareholders’ meeting
on June 9, 2020 for approval.

Discontinued upon approval of the Board of Directors on March 12, 2021.

Basis for and reasonableness of pricing

Basis for and reasonableness of pricing:

1. The reference price of privately placed common shares shall be the higher of the following two
calculations:

(1) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the Company for either the 1,
3, or 5 business days before the price determination date, after adjustment for any
distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends or capital reduction.

(2) The simple average closing price of the common shares for the 30 business days before
the price determination date, after adjustment for any distribution of stock dividends, cash
dividends or capital reduction.

2. The price per share of privately placed common shares shall be no lower than 80 % of the
reference price.

3. It is proposed that the Board of Directors should be authorized by the shareholders' meeting to
determine the actual date of determination of the private placement price and actual private
placement price based on the specific person and market situation under the premise that the
price of the privately placed common shares shall not be lower than 80% of the aforesaid
reference price and the denomination of the shares.

4. The above-mentioned price of the private placement, considering the private placed ordinary
shares have low liquidity, and the price setting is in accordance with the “Directions for Public
Companies Conducting Private Placements of Securities”, should be reasonable.
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Method for selecting the specific persons (Note 4)

It is proposed that the Board of Directors should select the specific persons according to Article
43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, and such specific persons should be limited to those
prescribed by the Financial Supervisory Commission in the Order (2002) Tai-Cai-Zheng-Yi-Zi
No. 0910003455 on June 13, 2002.

Reasons for the necessity of private placement

Currently, the Company has to invest in working capital of the group; considering the timeliness,
convenience, and issuance cost of raising capital, the Company plans to raise capital through
private placement. The private placement is expected to strengthen the Company’s
competitiveness and productivity and benefit shareholders’ equity.

Date of full payment for shares Not yet placed
Placee Profile Tarr%fatcc;tr‘lf;rlxate Qualifications Quantity of Relationship with tg:ﬁ;gf;ﬁ?slgf
(Note 5) (Note 6) subscription the Company the Company
Not yet placed Not yet placed Not yet placed Not yet placed Not yet placed
Actual subscription (conversion) price
Not yet pl
(Note 7) ot yet placed
Difference between actual subscription
. . . Not yet placed
(conversion) price and reference price (Note 7)
Eff f priv lacement on shareholders’
ect of private placement on shareholders Not yet placed

equity (such as increase in accumulated loss)

Use of capital raised through private placement and
progress of the plan

To payback Due to Banks and to enrich the working capital of the Group It is expected that the
Company's financial structure will be improved, which will help the Company's operations to
grow steadily and will be positively beneficial to the enhancement of shareholders' equity.

Realization of benefits of the plan

Not yet placed
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Note 1: The number of fields may be adjusted based on the frequency of private placement. If there are to be multiple closings, specify each closing separately.

Note 2: Type of privately placed securities may be common shares, preferred shares, convertible preferred shares, preferred shares with warrants, common corporate bonds,
convertible corporate bonds, corporate bonds with warrants, overseas convertible corporate bonds, overseas depository receipts and employee stock warrants.

Note 3: In case of privately placed corporate bonds that require no approval of the shareholders' meeting, fill in the date and amount of approval by the Board of Directors.

Note 4: If placees have been determined for the ongoing private placement, specify the name of the placees and their relationship with the Company.

Note 5: The number of fields may be adjusted as needed.

Note 6: Fill in the qualification set forth in Subparagraph 1, 2 or 3, Paragraph 1, Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

Note 7: Actual subscription (conversion) price refers to that determined at the time of the issuance of privately placed securities.

III. The Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in the Most Recent Years: None.
I'V. Other Necessary Supplement: None.
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Chapter 9 Any of the Situations Listed in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article
36 of the Securities and Exchange Act which Might Materially Affect
Shareholders’ Equity or Price of the Company’s Securities in the
Most Recent Year up to the Date of Publication of the Annual Report:

None.
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